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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Asia Television Holdings
Limited (the "Company”), | am pleased to present the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2018.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
approximately Renminbi (“RMB") 166.0 million (2017: RMB150.7 million), an
increase of approximately 10.1% compared to the year before. The loss before
taxation of the Company amounted to approximately RMB840.0 million (2017:
RMB118.9 million), representing a significant increase of 606.2% from 2017.

The significant increase in loss before taxation for the year ended 31 December
2018 is mainly attributable to (i) impairment loss on goodwill arising from
the acquisition of Asia Television Limited (the “Acquisition of ATV") and its
subsidiaries; (ii) impairment loss on interests in an associate; (iii) impairment
loss recognised in respect of intangible assets; and (iv) an increase in operating
expenses due to the newly development of media, cultural and entertainment
business relating to the Acquisition of ATV.

Loss per share amounted to approximately RMB0.113 (2017: RMB0.025), while
the net asset value per share attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately RMBO0.07 at the end of 2018 (2017: RMBO0.18).

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during the year (2017:
Nil). The Board resolved not to declare the payment of any final dividend for
the year (2017: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had engaged in four
business streams including (i) the processing, printing and sales of finished
fabrics and subcontracting services and the trading of fabric and clothing
business (the “Fabrics and Trading Business”); (i) the money lending business;
(i) securities investment and securities brokerage services business (the
“Investments and Brokerage Services Business”); and (iv) media, cultural and

entertainment business.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

An outline of the business review of the four business streams is described

below:

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Fabrics and Trading Business
The overall in 2018.

Demand from emerging markets remained weak and the substantial

business environment remained challenging

increases in direct costs continued to put pressure on gross profit
margin. For the year 2018, the turnover contributed by the Fabrics and
Trading Business was approximately RMB94.9 million (2017: RMB114.8
million), representing a decrease of 17.3% from the previous year. Gross
profit from the operation has dropped from RMB4.2 million in 2017 to
gross loss of RMB17.9 million in current year, representing a 526.2%
year-over-year decline.

Money Lending Business

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the interest income contributed
by the money lending business was approximately RMB18.2 million
(2017: RMB14.7 million) with EBITDA result of approximately RMB12.8
million (2017: RMB4.8 million).

Investments and Brokerage Services Business

As the stock market was volatile in 2018, the Group had recorded
an overall fair value loss of approximately RMB43.6 million from the
securities investment business (2017: fair value loss of RMB16.7 million).

The revenue generated from the securities brokerage services business
was approximately RMB28.2 million (2017: RMB20.7 million), the
significant increase in revenue since the completion of acquisition
of Million Federal International Limited together with its subsidiary,
Sincere Securities Limited in March 2017 was mainly due to the revenue
generated from margin financing interest income. The Group’s overall
Investment and Brokerage Services Business was satisfactory and
contributed a stable income to the Group.

Media, Cultural and Entertainment Business

During the year under review, the turnover of the media, cultural and
entertainment business was approximately RMB24.8 million (2017: 0.6
million). The improvement of the revenue was mainly contributed by
advertising and sponsorship income from the launch of over-the-top
platform, including set-top-boxes, mobile app and website. EBITDA
for the year ended 31 December 2018 was at a loss of approximately
RMB151.0 million (2017: RMB47.0 million) due to the start-up costs
associated with renovated and revamped the existing facilities at Tai Po
and acquired new digital production and editing equipment to remaster
and digitalise existing programme library and archives, developed a
digital broadcasting and distribution platform, and invested in new
content production and licenced contents for our OTT (Over-The-Top)

platform.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

EF#E(R)

LONG TERM CORPORATE STRATEGIES

Being heavily invested in media, cultural and entertainment business, the
Group aims to expand vertically to provide our customers with a “one-stop”
advertising solution from creative production to media delivery. In the medium
to long term development, it is expected that our platform will cover other
Cantonese-Speaking regions. We will focus on developing Malaysia and the
Greater Pearl River Delta region before moving on to other countries with large
populations.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Despite the headwinds and challenges ahead, we will continue to enhance our
corporate transparency and strengthen our corporate governance and internal
control. We will take every opportunity to optimise our business to enrich
the value of the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”). With the
concerted efforts of the management and the staff of the Group, we are
confident and optimistic about the Group’s future growth and outlook.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group and the Board, | would like to express uttermost
gratitude to our employees for all your effort and contribution. | would also
like to thank our Shareholders, investors, business partners and customers who
have been offering great support and assistance to us. We are confident about
the future development prospects of the Group and will continue to forge
ahead with innovative development and generate ideal investment returns for
Shareholders.

Deng Jun lJie
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Asia Television Holdings Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) had engaged
in four business streams including (i) the processing, printing and sales of
finished fabrics and subcontracting services and the trading of fabric and
clothing business (the “Fabrics and Trading Business”); (ii) the money lending
business; (iii) securities investment and securities brokerage services business
(the “Investments and Brokerage Services Business”); and (iv) media, cultural

and entertainment business.

Fabrics and Trading Business

The Group continued to engage in the Fabrics and Trading Business during
the financial year. The overall business environment remained challenging in
2018. Demand from emerging markets remained weak and the substantial
increase in direct costs continued to exert pressure on gross profit margin.
The fierce competition also made it difficult to pass on various cost increases
to customers, along with increasingly demanding environmental standard and
requirements applicable in the manufacturing processes. As a result, the Group
has focused improving operating efficiency and managing costs last year. We
also took other appropriate strategic and operational measures to deal with
operational challenges.

For the year 2018, the turnover contributed by the Fabrics and Trading Business
was approximately Renminbi (“RMB”) 94.9 million (2017: RMB114.8 million),
representing a decrease of 17.3% from the previous year. Gross profit from the
operation has dropped from RMB4.2 million in 2017 to gross loss of RMB17.9
million in the current year, representing a 526.2% year-on-year decline. The
decrease in revenue and segment gross loss were primarily due to the fact
that (i) the Group was unable to pass on all the increased costs (such as
costs related to labour and increasingly stringent environmental protection
requirements) and decrease in the average selling price of the fabric owing
to intense competition in the market; (i) most of the material costs have
increased dramatically during the year; (iii) the economic environment of the
People’'s Republic of China (the “PRC”) has becoming more uncertain due
to the slowdown of economic growth in the PRC, driven by the structural
adjustment in the domestic economy and structural reform on the supply side.
Besides, operating environment was unfavourable owing to the escalating trade
tensions between the United States (the “US”) and the PRC, which has brought
uncertainties to the future of the textile industry as well as weakened demand
from customers. We anticipate the fabric manufacturing and trading industry
will further undergo a process of consolidation and we will continue to adopt
stringent cost control measures to counteract the operational headwind.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FHEARR S W (])

Money Lending Business

The money lending business is conducted through Rende Finance Limited, a
locally licenced money lender under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter
163 of the Laws of the Hong Kong). As at 31 December 2018, the loan
balances were approximately RMB100.2 million (2017: RMB138.3 million) with
terms of 3 months to 1 year.

The money lending business has gradually grown at a stable pace into a
significant loan portfolio. The Group adopted the money lending policy and
procedure manual which provide guidelines on the handling and monitoring
of money lending procedures according to the Money Lenders Ordinance. For
the year ended 31 December 2018, the interest income contributed by the
money lending business was approximately RMB18.2 million (2017: RMB14.7
million) with EBITDA result of approximately RMB12.8 million (2017: RMB4.8
million).

As a matter of risk management exercise, we will not further enlarge the
exposure of the money lending business. We will remain prudent in our
credit approval process and exercise stringent internal process in screening
applications.

Investment and Brokerage Services Business

During the year under review, the overall performance of the Group's securities
investment business was less than satisfactory. The stock market was volatile
in 2018 and the Group recorded an overall fair value loss of approximately
RMB43.6 million (2017: RMB16.7 million) from the securities investment
business. The decrease in fair value of the securities investment was mainly
due to the volatility caused by the US-China trade war, US rate hikes, the
weakening RMB and economics in emerging markets, which lead to the overall
dissatisfactory performance of the stock market.

As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of the Group’s financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is approximately RMB123.2 million (2017:
RMB52.4 million). The Group managed a portfolio of securities listed in Hong
Kong and overseas.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The revenue generated from the securities brokerage services business was
approximately RMB28.2 million (2017: RMB20.7 million), significant increase
in revenue since the completion of acquisition of Million Federal International
in March
2017. The Group's overall Investment and Brokerage Services Business was

Limited together with its subsidiary, Sincere Securities Limited,

performing well. The improvement of revenue from the securities brokerage
services business was mainly due to the revenue generated from margin
financing interest income. We expect the revenue arising from brokerage
commissions, corporate finance as well as margin financing businesses will
continue to contribute to the Group as a stable source of income.

Media, Cultural and Entertainment Business

The Group has noticed the potential growth of media, cultural and
entertainment sector and has commenced to look into related development
cultural and

(2017: 0.6

million). The improvement of the revenue was contributed by advertising

opportunities. During the vyear, turnover of the media,

entertainment business was approximately RMB24.8 million

and sponsorship income from the launch of OTT (over-the-top) platform,
including set-top-boxes, mobile app and website. EBITDA for the year ended
31 December 2018 was a loss of approximately RMB151.0 million (2017: a
loss of approximately RMB47.0 million) due to start-up costs associated with
renovation of the existing facilities at Tai Po and the acquisition of new
digital production and editing equipment to remaster and digitalise existing
content library and archives, developed a digital broadcasting and distribution
platform, and the new content production and licenced contents for our
media platform. During the period under review, we have also revived our
most popular and classic contents such as “Who want to be a Millionaire?”
and “Miss Asia Pageant”, along with our new programmes. The Group has
expanded its management team and recruited talents in the media and
entertainment industry for the launch of mobile application and OTT platform

during the period under review.

The short-term strategy for our media and entertainment business is to expand
its multiple digital platforms with big data social media platforms. Our goal
is to establish a high-quality advertising platform with strong customer base.
In the long run, we aim to expand vertically to provide our customers with a
“one-stop” advertising solution from creative production to media delivery. In
the medium to long term development, it is expected that our platform will
cover other Cantonese-Speaking regions. We will focus on developing Malaysia
and the Greater Pearl River Delta region before moving on to other countries
with large populations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FHEARR S W (])

DETERIORATE IN FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
During the year ended 31 December 2018, there were gross loss and net
loss of approximately RMB97,807,000 and RMB839,139,000 respectively due
to unexpected bad performance of media, cultural and entertainment cash-
generating unit (“Media CGU") and Yong Tai Berhad (“Yong Tai").

The Group incurred significant expenses in cost of sales of approximately
RMB263,832,000 including amortisation of intangible assets, direct staff
costs, net write-down of inventories of approximately RMB56,543,000,
RMB59,845,000 and RMB42,597,000 respectively. Hence, there was significant
gross loss of approximately RMB97,807,000 for the year ended 31 December
2018.

Also, Media CGU was unable to achieve our expectation resulting in
impairment loss of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment of
approximately RMB40,683,000 and RMB26,531,000 respectively according to
our assessment as at 31 December 2018. Also, impairment loss on goodwill of
approximately RMB114,366,000 was recognised in profit and loss during the
year and was mentioned in the supplemental circular of the Company dated
on 24 October 2018.

On the other hand, Yong Tai performed (i) the impairment assessment of
intangible assets and property, plant and equipment and (i) expected credit
loss assessment of financial assets resulting in significant share of loss of Yong
Tai of approximately RMB205,129,000. Also, the quoted market price of the
shares of Yong Tai significantly and continuously decreased during the year
resulting in significant impairment loss on interest in Yong Tai of approximately
RMB56,798,000.

Apart for the aforementioned impairment, there was significant decrease in
the fair value of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as at
31 December 2018 resulting in fair value loss on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately RMB43,589,000 for the year ended
31 December 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group disposed certain
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss resulting in gain on
disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
RMB5,247,000 included in the fair value loss on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2018 of approximately

RMB43,589,000.

As the reasons mentioned above,
approximately RMB839,139,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018.

there was significant net loss of

Impairment losses
The impairment loss of approximately RMB127,618,000 is made for the
following segments:

TEHEARR S (&)

HEZ -—/\$+ A=+—HLEE A4%£H
HEETRATEFABREZHBEE S
tlj’%ﬁ?ﬂ¥@§+7\$§i*HEZHH%EEWE%J}\E
#5,247,000C  FFABIZE_ZE—N\FTA=+
—BALFEREAFEAABEEREZVBEEZR

1B /&5 48 4943,589,0007T °

HRERRA B2 /\F+=ZA=+—H
IFFENERXNFEEB AN ARKS39,139,0007T °

WEEE
SRLE B 1B 9 A R #5127,618,000 T 2R B A T4 &6 -

RMB’000
ARMFT

Processing, printing and sales of finished fabrics and M FE Z A @A R0 T

subcontracting services in the PRC ENTE R E R D 8BRS

(“Fabrics CGU 1") (i) (MR EEERG)

— Property, plant and equipment — W BB REE 3,606
Entertainment and media (“Media CGU") (ii) RERFR(HEBRESEEENMD (i)

— Property, plant and equipment —ME - WERFEE 26,531

— Intangible assets —EEEE 40,683
Interest in an associate (iii) BB R 7] 2 B g (i) 56,798
Total #Er 127,618

According to Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS") 36 — Impairment of
Assets, the Group shall assess at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. The directors of the
Company identified the following impairment indication during their review
of Fabrics CGU 1,
These following impairment issues are first identified when the impairment

Media CGU and interest in an associate of the Group.

assessment performed during the period from the end of the reporting period
to the date of report.

BREFESHEN(EB LA E36RE -5
ERE AEERNSHREHRILEERST
EAERENTR ARAEENEMNHHARS
ELEM HERSELBNLASZERRE
BRBAIZEGBEHERATREIR - ATRE
BMEDNIERREARFRAMMRMERER -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EERHMER S (&)

(i)

(i)

12

Fabrics CGU 1

During the course of preparing of the Group’s Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018, the directors of the company
identified:

a) The demand from emerging markets of fabrics business remained
weak; and

b) There were downsize of sale scale and gross profit margin in
Fabrics CGU 1.

Therefore, the directors concern about the recoverability of the carrying
amounts of the CGUs under Fabrics segment and performing impairment
review on non-financial assets of these CGUs.

During the impairment assessment of Fabrics CGU 1, the management
of the Company identified the indications that property, plant and
equipment of Fabrics CGU 1 may be impaired.

Media CGU

During the directors of the Company reviewing the profit and cash
flow forecast for the year ending 31 December 2019 of Media CGU
prepared by the management team of Media CGU on end of 2018, the
directors alerted that the revenue and profit before tax for the forecast
by 2019 is far below their expectation due to the actual advertising
and subscription income for the year of 2018 worse than expected as
a result of the weak demand for the over-the-top platform including
set-top-boxes, mobile app and website. The directors of the Company
requested the management team to perform a five years-forecast to
demonstrate to the board for the overall long-term performance of
Media CGU, in addition, the board have based on the same five years
forecast to assessing any impairment problem on the non-financial assets
of Media CGU. Moreover, there was net loss in Media CGU during the
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018.

In addition, the performance of the media, cultural and entertainment
business has underperformed management’s expectations as the actual
income generated from the over-the-top platform for the year of 2018
worse than expected due to the weak demand for the over-the-top
platform. Hence, the directors of the Company prepared the cash flow
forecast for and identified that the recoverable amount may be lower
than the carrying amount of Media CGU.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

(iii) Interest in an associate

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of
announcement, the quoted market price of the ordinary shares and
Irredeemable Convertible Preference Shares of Yong Tai Berhad (“Yong
Tai") listed on the Main Market of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
significantly and continuously decreased since second quarter of 2018.
Comparing with their highest quoted market prices of Malaysian Ringgit
("RM")1.69 and RM1.2 respectively in 2018, their highest quoted market
prices decreased by 78.11% which compared with RM0.37 and RM0.26
respectively. Also, the Group shared the loss of Yong Tai's result of
approximately RMB205,129,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018.
The directors of the Company considered that as Yong Tai is a listed
company in Malaysia, it's quoted market prices is a significant reference
of the recoverable amount to the carrying amount of interest in an
associate of the Group, however, as the poor performance of trading
securities of Yong Tai as above, the directors believe the recoverable
amount of Yong Tai may not be cover the carrying amount of interest
in an associate in the foreseeable future. Hence, the directors of the
Company identified that it was the indication that the interest in Yong
Tai was impaired.

Apart from the aforementioned
RMB127,618,000, the directors of the company identified that the realisable
values of the inventories in Media CGU and Fabrics CGU 1were below their

impairment loss of approximately

costs during the course of preparing of the Group’s Financial Statements for
the year ended 31 December 2018. Therefore, the directors of the company
recognised impairment loss on inventories in Media CGU and Fabrics CGU 1of
approximately RMB42,597,000 in cost of sales for the year ended 31 December
2018 in accordance with HKAS 2 Inventories

Due to the aforementioned indications, the Company conducted the

impairment assessments of Fabrics CGU 1, Media CGU and interest in an

associate in accordance with HKAS 36.

The Group recognised the impairment loss of approximately RMB127,618,000
in profit or loss during the year due to the recoverable amounts of Fabrics
CGU 1, Media CGU and interest in an associate were lower than their carrying
amounts.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EERHMER S (&)

Recoverable

Exchange

Carrying Impairment
difference
5 =5
RMB’000

AR¥T T

loss

RN SE
RMB’000
ARET T

amount

AT 4 (B 5 &8
RMB'000
ARE T T

amount
FREE
RMB’'000
AR¥T T

Fabrics CGU 1 (i) MERESEEENM () 24,257 20,651 3,606 —
Media CGU (ii) 5 B8 3R & 2 A B AL 594,355 524,434 67,214 2,707
Interest in an associate RN
— Yong Tai (iii) — JK A (i) 174,939 118,141 56,798 —
Total st 793,551 663,226 127,618 2,707
(i) Fabrics CGU 1 (i) HHREBEELELENT

14

The recoverable amount of Fabrics CGU 1 as at 31 December 2018 has
been determined to be approximately RMB20,651,000 based on the
value-in-use calculation prepared by the independent firm of valuers,
Valtech Valuation Advisory Limited (“Valtech”) under the best estimation
of the management of the Company. That calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering 5 years. The pre-tax discount rate used of 17.32% (Post-tax
discount rate: 11.39%) for Fabrics CGU 1. Management determined
the budgeted revenue and costs based on past performance and its
expectations for the market development. The cash flows beyond 5
years have been extrapolated using a zero growth rate.

For the determination of discount rate, the valuer made reference to
the latest market data when they performed the valuation. There were
change in prevailing market data, including risk free rate, equity risk
premium, financial information of selected comparable companies, size
premium between the years of 2017 and 2018. Hence, the different
discount rates were adopted for the years of 2017 and 2018.

There were 4 Fabrics CGUs as at 31 December 2017. As at
31 December 2018, Fabrics CGU 3 and 4 were inactive and de-
registered on 21 January 2019 and 22 January 2019 respectively. In
the remaining Fabrics CGU 1 and 2, the management only identified
impairment loss of Fabrics CGU 1 as at 31 December 2018.

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
THNERZRAERL A
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(ii)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Media CGU

The recoverable amount of Media CGU as at 31 December 2018 has
been determined to be approximately RMB524,355,000 based on the
value-in-use calculation prepared by the management of the Company
under the best estimation of the management of the Company. That
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering an indefinite period. The pre-
14.20%)
for Media CGU. Management determined the budgeted revenue and

tax discount rate used of 15.29% (Post-tax discount rate:

costs based on past performance and its expectations for the market
development. The cash flows beyond 5 years have been extrapolated
using a 3% growth rate for revenue and expenses respectively.

Also,
allocated to the non-financial assets of this CGU on a pro-rata

the impairment loss of approximately RMB67,214,000 was

basis in accordance with HKAS 36. Hence, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets was impaired by
approximately RMB26,531,000 and 40,683,000, respectively, which is
based on their portion of non-financial assets with impairment situation
of this CGU.

As per the reasons aforementioned in (1)(ii), the management of the
Company sought more accurate discount rate of Media CGU and
appointed Valtech to access the discount rate of Media CGU for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

The discount rate of Media CGU for 2017 was accessed by the
management internally. The management adopted an aggressive
discount rate of Media CGU for 2017. Hence, no impairment loss was
required for the year ended 31 December 2017.

There were change in prevailing market data, including risk free rate,
equity risk premium, financial information of selected comparable
companies and size premium. Hence, the discount rate of Media CGU
was changed.

(i)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EERHMER S (&)

(iii) Interest in an associate — Yong Tai (i) RBEELNFGZED — KX

During the course of impairment assessment, the directors of the RETRENER  KAAEEF2EKK
Company reassessed the recoverable amount of interest in Yong Tai T@R LT B EREERAR T —
with reference to the quoted market price of the ordinary shares NEFE+_A=+—HWHERE EFF
and Irredeemable Convertible Preference Shares of Yong Tai as at R KR 2RO WEISEE « thoh - &
31 December 2018. In addition, the directors has also assessed the value ENEAEAKARAEEEERBENATRD
per share on recoverable amount of assets and liabilities of Yong Tai CHE2EREBE BEER-_ZT-N\F+
Group as at 31 December 2018, which is close to its quoted market AT —HBOTE®RE -

price as at 31 December 2018.

Value of inputs A B
Fabrics CGU 1 Media CGU
mRR e HERe
E AN EEBN
Projected cash flow in first year BEBARERE
(RMB'000) (i) (AR®ETFT) ) 3,911 34,445
Discount rate (ii) Bl 3R 3 (i) 17.32% 14.20%
Growth rate (i) and (iv) & K (jii) K (iv) 0% 3%
(i) Projected cash flow in first year excluded one-off transaction in 2019. (i) BEFEARERETERER-_ZE—NLFHN
—RERG e
(ii) Discount rate is based on WACC reflecting current market assessment of (ii) BRI EDNERNRBEESHHEEELN
the time value of money and the risk specific to those CGU (See HKAS ZERGELBEUNFERRZRED
36.55) G EONETHERARA(REAES
A HI36.55)
(i) The directors of the Company considered the growth rate of Fabrics CGU (i) EBARIRREELABMINEFRERD
1 is zero due to the downsize of business in Fabrics CGU 1. AABEEZRAMHARSEELEE1H1Z
(iv) The directors of the Company have commenced to look into related (iv) ARNRERZCHKRZEEEERSEA SN
development opportunities of Media CGU. Hence, they determined the WIEREREKE Al  EFERES
growth rate of Media CGU based on Hong Kong GDP. BRWAEEREETEERSELEEN
K RE -
1 6 ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The remedial actions to be undertaken

The management has commenced to look into related development
opportunities of Media CGU such as diversified source of income and is
processing the following actions to improve the financial performance of the
Group:

(i) negotiating with third parties to jointly organise music events and
produce film rights;

(ii) negotiating with third parties to invest in film rights;

(i)  developing non-domestic television services (i.e. Malaysia and the
Greater Pearl River Delta region);

(iv)  implementing policies to monitor cash flows through cutting costs and
capital expenditure;

v) negotiating with travel agencies to boost revenue of operation of
tourism stage performance and sales of property projects in Melaka;
and

(vi)  organising events such as chartered shows and cruise liners to enhance
revenue from operation of tourism stage performance in Melaka.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total assets of approximately
RMB1,433.0 million (2017: RMB1,693.1 million) which were financed by current
liabilities of approximately RMB918.9 million (2017: RMB392.9 million), non-
current liabilities of approximately RMB76.7 million (2017: RMB1.4 million) and
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) equity of approximately
RMB461.8 million (2017: RMB1,257.6 million).

As at 31 December 2018, excluded clients’ monies in segregated account, the
Group's cash and bank balances were approximately RMB37.3 million (2017:
RMB121.7 million), while pledged bank deposits amounted to RMB20.6 million
(2017: RMB38.4 million). As at 31 December 2018, the secured bonds were
fixed-rate and were denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), the short-
term bank loans were fixed-rate loans and denominated in RMB whereas short-
term loans from other financial institution and other borrowing were fixed-rate
loan and denominated in HK$. The Group’s borrowings were secured by land
use rights, property, plant and equipment, pledged interest in an associate,
investment properties, intangible assets, goodwill, inventories, trade and other
receivables, deposits and prepayments, loan receivables, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, pledged bank deposits and bank balances and
cash of the Group. Also, one of short term loan from other financial institution
is guaranteed by a substantial shareholder and director of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FHEARR S W (])

The current ratio, being a ratio of total current assets to total current
liabilities, was approximately 0.8 (2017: 2.2). The gearing ratio, being a ratio of
borrowings (comprising obligation under finance leases, bond payables, short-
term bank loans, short-term loans from other financial institutions and other
borrowings as at 31 December 2018) to Shareholders’ equity, was 117.8%
(2017: 17.3%).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s authorised share capital was
HK$2,000,000,000 divided into 20,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each, of
which 7,055,668,000 ordinary shares were in issue and fully paid.

Issue of Shares under share option scheme
During the year ended 31 December 2018, no share options were issued,
lapsed and exercised.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s borrowings were secured by assets with
a total carrying value of approximately RMB1,433.0 million (2017: RMB161.2
million).

Save for disclosed above, the Group does not have other charges on the
Group's assets.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has no capital commitments (2017: Nil)
in respect of purchases of property, plant and equipment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND EXCHANGE RISK
EXPOSURE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had provided corporate guarantee to
a bank in respect of certain credit facilities granted to Shasing-Shapheng
(Quanzhou) Textile Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Shasing-Shapheng Quanzhou”) of
which RMB40,000,000 (2017: Nil) was drawn down. The total amounts to be
guaranteed by the Group should not exceed RMB50,000,000. The effective
period of the guarantee should be from 16 July 2018 to 15 July 2023. No
provision for the Group’s obligation under the guarantee contract had been
made as the directors of the Company considered the possibility that Shasing-
Shapheng Quanzhou would not meet their obligations to the bank is remote,
and it was not probable that a claim will be made against the Group under
the guarantee contract.

Save for disclosed above, the Group does not have other contingent liabilities.

Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and Renminbi, which are the functional currencies of the respective group
companies. The Group has not entered into any instruments on the foreign
exchange exposure. The Group will closely monitor exchange rate movement
and will take appropriate action to reduce the exchange risk.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Please refer to notes 4, 5 and 6 to the consolidated financial statements and
the section “Contingent Liabilities and Exchange Risk Exposure” for further
discussion on other risks and uncertainties.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FHEARR S W (])

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
THE GROUP

Acquisition of ATV

As at the date of acquisition of Star Platinum Enterprises Limited (“Star
Platinum”) during 2016, Star Platinum has entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with six independent vendors on 30 April 2016 relating to the
acquisition of approximately 52.42% of the entire issued share capital of
Asia Television Limited (“ATV") and all related debts provided to ATV by the
vendors, at a total consideration of HK$500 million (referred to the “Acquisition
of ATV").
statements.

Details are set out in note 11(b) to the consolidated financial

Preparation of the supplemental circular for the
Acquisition of the ATV

For the preparation of the supplementary circular for the Acquisition of ATV.
The management of the Group has started gaining limited and incomplete
access to the ATV’'s books and records and facing significant practicable
difficulties with limited access due to its incomplete books and records (e.g.
incomplete filings with the books and records inconsistent with relevant
supporting documents; difficulty in ascertaining the completeness of the books
and records; absence of accounting staff of the ATV who have sufficient and
relevant knowledge to provide assistance; and the suspended and obsolete
accounting and operation system of ATV has problem to be reactivated). As a
result, the Group has limited and incomplete access to the ATV’s books and
records and the information currently obtained is not ready or sufficient for
the purpose of preparing financial information of ATV.

In view of the situation mentioned above, the Group had appointed a
professional accounting firm to update the books and records of ATV and an
audit firm to perform statutory audits of ATV. Subsequently, the updated books
and records of ATV and the outstanding audited reports of ATV were prepared
and the supplemental circular for the Acquisition of ATV was dispatched to
Shareholders on 24 October 2018.

Acquisition of ICPS of Yong Tai

On 9 January 2018, Full Winning Developments Limited (“Full Winning”), a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into an agreement
with Jade Stones Group Limited (“Jade Stones”) to acquire 60,000,000
issued Irredeemable Convertible Preference Share (“ICPS”) of Yong Tai
representing approximately 27.77% of the entire issued ICPS of Yong Tai at
the consideration of RM66,000,000. The acquisition of ICPS was completed
on 17 January 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Disposal of Million Federal

On 16 July 2018, Co-Prosperity Investment (International) Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose 60% of the entire issued share capital of Million
Federal International Limited (“Million Federal”) and its subsidiaries at the
consideration of approximately RMB85 million (equivalent to HK$100 million).
Sincere Securities Limited (“Sincere Securities”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Million Federal, is licensed to carry out type 1 (dealing in securities), type 4
(advising on securities) and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities.

The transaction has not been completed up to the date of this report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements also constituted connected transaction within the meaning
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). Details of such transactions have been disclosed in compliance
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules and summarised below:

Acquisition of ICPS of Yong Tai

On 9 January 2018, Full Winning entered into an agreement with Jade Stones
to acquire 60,000,000 ICPS of Yong Tai, representing approximately 27.77%
of the entire issued ICPS of Yong Tai at the consideration of RM66,000,000.

The sole director and the sole shareholder of the Jade Stones and its
associates, are also the directors and ultimate beneficial owners of a substantial
shareholder of Million Federal, holding approximately 36.88% of the total
issued share capital of Million Federal. Million Federal is also not a connected
subsidiary as defined under Rule 14A.16 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
Jade Stones and Full Winning are connected persons at subsidiary level of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the acquisition
of ICPS of Yong Tai constitutes a partially exempt connected transaction for
the Company under the Listing Rules and is exempted from shareholders’
approval requirement and only subject to the reporting and announcement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The acquisition was completed on
17 January 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FHEARR S W (])

The Loan under the Loan Agreement

On 28 January 2019, the Company, as the borrower, entered into a loan
agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with Tse’s Finance Limited, as the lender,
pursuant to which the Lender agreed to provide to the Borrower a term
loan of HK$50,000,000, at an interest rate of 2.5% per month for a term
of 2 months. Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the Company shall repay the
principal amount of the Loan in full on the maturity date of the Loan and the
interest paid in advance on the drawdown date.

The substantial shareholders of the lender and its associates, are also the
substantial shareholder of Million Federal, holding approximately 32.87%
of the total issued share capital of Million Federal. Million Federal is not
a connected subsidiary as defined under Rule 14A.16 of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the lender is connected person at subsidiary level of the Company

under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EMPLOYMENT
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had about 632 employees (2017: 740
employees) in Hong Kong and in the PRC.

Remuneration packages for the employees were maintained at a competitive
level of the jurisdiction within which the employees were employed to attract,

retain and motivate the employees and were reviewed periodically.

In addition, during the year, the Group maintained a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to the eligible participants
for their contributions to the Group. The share option scheme was adopted

at the annual general meeting of the Company on 15 June 2016.

22 ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
THEBRERARAXA

EHERBREETZERX
RZE—NF—A=+NH ARRIUEAERH)
HERAITLEXRMZ(ZERRZE]D - Bt -

HRUBERARNVEABERARAERERS
2 #£50,000,0008 LW EHHE K * B®A25% M 7|
I\'i%ﬁﬁzmﬂ BEZER WS NREEEZ

HEBHH2BEEERLAS SR - WERRA
,Hﬁiéﬁfw Boo

ERTNETERRREBEATREI ZTEK
R FEET2HMERTRANI2.87% - EH AL
FEREMBARCER R LR A E14A1615) -
Bt - B EWRAUNEWAST  ERTFTERAR
AlZMERREE2BEEAL -

1& & B8 &
RZZE—NF+_A=+—H XEERPEM
HMEAYNERHEETI(ZE—HF :74088TI) -

-

E%Z%%%@E%%ﬁ@%aZTi%&WE
BEBFEN - BUES - RELKAEEE - AQF]
STEHRTEHEFS

SO REBRFREF—BERETE - U@
SER2EERBRSIHASE  ERIEHEB R
HE e BREFEER=ZZTE—R"FNAT+ERAZ
AATRERBFRNGIEREN o



DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Deng Jun lJie, aged 48, is currently the Chairman of the board of directors
(the “Directors” and the “Board” respectively) and an executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Deng joined the Group in June 2018. He is also the chairman
of the board of directors of Honghu Capital Co. Ltd., a substantial shareholder
of the Company, a chairman of a number of companies in the PRC and the
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He was also the chairman,
an executive director and the chairman of the nomination committee of
China Water Industry Group Limited (stock code: 1129), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from 21 April 2017 to 4 September
2018. He possesses over 25 years of experiences in industrial sector, involving
real estates, environmental protection, culture, aviation and other fields. He
specialises in the formulation and development of corporate strategic planning,
corporate management and daily operations. Furthermore, with over 15 years
of experiences in financial investment and capital operation, Mr. Deng is
well versed with the financial markets and capital markets domestically and
overseas, in addition to relevant laws and regulations. He has a keen insight
and judgment on markets and comparatively strong risk control capability that
enable him to seize investment and profit opportunities by taking the lead in
several mergers, acquisitions and restructuring projects in the PRC and abroad.
Mr. Deng Rong Jie, the director of certain subsidiaries of the Company, who
is the brother of Mr. Deng.

Mr. Wang Jia Si, aged 61, is currently an executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. He joined the Group on 27 November 2018. He is
currently the dean of the School of Journalism and Communication and a
distinct professor of Anhui Normal University. From March 2016 to October
2016, Mr. Wang was the managing director of Hong Kong TV International
Media Group Limited (“HK TV International”) and subsequently appointed as
chief consultant of HK TV International from May 2017 to September 2018.
From May 1992 to January 2014, he had served as various key positions in
Anhui Daily News Group, officer of the editor-in-chief’s office, assistant editor,
deputy editor-in-chief, editor-in-chief, and president. In 2000, Mr. Wang was
awarded a postgraduate diploma in law from the Party School of the Central
Committee of the Communist Party of China. Mr. Wang has been awarded a
special allowance certificate by the State Council of the PRC in recognition of
his outstanding contribution to the development of career in social sciences,
the “Changjiang Tao Fen Award”, known as one of the highest personal award
in the PRC press, awarded by the All-China Journalists Association and was
selected by the General Administration of Press and Publication of the PRC as
one of the PRC’s top 100 publishing entrepreneurs.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)

EFCEER)

Mr. Chan Wai Kit, aged 36, is currently an executive Director of the Company.
He joined the Group on 27 November 2018. He holds a Bachelor Degree in
Information Systems and a Master Degree of Accounting from Curtin University
of Technology, Australia. He has been appointed as a committee member
of the 9th Committee of Maoming City of The Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference since January 2017. He has extensive experience in
information technology, accounting, finance, corporate governance, strategic
planning, as well as merger and acquisition. He is also a non-executive
director of Evershine Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8022), a company
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") of the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Chan was an executive director of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (stock
code: 8148), a company listed on the GEM of Stock Exchange from October
2014 to November 2018. He was the chairman and executive director of PPS
International (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8201), a company listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange from June 2015 to July 2016. He was also an
executive director of China Taifeng Beddings Holdings Limited (stock code:
873), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from July
2016 to August 2016. He was also an executive director of Green Energy
Group Limited (stock code: 979), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange from February 2017 to July 2017. He was also an executive
director of Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited (stock code: 907),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from May 2017
to April 2018. He was also an independent non-executive director of Huiyin
Holdings Group Limited (formerly known as Share Economy Group Limited)
(stock code: 1178), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
from December 2017 to October 2018. He was also an independent non-
executive director of Ding He Mining Holdings Limited (stock code: 705), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from January 2018
to July 2018.

Mr. Sze Siu Bun, aged 51, is an executive Director of the Company. He has
about 22 years' experience in printing and dyeing industry. He has joined the
Group since 2005. He is involved in the overall management of the Group and
is responsible for overseeing daily management of the Hong Kong office.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Han Xingxing aged 37, is currently an independent non-executive Director
of the Company, the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company
(the “Nomination Committee”) and a member of the audit committee of the
Company (the “Audit Committee”) and the remuneration committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”). Ms. Han joined the Group in
September 2015. Ms. Han holds a bachelor degree of Information Warfare
Technology from Northwestern Polytechnical University. Ms. Han has over ten
years senior management experience in the field of information technology
development and investment. Ms. Han has been the general manager of
Qianhai Honghu Tairui Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited (AT /& %5 48
FiHRHEE CRID BBR AR since August 2014. She was the vice-president
of Shenzhen Bio Technology Trading Company Limited (&3l & K £ R &
2 B R A 7F]) between September 2012 and July 2014. She was the director
of Guanghe landscape Culture Communication Co., Ltd, ShanXi (1L 78 & 1
7k S Ab & 4R AR 17 78 BR 2 B])(SHA: 600234) between 16 November 2015 to
30 September 2016.

Mr. Li Yu, aged 46, is currently an independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee and Audit Committee. Mr. Li joined the Group in February 2017.
Mr. Li obtained a Master in Business Administration from Asia Metropolitan
University. Mr. Li had been working as a journalist and editor in various multi-
media institutions and companies. From 2007 to 2012, Mr. Li served as the
deputy general manager in Guangzhou Jiadi Culture Communication Co., Ltd.
(BINEB XL EE AR A E]). Subsequently, Mr. Li focused on participating
in social cultural development and investment management business. Mr. Li
has extensive experience in corporate culture development, brand promotion
as well as corporate sales and marketing management. Mr. Li was previously
the independent non-executive director of China Best Group Holding Limited
(stock code: 370) during the period from 26 June 2015 to 29 April 2016.

Ms. Wong Chi Yan, aged 37, is currently an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee. Ms. Wong joined the
Group in January 2019. Ms. Wong holds a Bachelor of Business Administration
degree in Accounting awarded by Hong Kong Baptist University and a Master
of Laws in International Corporate and Financial Law awarded by The University
of Wolverhampton, the United Kingdom. She is an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. Wong has extensive experiences
in auditing, accounting and financing as well as merger and acquisition. Ms.
Wong is currently an independent non-executive director of each of Success
Dragon International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1182), Munsun Capital
Group Limited (Stock Code: 1194), and Huiyin Holdings Group Limited (formerly
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)

EFCEER)

known as Share Economy Group Limited) (stock code: 1178), companies listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Wong is also the company
secretary of Goldway Education Group Limited (stock code: 8160), a company
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, and the company secretary and
authorised representative of each of Flyke International Holdings Ltd. (stock
code: 1998) and China Properties Investment Holdings Limited (stock code:
736), companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Wong
was an executive director and authorised representative of Elegance Optical
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 907) from February 2017 to
October 2018, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
She was also an executive director of CHerish Holdings Limited (stock code:
2113) from October 2017 to June 2018, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. She was an independent non-executive director of
Ding He Mining Holdings Limited (stock code: 705) from January 2018 to July
2018, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. She was
an independent non-executive director of Tech Pro Technology Development
Limited (stock code: 3823) from March 2017 to February 2019, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. She was an executive director
and authorised representative of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (stock
code: 8148) from May 2015 to October 2017, she was also an executive
director, company secretary and authorised representative of PPS International
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8201) from June 2015 to July 2016, both
companies listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. She was also the executive
director of China Taifeng Beddings Holdings Limited (stock code: 873) from
July 2016 to August 2016, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. She was the company secretary and authorised representative of
Fullsun International Holdings Group Co., Limited (formerly known as URIGHT
International Holdings Limited) (stock code: 627) a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange from September 2013 to April 2016.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.
Further discussion of these activities as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, including a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely future development
in the Group's business, can be found in the Management Discussion and
Analysis set out in pages 7 to 22 of this annual report. This discussion forms
part of this Report of the Directors.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in pages 87 to 88 of this
annual report.

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2017: Nil) and the Directors do
not recommend a payment of final dividend for the year (2017: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND
CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of movements in the Company’s convertible bonds, share capital
and share options and during the year are set out in notes 33, 35 and 36
respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of other equity-linked agreements are included in the section “Share
Option Scheme” contained in this Report of the Directors.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company does not have reserve available for
distribution. Under the Company Law of the Cayman Islands, the Company
may make distributions to its members out of the share premium in certain
circumstances subject to the provisions of the articles of association of the
Company (“Articles of Association”).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EFTHE(R)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH BRAFEFABZRZUBEE
PROFIT OR LOSS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held financial assets at fair value through R-ZE—N\F+-A=+—H AEBEHEELRQ
profit or loss of approximately RMB123,237,000, particulars of which are set  FEAEBRE 2K EEHARE123,237,000
out below: T BRFBHEHIMT

Unrealised gain/
(loss) on change
No of shares held % of in fair value for
by the Group as share capital Market value the year ended
Name of at 31 December ~ owned by the Investment at 31 December 31 December % of the Group’s
Securities 2018 Group cost 2018 2018 total assets
BE-Z-N\fF
X58 R=Z2-N\% +ZA=t+-HL
R=B-N\%¥ +=A FENRER
+T=HA=+-8H AEEEAH =t-H ATESY HAKEAEER
FENRGOEE RABD I RERA M E Wi/ (&8) yilsd
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1)
(Bt:E1) (K1) (K1)

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTL AREFTL AR®FTL

0286 Common Splendor 82,700,000 2.76% 61,751 46,465 (14,693) 3.2%
International Health
Industry Group Limited
REEREREXEE
BRRA

0007 Hong Kong Finance 31,850,000 0.8% 25,558 26,842 1,235 1.9%
Investment Holding
Group Limited

EREeRRAEREE
BRRA
8310 Dafeng Port Heshun 44,950,000 3.49% 27,458 15,390 (11,600) 1.1%
Technology Company
Limited
REBMERZRHER
NG
Others investment (Note 2) 34,539 2.4%
HEi k& (0 i2)
Total 123,237 8.6%
@t
Note =3
1. The investment cost, market value as at 31 December 2018, unrealized gain/(loss) 1. FRNRERE RZZ2-N\F+-A=+—H
on change in fair value and the percentage of the Group's total assets in the WhE - KERAFEZE N (BEEB)RER
the above table have been subject to rounding adjustments. Accordingly figures SEREEAOHEHEHEBREATRE - Bt
shown as totals may not be an arithmetic aggregation of the figures preceding TRABTAZERTIATETOEN &
them. e
2. The market value of each financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in 2. HtEEhSERATFEAABER2UBE
others investments as at 31 December 2018 are less than RMB15,000,000. ERZF-\FT+_A=Zt-HEOTEINRAR
#15,000,0007C
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five largest customers were less
than 30% of the Group’s total turnover.

Aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers were
less than 50% of the Group’s total purchases.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out in page 232 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Deng Jun lJie (Chairman)
(appointed on 15 June 2018)
Mr. Wang lia Si (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 27 November 2018)
Mr. Law Kin Fat
(resigned on 13 February 2019)
Mr. Chan Wai Kit
(appointed on 27 November 2018)
Mr. Sze Siu Bun
Mr. Tang Hon Kwo
(resigned on 15 June 2018)
Mr. Ma Zhi
(resigned on 15 June 2018)

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Li Wenfeng
(resigned on 1 August 2018)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam
(resigned on 31 January 2019)
Ms. Han Xingxing
Mr. Li Yu
Ms. Wong Chi Yan
(appointed on 31 January 2019)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EFEHE0R)

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Articles of Association.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Deng Jun Jie, Mr. Wang Jia Si, Mr.
Chan Wai Kit and Ms. Wong Chi Yan who were appointed as Director of the
Company 15 June 2018, 27 November 2018 and 31 January 2019 respectively,
shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with
Article 86(3) of the Articles of Association, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election of the forthcoming annual general meeting. In addition, in
accordance with Article 87(1) and (2) of the Articles of Association, Mr. Sze
Siu Bun will also retire from the Board at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

None of the Directors has entered or has proposed to enter into any service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the period under review.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 23 to 26 of this
annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EFEREGR)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS EEREBTHRASZR D E
As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors WR-Z—NE+-A=+—8 REAQFRE
or chief executives of the Company or their associates had any interests and/ B AP ESNEEFHL P EEMN(FEHFL P EK
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the I ]) 2352 B EMFE 2 E 2 M ATaC &% - kiR
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of 1% MR BIMEE+FE 2 EHBITAEETEITE
the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong %X ZH &R ([ZE<PA)FHAME RA T
(the “SFO")) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant FEZFZHE  ARREZXESTHA B
to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the HEMBE A T RAQF K BB EE (R &3
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by M HI &G HIEXVE 2 F %) T A - HBREK
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to D REEBE TR HEEETAEZ R FKE - AT
the Listing Rules, were as follows: N

Approximate

percentage of

the issued share
capital of the
Company as at

31 December 2018

(%)
EARDT
Capacity in which Total Interests held R=B-—N\&F
the Interests (Note 1) +t=ZA=+—H
Name of Director are held Nature of Interest iz Bks ERTREZ
Exopng FEERZEH Eaig (Hiat1) BRE D (%)
Deng Jun lie Beneficial owner Ordinary shares of 20,622,000 (L) 0.29
HK$0.10 each
&R EnBEA BREEI0ETZE AR
Interest of Controlled Ordinary shares of 1,535,388,000 (L) 21.76
Corporation HK$0.10 each
Tl E g BREECI0E T 2 E@K
Notes: Mt et -
1. The letters “L” and “S” denote long position and short position in the shares of 1. LRISIFABRRARRARRMDZ T AR K
the Company respectively. A o
2. Honghu Capital is wholly-owned and beneficially owned by Mr. Deng Jun Jie. 2. BERETEBERNCELEERHEAR
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EFEHE(R)

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER'S INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a director or a controlling shareholder of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at the end
of the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company has taken out appropriate insurance coverage for the Directors
and officers for protection against potential legal actions. The Board shall
review the insurance policy every year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the directors have an interest in any business constituting a competing
business to the Group.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the current independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation in respect of his/her independence
during the year pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. All the current
independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that they have been and
are independent since their appointment and as of the date of this annual
report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EFTHE(R)

FTERR

RZZB-N\F+ZA=+—8 BLAREMRA - A
TALT(ERRAREZTHHZESTRABHRINKRAR
A 8 B {0 ok A8 R A 0 R MR B B BAR R K B AT AE
BERERL /IR MARBEESRBEKIE
XVEBEE2 F 393 #F 2 6 X [7) 78 7~ B) B Bt 52 P 4% B =X
BARARBEESRPEGIEBKATEZ

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2018, to the best knowledge of the Company, the
following persons (other than Directors or chief executives of the Company)
had, or were deemed or taken to have interests and/or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company, which would be required to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the register

required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of substantial
shareholder

TERRZHES

Deng Jun Jie

HEN

Honghu Capital (Note 2)

BEREAANME2)

KKC Capital Limited (Note 3)

KKC Capital Limited (ff%3)

KKC Capital SPC — KKC Capital
High Growth Fund Segregated
Portfolio (“KKC Capital SPC")

KKC Capital SPC — KKC Capital
High Growth Fund Segregated
Portfolio ([KKC Capital SPC])

Capacity in which

the Interests
are held

BREREZZEH

Beneficial Owner

Interest of Controlled
Corporation
S EEER

Beneficial Owner

i

EEBEA

piL

Investment Manager

BELE

Beneficial Owner

Nature of Interest

BEME

Ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each

B rC A 8%

Approximate
percentage of

the issued share
capital of the
Company as at

31 December 2018

BREECICEIT ZE AR

Ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each

BREEIGET ZEBAR

Ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each

FRREE0E T LK

Ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each

BREEIE T ZEERK

Ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each

(%)

NN

Total Interests held R-ZE-N\F
(Note 1) +=A=+—8
FiEz@aEs BRTREAZ
(Btiz1) A E D L (%)
20,622,000 (L) 0.29
1,535,388,000 (L) 21.76
1,535,388,000 (L) 21.76
419,472,000 5.94
419,472,000 5.94

BREEIGET ZEBR

Annual Ri;po%; 201 8 33



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EFEHE(R)

Approximate

percentage of

the issued share
capital of the
Company as at

31 December 2018

(VO]
RN
Capacity in which Total Interests held R-ZZ-N\E
Name of substantial the Interests (Note 1) +=HA=+—~H
shareholder are held Nature of Interest iz ks ERTRAZ
TERRZER KEREEZ5H BEitE (K1) BAE DL (%)
Full House Asset Management Investment Manager Ordinary shares of 430,094,000 (L) 6.10
Company Limited (Note 4) HK$0.10 each
ERAEERARAR(MA4) REKE FREEIOE L2 EAR
Forward Fund SPC — Leader SP Beneficial Owner Ordinary shares of 430,094,000 (L) 6.10
“(Forward Fund SPC") HK$0.10 each
Forward Fund SPC — Leader SP Ez A A FREEIOBETLZERAR
([Forward Fund SPC])

Notes: B2

1. The letters “L” and “S” denote long position and short position in the shares of 1. [LIRISIF A BIR KR RARE R D Z TR R %K
the Company respectively. B e

2. Honghu Capital is wholly-owned and beneficially owned by Mr. Deng Jun Jie. 2. BRERNEBEANCELEETHA -

3. KKC Capital Limited is the investment manager of KKC Capital SPC and was 3. KKC Capital Limited £KKC Capital SPCZ % & #&
therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares in which KKC Capital SPC has 12 BEULAE AR KKC Capital SPCETRE 2 B 17
invested. R o

4. Full House Asset Management Limited is the investment manager of Forward 4. Full House Asset Management Limited /& Forward

Fund SPC and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares in which
Forward Fund Capital SPC has invested.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
on 15 June 2016. The Share Option Scheme became valid and effective for
a period of 10 years commencing from 15 June 2016. There was no change
in any terms of the Share Option Scheme. No share options were granted,
cancelled or lapsed during the year, and no outstanding share options during
the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Share Option Scheme”, at no time during
the year was the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or the chief executives of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate, and neither the Directors nor
the chief executives, nor any of their spouses or children under the age of
18, had any rights to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or any had
exercised any such right.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of Directors’ emoluments on a named basis are set out in note 12 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Remuneration for each of the Directors are determined based on, among

others, emoluments paid by comparable companies, his/her time of
commitment and responsibilities towards the Company and whether the

remuneration package is competitively attractive to retain him/her as director.

There were no compensation paid during the financial year or receivable by
Directors or past Directors for the loss of office as a director of any member
of the Group or of any other office in connection with the management of
the affairs of any member of the Group distinguishing between contractual
and other payments.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group's qualifying employees in Hong Kong participate in the Mandatory
Provident Fund (the “MPF”) in Hong Kong.

The assets of the MPF are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of trustee. The Group and each of the employees make
monthly mandatory contributions to the MPF schemes.

The employees of the PRC subsidiaries are members of the state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC government. The PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, to the best knowledge of the Directors and
based on the information publicly available to the Company, there is a sufficient
public float as required by the Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
ERTHE(R)

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the reporting period ended 31 December 2018, neither the Company

nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,

redeemed or sold any of the

Company’s listed securities.

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in information of

Directors are set out below:

Mr. Li Wenfeng has resigned as non-executive Director and the deputy
Chairman of the Board with effect from 1 August 2018.

The remuneration of Mr. Law Kin Fat has been increased by 25% with
effect from 2 August 2018 as compared with those in 2017 and he
subsequently has resigned as executive Director of the Company with
effect from 13 February 2019.

Mr. Wang Jiasi has been appointed as executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer with effect from 27 November 2018.

Mr. Chan Wai Kit has been appointed as executive Director with effect
from 27 November 2018.

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam has resigned as an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of the audit committee (the “"Audit Committee”)
and a member of the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
(the
Committee”) of the Company, in each case, with effect from 31 January

2019.

Committee”) and the nomination committee “Nomination

Ms. Wong Chi Yan (“Ms. Wong”) has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of Audit Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, in
each case, with effect from 31 January 2019. Ms. Wong has resigned
as an independent non-executive Director and a member of each of
the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of Tech Pro Technology Development Limited (stock code:
3823) with effect from 18 February 2019. Ms.
appointed as an independent non-executive director, the chairman of

Wong has been

audit committee and a member of the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee of Munsun Capital Group Limited (Stock Code:
1194), in each case, with effect from 1 March 2019.

Save for the above, there is no other change in information of the Directors

as at the date of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions are set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements. Other than the Acquisition of ICPS of Yong Tai and the
loan under the Loan Agreement as disclosed under “Connected Transactions”
in the section “Management Discussion and Analysis”, the Group did not have
other transactions constitutes connected or continuing connected transactions
of the Company which are not exempt from the reporting, announcement and

independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY
1. Objective
1.1 The objective of the Company’s dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) is to allow Shareholders to participate in the Company’s
profits whilst retaining adequate reserves for the Group's future
growth.

2. Factors to be considered
2.1 The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends
to the Shareholders, subject to the Articles of Association and all
applicable laws and regulations and the factors set out below.

(i) The Board shall consider the following factors of the Group
before declaring or recommending dividends:

. the Group's results of operations and cash flows;
. the Group's future prospects;

3 general business conditions;

3 the Group's capital requirements and surplus;

3 contractual restrictions on the payment of

dividends by the Company to its Shareholders or by
subsidiaries to the Company;

. taxation considerations;

3 possible effects on the Company’s creditworthiness;
3 statutory and regulatory restrictions; and

o any other factors the Board may deem relevant.
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EFEHE0R)

(ii) Depending on the financial conditions of the Group and
the conditions and factors as set out above, dividends may
be proposed and/or declared by the Board for a financial
year or period:

. interim dividend;
o final dividend,;
o special dividend; and

o any distribution of net profits that the Board may
deem appropriate.

3. Review of the Dividend Policy
3.1 The Board will review the Dividend Policy as appropriate from
time to time.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend a payment of final dividend for the year (2017:
Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members will be closed from Monday, 24 June 2019 to
Thursday, 27 June 2019 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer
of shares can be registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 21 June
2019. Tricor Investor Services Limited is located at Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
although there are no restrictions against such rights under company laws in
the Cayman lIslands.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of Company’s corporate governance policies and practices are set out in
the section “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 41 to 52 of this annual
report.

38 ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
THNERZRAERL A

(i REANEEHPBARR L
BHEREE  EFFAEMK
FESHHEELR SHEIRK

g
. FHEIRE
. RER R

. BRI AL S s AN

. E=ZeRAREENEM
FEMBE R -

3. REERRzZ®
31 EFRBEABERREAREK

s

=®R e

g
FEERASEE RN KABRE (CF— L5
) o

TEREROBFERT
ARBER_E—NENA-FTHB(EH =
—E-NAFARNAZTEE(EPN(EEMAREIE
EFRNEFERERMBEERL BRI HE
BOBPELFE ARGHEEERREFEXR
CTRELRENER  FTEBPXHRBEBAR
ZREEN-_ZTE-AFAA=Z+—HEHRA)T
FOB=THRIREARRNEERHBBLEES
RREBABELERART Mt AFTEER A8
H1835 & M AP 0225 o

BrRBERE

B 93 B @ BE 8 20 7 5 9 3 40 08 S O RO R 1T
AT BR + f  455 T2 40  3 9 S  ARAE 2
B -

EEER

ARRZEEBERABRERERZFBHNAFR
EMNES2E[REERRSE] 8 -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Details of the Company’s environmental policy and performance are set out
in the section “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 53
to 76 of this annual report.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

No Group's events after the reporting period are disclosed in the consolidated

financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established by the Board with written terms of
reference which are consistent with the provisions set out in the relevant
section of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to consider, among other things, the financial reporting matters.
The Audit Committee is principally responsible for reviewing the Company's
accounting principles and practices, discussing audit findings, risk management
and internal controls, and financial reporting matters with the management
of the Company. As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Wong Chi
Yan (as chairman), Ms. Han Xingxing and Mr. Li Yu.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee is of the opinion that the preparation of such results are in
compliance with the relevant accounting standards, rules and regulations and
that adequate disclosures have been made.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in line with the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (the “CG
Code”) and are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. Under its amended terms of reference dated 1 January 2019,
the Audit Committee is required, amongst other things, (1) to oversee the
relationship with the external auditors, (2) to review the Group's preliminary
results, interim results and annual financial statements, (3) to monitor the
integrity of the financial statements of the Group, (4) to review the scope,
extent and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system, internal audit
and risk management matters, and (5) to review the Group’s financial and
accounting policies.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EFTHE(R)

AUDITOR = #AD
An nomination proposal will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general RARGEEBRRBAFAES L BREEZFHRSA
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Moore Stephens CPA Limited as auditor EEAZESHES A ELKHER QR AELRF

of the Company. Z R -

On behalf of the Board REESE

Deng Jun Jie FE

Chairman B}EAR

Hong Kong, 27 March 2019 BB —T-NEFE=ZA=++tH
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate governance
standard and procedures to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality
of disclosure in the interest of its Shareholders. The corporate governance
principles of the Company emphasize a quality board, transparency and
accountability to all Shareholders.

The Directors are in the opinion that the Company has complied with the
applicable code provisions in the CG Code during the year ended 31 December
2018 except the following deviation.

In respect of code provision A.6.7 of the Corporate Governance Code, Ms.
Han Xingxing, being independent non-executive Director was unable to attend
the annual general meeting held on 1 June 2018 (the “2018 AGM") due to
other commitments. Mr. Li Yu, being independent non-executive Director was
unable to attend the extraordinary general meeting held on 16 March 2018
and the 2018 AGM due to other commitments. The Company shall continue
to communicate with the Directors and make best effort to ensure their
availabilities to attend general meetings and avoid time conflict.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and performance. The
management are delegated with the authority and responsibilities by the Board
for the day-to-day management and operations of the Group. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the board committees.
Further details of these committees are set out in this report.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information in relation
to the Company as well as the advice and services of the company secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”), if and when required, with a view to
ensure that the Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed. There are established procedures for Directors to seek independent
professional advice for them to discharge their duties and responsibilities at
the Company’s expenses, where appropriate.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in the CG Code which included developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance, training
and continuous professional development of Directors, and reviewing the
Company’s compliance with respect of the code provision in the CG Code and
disclosures in this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELIHE(R)

Composition

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors from different business and professional fields. The
Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business and professional expertise, experiences and
independent judgement to the Board for its efficient and effective delivery of
the Board function.

The compositions of the Directors in office during the year and up to the
date of this annual report are set out in the “Report of the Directors” in this

annual report on page 29.

The Board is principally responsible for formulating business strategies and
monitoring the performance of the business of the Group. The Board decides
on corporate strategies, approves overall business plans, evaluates the Group’s
financial performance and management and reviews the financial and internal
control system. Other than the daily operational decisions which are delegated
to the management of the Group, most of the decisions are taken by the Board.
Specific tasks that the Board delegates to the Group’s management include
the implementation of strategies approved by the Board, the monitoring of
operating budgets, the implementation of internal control procedures and the
ensuring of compliance with relevant statutory requirements and other rules

and regulations.

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Directors

At the date of the report, Mr. Deng Jun Jie is the Chairman of the Board.
During the year, Mr. Wang Jia Si was appointed as the chief executive officer
of the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”) on 27 November 2018. The
roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are served by different
individuals to achieve a balance of authority and power. The main responsibility
of the Chairman is to lead the Board and manage its work to ensure that it
effectively operates and fully discharges its responsibilities. Supported by the
members of committees of the Board, the Chief Executive Officer is responsible
for the day-to-day management of the Group’s business, recommending
strategies to the Board, and determining and implementing operational
decisions.

Directors’ and Officer’s Insurance
The Company has purchased the directors’ and officers’ liability insurance for
the members of the Board for the year to provide protection against potential

claims arising from the lawful discharge of duties by the Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Non-Executive Directors

All the existing independent non-executive Directors were appointed for a
specific term. Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a specific term, subject to
renewal, retirement by rotation and re-election at the general meetings of the
Company in accordance with the Articles of Association.

During the year under review, the Chairman, being an executive Director, had
held meetings with independent non-executive Directors without the presence
of other executive Directors.

Confirmation of Independence

Throughout the period and up to the date of this report, the Company has
complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10 of the Listing Rules. It
requires that at least one of the independent non-executive Directors must
have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director of their independence pursuant
to the requirements of rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. As such, all independent
non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of Directors
Each of the executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors has
entered into a service contract or letter of appointment with the Company
for a specific term. Such term is subject to her/his re-appointment by the
Company at an annual general meeting upon such Director’s retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and offering herselfhimself for re-
election. Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the following general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election and any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next annual general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election. Also, pursuant to the Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting, at least one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation,
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

Compliance with the Model Code for Directors’ Securities
Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its model code for securities transactions by Directors. Having made specific
enquiries, all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code during the period ended 31 December 2018.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ERERHE (W)

Directors’ continuous training and development

The Directors are committed to comply with the CG Code A.6.5 concerning
continuous professional development and understand the importance to
constantly enhance and refresh their knowledge and skills. In this connection,
the Directors have attended formal training seminars and,/or study related
materials relevant to directors’ duties and responsibilities during the year. All
Directors have confirmed that they have met the minimum requirements under
the CG Code A.6.5 for the year ended 31 December 2018 and provided such
training record to the Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Details of Directors’ and the Chief Executive Officer 's remuneration are set
out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

Accordingly to Code B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of other

members of senior management (other than directors) by band for the year
ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:

Remuneration bands

ESoRERIIRERR

EERNETRAFESERROCEER TR
A.6.5 5 EBA B 1B A5 M B 38 8T 7R & 6 S A e B
BENBREZ -t BEFERFALFEERE
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ER - 2REZHOHIAANGNBE_ZT-N\F
ToA=T-ALFERENCEERTAALS
Bz RERELERARAEREBBEIZI L -

EERSREEEZFM

EERTREEHZFHFBERN G M REN
120

BELEEATAZTABISK BE-T—N

FHoA=t - HLFERRERBAMRE (T
BREF)ZHFHMERWOT:

Number of persons

B = & AE
HK$nil to HK$1,000,000 =% T 1,000,000 7T -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 1,000,001/ 7T 23,000,000/ 7T 4
BOARD COMMITTEES EEZ8T
The Board has established the following Board committees to oversee the EFREDRIUNUTTEEZZEGEEAEERZET

particular aspects of the Group's affairs.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established an Audit Committee with written terms of reference
in compliance with, where applicable, the CG Code of the Listing Rules.
The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors and is chaired by Ms. Wong Chi Yan and with Ms. Han Xingxing
and Mr. Li Yu as members. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are,
among others, to review the financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control system of the Group, to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditors, to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors,
to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable standard,
and to review the annual and interim financial statements and accounting
policies of the Group. The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year to
carry out the aforesaid primary duties. Minutes of the meetings are kept by
the Company Secretary of the Company at the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The members of the Audit Committee during the year and their attendance

were as follows:

ERERHE(R)

Meeting attended/
Eligible to attend

Independent Non-Executive directors BHEZEE
BYFPTES HEERHEZEE
Ms. Han Xingxing BEELL 2/2
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (resigned on 31 January 2019) REMELE(R-_Z—NAEFE—A=+—HFT) 2/2
Mr. Li Yu FEREE 2/2

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established the Remuneration Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with, where applicable, the CG Code of the Listing
Rules. The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Li Yu and with Ms. Wong Chi Yan
and Ms. Han Xingxing as members. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are, among others, to make recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and to determine with delegated responsibility the remuneration
packages of executive Directors and senior management. In fulfilling the
functions, the Remuneration Committee will take into consideration factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, respective time commitment
and responsibilities of the Directors and senior management and whether the
remuneration packages are competitively attractive to retain the Directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee meets at any time when
necessary and desirable to carry out the aforesaid duties but in any event at
least once a year. Minutes of the meeting are kept by the Company Secretary
at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

The members of the Remuneration Committee during the year and their

attendance were as follows:
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Meeting attended/
Eligible to attend

Independent Non-Executive directors BHEZEE
BYFPTES BEERHEZEE
Ms. Han Xingxing BEEL+ 4/4
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (resigned on 31 January 2019) REMEL(R-_Z—NAE—A=+—HET) 4/4
Mr. Li Yu FEEE 4/4
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ERERHE (W)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established the Nomination Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with, where applicable, the CG Code of the Listing
Rules. The Nomination Committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors and is chaired by Ms. Han Xingxing and with Ms. Wong
Chi Yan and Mr. Li Yu as members. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are, among others, to review the composition of the Board and
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorship. With a view to achieving and maintaining a sustainable and
balanced development, the Company sees diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. The Nomination Committee meets at any time when necessary
and desirable to carry out the aforesaid duties but in any event at least once
a year. Minutes of the meeting are kept by the Company Secretary at the
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Pursuant to the code provision A.5.6 of the CG Code, listed issuers are required
to adopt a board diversity policy. The Board has adopted a board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) with a view to achieving a sustainable and
balanced development of our Group. In designing the Board’s composition,
board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board. The Board Diversity Policy is reviewed annually by the Nomination
Committee, and where appropriate, revisions will be made with the approval
from the Board.

The members of the Nomination Committee during the year and their
attendance were as follows:
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Meeting attended/
Eligible to attend

Independent Non-Executive directors BEHEZEE

BIUFHTES REERUEZEE

Ms. Han Xingxing BEELL 4/4

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (resigned on 31 January 2019) SRBEMEE(R =T —HLF—A=+—HE ) 4/4

Mr. Li Yu FERAE 4/4
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Nomination Policy and Procedure

The Board should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business. To
ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed without undue
disruption, there should be a formal, considered and transparent procedure
for selection, appointment and re-appointment of Directors, as well as plans
in place for orderly succession (if considered necessary), including periodical
review of such plans. The appointment of a new director (to be an additional
director or fill a casual vacancy as and when it arises) or any re-appointment
of directors is a matter for decision by the Board upon the recommendation

of the proposed candidate by the Nomination Committee.

The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified shall
be his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as well as the effective
carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities which, in particular, are set

out as follows:

(a) participating in Board meetings to bring an independent judgment on
issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standards of conducts;

(b)  taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

(© serving on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee (in the case of candidate for non-executive
director) and other relevant Board Committees, if invited;

(d) bringing a range of business and financial experience to the Board,
giving the Board and any committees on which he or she serves the
benefit of his or her skills, expertise, and varied backgrounds and
qualifications and diversity through attendance and participation in the
Board/committee meetings;

(e) scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed corporate
goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of performance;

(f) ensuring the committees on which he or she serves to perform their
powers and functions conferred on them by the Board; and

(9) conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitutional documents of the Company or imposed by legislation or
the Listing Rules, where appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERELERE(R)

BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS EEgEeERREARS

The Board holds at least four meetings in a financial year and meets at any ZZ@REBEMBEESLRITNREE T
other times as and when required, among others, to review financial and RHEEHRTHEIINEZ  UW(HFRE) BT AE
internal control, risk management, corporate governance, company strategy B Z B R ARG c BEBREE CEES A
and operating performance of the Group. Minutes of the Board meetings are IR EEXRE - EZTC L BAATWE
kept by the Company Secretary for record and are available for inspection by #1F » A EER AR T R HMEH -

the Directors and auditors of the Company.

The individual attendance record of each Director in office during the year REEZE-_ZET—N\F+_A=Z+—BLEFELETZ
ended 31 December 2018 at the Board meetings and general meetings is set SEEREZTEEZMABRERT 2 HEB LT
out below: U

Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

BHEZEE
REEBHEZER
Board General

Name of Directors Meetings Meetings
EEng EEEE; BRERRE
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Deng Jun Jie (Chairman) BEREEER)

(appointed on 15 June 2018) (RZFE—N\FARAT+HERAEZMT) 4/5 0/0
Mr. Wang Jia Si (Chief Executive Officer) — YEREN % £ (7T B 48 )

(appointed on 27 November 2018) (RZT—N\F+—A=ZTtREZME) 0/1 0/0
Mr. Law Kin Fat BRERERE

(resigned on 13 February 2019) (RZZE-—NF-_AT=BET) 10/11 212
Mr. Chan Wai Kit R ERT

(appointed on 27 November 2018) (RZZE—N\EFE+—A-+tHEZMT) 11 0/0
Mr. Sze Siu Bun B i 5 A 10/11 0/2
Mr. Tang Hon Kwo BHEXREE

(resigned on 15 June 2018) (RZZE-N\FXATHAEE 6/6 2/2
Mr. Ma zhi BEEE

(resigned on 1 June 2018) (R=ZZ—N\FRA—HHE) 4/5 0/1
Non-Executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Li Wenfeng I E

(resigned on 1 August 2018) (R=ZZ—N\FNR—BE&T) 8/8 2/2

Independent Non-Executive Director: BIYFHTESE:

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam SREBMAEE

(resigned on 31 January 2019) (RZF—NF—A=+—HEM 11/11 2/2
Ms. Han Xingxing HEEXLL 11/11 12
Mr. Li Yu FEEE 11/11 0/2

All current Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with FTEBTEZESFY AR THBEREMAAHE RETZ
the Articles of Association. BRIE °
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company has not set up a corporate governance committee. However, the
Board has adopted the written terms of reference on Corporate Governance in
compliance with the CG Code of the Listing Rules and the Board is responsible
for performing the corporate governance duties set out therein. The Board
has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’'s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, the Company’s code of conduct and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and the disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Law Wai Ip Vincent (“Mr. Law"”) was appointed on 14 December 2018 as
the Company Secretary and is a full time employee of the Group. During the
year ended 31 December 2018, Mr. Law has duly complied with the relevant
professional training requirements under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group and have adopted the accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and complied with the requirements of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards which also include Hong Kong Accounting
Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. As at 31 December 2018, Directors are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the financial statements of the
Company on a going concern basis. The accounting systems and internal
control of the Company are designed to prevent any misappropriation of the
Company’s assets, any unauthorised transactions as well as to ensure the
accuracy of the accounting records and the true and fairness of the financial
statements.

The Board also acknowledges its responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable financial report with sufficient disclosures as required under the
Listing Rules, and to report to the regulators as to information required to be
disclosed pursuant to the statutory requirements. The reporting responsibilities
of the Company’s independent auditor are set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 77 to 86.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELIHE(R)

Risk management and internal control

The Board recognises it has overall responsibility of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems and reviews their effectiveness on an ongoing
basis. The board oversees the management in the design, implementation and

monitoring of the risk management internal control systems.

Risk assessment and internal control

In assisting the Board for evaluating and determining the risks it is willing to
take in achieving its strategic objective, the Board has engaged an independent
advisory firm to conduct a risk assessment. The assessment adopted a risk
model, a framework for helping the board to identify, evaluate and prioritise
the nature and extend of the business risks including strategic risks, operation
risks, financial risks as well as information risks. The assessment includes
interviewing the directors and senior management along with qualitative
analysis to evaluate the significance and likelihood in occurrence of the risks.

The management has reviewed the results of the risk assessment and has provided a
confirmation to the Board that the Group has effective risk management and internal
control systems to provide reasonable, though not absolute, assurance for mitigating
the risks that may deter the Group from achieving its business objectives in any
material aspects. The management reviews and evaluates the design of internal
controls in place and monitors their effectiveness on a regular basis, and reports
to the Audit Committee on any significantly issues. The Group has established a
defined management structure with clear lines of reporting, limits of authority,
operational policies and procedures to ensure reliability of operational efficiency and
safety, financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Inside information

The Company recognises the significance of consistent practices of fair
disclosure with the aim of disclosing inside information in a timely and accurate
manner. The Company has a policy with regard to the principles and procedures
for handling and disseminating its inside information in compliance with the
requirement under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap 571
of the laws of Hong Kong) and the Listing Rules.

The handling and dissemination of inside information of the Company is strictly
controlled and remains confidential including but not limited by the following ways:

o Restrict access to inside information, if practicable, to the highest level
of management/or to a limited number of employees on a need-to-
know basis;

o Reminder to employees who are in possession of inside information are

fully conversant with their obligations to preserve confidentiality;

o Ensure appropriate confidentiality agreements are in place when the
Company enters into significant negotiations or dealings with third
party; and

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

3 Inside information is handled and communicated by designated persons
to outside third party. The Board and the senior management review
the safety measures regularly to ensure inside information is properly
handled and disseminated.

Internal audit function

The Audit Committee has outsourced the internal audit function to the same
independent advisory firm that has conducted the risk assessment. The Audit
Committee was involved in approving the Group's internal audit plan. The plan
will be reviewed and if necessary, updated according to the changing business
environment and risk exposure. This year, the internal auditors conducted
internal audit in certain areas of the securities investment and brokerage
services business and the media, cultural and entertainment business. The
internal auditors was not aware of any significant internal control weaknesses;
they reported the findings and recommendations for improvements to the
Audit Committee. The Board adopted the results of the internal audit report
and ensured that the management has implemented the recommendations for
improvement stipulated by the internal audits.

Based on the risk assessment, the risk management and internal control
systems that management has put in place, and the results of the internal
audits; the Board concluded that the Group has effective risk management
and internal control systems covering all material aspects including financial,
operational and compliance controls.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the fees paid and payable to the
Group’s auditor, Moore Stephens CPA Limited, in respect of their statutory
audit and other audit services provided to the Group were as follows:

ERERHE(R)
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Amount

&=

(HK$'000)
(F&T)

Type of services RsES

Statutory audit services EEEZRG 1,330,000

Non-statutory audit services (Note) EEEEZ R (M i) 424,500
1,754,500

Note: They include fee for supplemental circular dated on 24 October 2018 and tax
compliance service for the Company and certain Hong Kong subsidiaries of the

Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ERERHE (W)

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with the
Shareholders and is committed to providing clear and full performance
information of the Group to the Shareholders. Information in relation to the
Group is disseminated to Shareholders in a timely manner through a number
of formal channels, which include interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars. Additional information of the Group is also available to the
Shareholders on the Group’s website. The Group values feedback from the
Shareholders to foster investor relationships.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles, any one or more shareholders holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company. The aforesaid written
requisition must state the objects of the meeting and must be signed by the
relevant shareholder(s) and deposited at the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong at 33 Dai Shing Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate, Tai Po, New Territories,
Hong Kong.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a director
of the Company are available on the Group’s designated website for corporate
communications (www.atvgroup.com.hk).

Enquiries raised by any Shareholder can be forwarded to the Board at the
Company’s head office in Hong Kong at 33 Dai Shing Street, Tai Po Industrial
Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

This year, we continue to present our report in accordance with the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ESG Reporting Guide ("ESG Guide”), under
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Period”), the Group primarily
engaged in four major business streams including (i) Fabrics and Trading
Business; (ii) money lending business; (iii) securities investment and brokerage
services business; and (iv) media, cultural and entertainment business.

The report content is focused mainly on the production factories and offices
of printing and dyeing business in Fujian, and the Group’s Hong Kong
headquarters office, which are the areas that represent the majority of the

Group’s social, environmental and economic impacts.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT
Following the discussion with our senior management and operational staff,
we have identified the ESG issues relevant to the Group, the identified ESG
issues have been assessed by considering their materiality and importance to
our principle of activities, stakeholders as well as the Group. The ESG issues
considered to be material are listed below:

BE ERELIHES

]
REE > RMEERE ETRBME —+ LMt
CEEBBARIMERIBCGRE HEREA
WEESINBERE  HERERESIDRERA
wmE -

BEZ—\F+-A=t+—HBLEFE(KHH]D
AEEREMEAIEEXRR  BROMHLRESE
B(DVMEXER: (NEFREMELERBER:
R(v)BeE  XERIREEET -

BEARTEETRERINLEEBNBREE
THMPLEURKEENTELTRAE 5
UMEAEEEHE REMKEFLZENT
Zih 75

EEMFM
EEFMNSREEZEREBASTRE R
MEBAHEREESHZRE HERERE
R YEERGEAMEAHRMOEIEREY -
MEAEENRANEENEZN  HEEDEG
ZRE  HERERFRFELNMG - KEAEE
ZRE - HeREREFESINMT

Annual R;p%% 201 8 53



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BR ERELHE(R)

ESG aspects as set forth in the ESG Reporting Guide Material ESG issues

(RE HEREABSHEIDABENRE - HERERER EENRE HERERER

A. Environmental

BIR
Al Emissions ° Emission from vehicle usage
BER B E RPN
° Sewage discharge
757K BER
° Waste gas emission
% SR HE AR
° Greenhouse gas emissions
= SRR B
° Hazardous waste gas emission
BEERIEN
o Hazardous solid waste emission
BEEREMHR
. Non-hazardous solid waste emission
EREE R EY M
A2 Use of resources . Electricity
BIR{E R S
. Water
X
° Steam gas
A
o Packaging materials for finished goods
BRmzBEME
A3 The environment and natural resources ° Measures in reducing environmental impact
RERRXKAER PRERHIRR X ENEG
B.  Social
e
B1 Employment . Labour practices
= 1% BTER
B2 Health and safety ° Workplace health and safety
RREEZZ ITHESMERAEZ S
B3 Development and training . Staff development and training
R RIE BIEEKE
B4  Labour standards o Anti-child and forced labour
& T AR Pii-& T Magwlss T
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BR MERELIHE(R)

Material ESG issues

EENRE HERERER

ESG aspects as set forth in the ESG Reporting Guide

(RE HEREABSEIDABENRE - HERERER

B5  Supply chain management o Supplier management
frEEE R HEmER
B6 Product responsibility ° Product and service responsibility, quality assurance,
EmEMT customer service, safeguarding customer assets
ERfRGET EERE FPRB REXZFPEE
B7 Anti-corruption ° Anti-corruption policy
R&B &5 R
B8 Community investment ° Community involvement
HERE trE2H
Environmental A. RIE

The Group’s Fabrics and Trading Business is closely related to
environmental protection and the usage of natural resources. The
Fabrics and Trading Business is operated in PRC with production
factories located at Fujian Province. It represents the majority of the
environmental issues of the Group. The Fabric and Trading Business
subsidiaries of the Group strictly comply with the laws and regulations in
the PRC, including but not limited to the “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution”,
the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
the “Environmental Protection Law of the
and the
of China on Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Waste”,
in respect of prevention and control of environmental pollution of

Control of Water Pollution”,
People’s Republic of China” “Law of the People’s Republic
as well as the local rules and standards in the PRC

discarded dangerous chemicals, standard of air pollutants and integrated
wastewater discharge standard.

The Group's Hong Kong headquarters office only has indirect carbon
emissions from electricity due to the business nature of the office.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BR ERELHE(R)

56

Emissions from vehicle usage

Nitrogen oxides (NOx) and particulate matters (PM)
Emissions.

During our operation, the usage of private cars and light good vehicles
generate the emission of nitrogen oxides and particulate matters. The
approximate amount of nitrogen oxides (NOx) and particulate matters
produced from our operation in China regions are shown in the table

below:

EHHEHAELEZHRY

& &ML YI(INOX) ] 55 )F #1 7 (PM)
HERL

ERMMLERED  AEALRERS
AEEmMELRALYRB TR TR -
RMETEBENEEREEZAELY
(NOX) B BRI F I B IN TR TR

Number of private cars LREEE
Number of light good vehicles HAFEHE
Total NOx emissions (g) NOxHFhi 42 2 (52)
Total PM emissions (g) PMEER 42 2 (52)

(Note: only business in China region has private cars and light good vehicles)

In respect of reducing the nitrogen oxides and particulate matters
emissions, the Group is committed to reduce and ensure the efficient
usage of private cars and light good vehicles. The Group has
implemented the following measures so as to achieve the environmental
friendly approach:

o Avoid peak hour traffic

o Encourage the use of public transport
o Encourage the use of bicycle
o Utilise the vehicle usage by car pooling with different staff

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Sewage discharge

Stable water supply is crucial to the Group’s dyeing operation in
Fujian’s factory where the Group currently sources water from the
local government. The Group's requires the input of water resources in
several production processes and the processing of finished goods such
as sourcing, bleaching, dyeing, mercerising and shrinking. The amount
of sewage discharge produced from our factory is shown in the table
below:

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BR MERELIHEE(R)

55K HEH
RENHEKERAEEBEETHOREEE
JEREE - AKE B AT 75 B 2 EUK
HE - AEEETEETIFARGEK®
WA IR B RE HKAENTES
BREEREKER - KA THELENS
KPR EM TR

BB (R ) (W)

Sewage discharge in China (tonnes)

The Group is aware of the potential environmental impact of the sewage
generated by the Group's sourcing, bleaching, dyeing, mercerising and
shrinking processes. The use of sodium hydroxide within the mercerising
process, generate waste water containing diluted sodium hydroxide
which is toxic and harmful. The waste water generated from the
manufacturing process contains high value of Chemical Oxygen Demand
("COD"). COD is the total amount of oxygen required to chemically
oxidise the biodegradable and nonbiodegradable organic. Higher COD
levels mean a greater amount of oxidisable organic material in the
sewage discharge, which will reduce dissolved oxygen (DO) levels. A
reduction in DO can lead to anaerobic conditions, which is deleterious
to higher aquatic life forms. Waste water currently discharged by the
Group is processed by a third-party contractor. Waste water treatment
service is charged in a monthly basis according to emission volume
respectively.

In terms of waste water recycling, the Group is continuously looking
possible way to enhance recycling of waste water. The cooling water
involved in singeing, shrinking, drying and the waste water produced
from dehydration are all collected and reused for bleaching and dyeing
process. The Group also intends to construct its own waste water
treatment plan, recycle sodium hydroxide and reuse the waste water
from mercerising machines into scouring and bleaching machines for
desizing fabrics, reducing waste water discharge and concentration
of dilute sodium hydroxide in the waste water produced. Besides, the
Group also installed automatic facilities for mercerising machine, to
enhance efficient use of alkali and reduce waste water emission.

325,339 373,953
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Waste gas emissions

Waste gas emission is minor for the Group’s fabric manufacturing
business. Singeing, sueding and setting are the major processes in fabric
processing and printing business to remove impurities in raw fabrics.
Within the running process of singeing, sueding and setting machines,
unintentional air pollutants like particulate matters and fumes are
generated.

The Group has complied with “Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution” and the
“Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China”.

Greenhouse gas emissions

Apart from the direct emission of particulate matters and fumes, we
have indirect greenhouse gases emissions (Scope 2), principally resulting
from electricity consumed at the factories in Fujian and office in Hong
Kong. In respect to the approximate indirect amount of carbon dioxide
("CO,") generated from our electrical usage in Hong Kong's office and

China's factory, the figures are shown in the table below:

Hong Kong BE

China |

Total A&

Intensity (tonnes/turnover in RMB’000) TEME,/ Tt ARE
BEE)

In terms of reducing the carbon footprint, The Group has implemented
guidelines and policies for energy saving management which include
in-house rules and regulations for both office and factory employees
to follow. Please refer to “Resources consumption — electricity saving
measures”.
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BERBHK
BEEFREIANFRERN - HAIIME
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2018 2017
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Total CO, Total CO,
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(tonnes) (tonnes)
“HEmEE Z& bR EE
BmEE (W) mEe ()
2,613,639.85 12.80
6,260.17 7,033.90
2,619,900.02 7,046.70
15.78 0.05

RELMERME ARECEEAHEE
BEETHNBE SBRABKREHNE -
NERAENIHETET - H2RIER
HFE — ERE ] -



Hazardous waste gas emission

The Group is aware of the potential environmental impact of the
hazardous waste gas generated by the Group’s setting processes.
Singeing and setting machines are used for printing fabrics and there
is hazardous waste emission during the production process.

The Group has complied with Emission Standard of Pollutants for
Synthetic Leather and Artificial Leather Industry (GB21902-2008) and
passed National Standard of Air quality-Determination of Formaldehyde-
Acetylacetone Spectrophotometric Method (GB/T 15516-1995).

Hazardous solid waste emission

For the process of printing fabrics, minimal type of hazardous solid
waste is generated during the production process of printing fabrics.
The Group's production process involved the following hazardous solid

waste emissions figures:
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BEEERHEM

AEEERTRTIFEANEERAHR
SBEYE - BERFTEET AR
RIfR MAeEEBRTEHREEER -

AEBRHEBEREHRAEETESR
) HE IZ #E) (GB 21902-2008) 3 2 i 18 &
RIEE(EREEFEOANTE BRI S
3¢ 3¢ &%) (GB/T 15516-1995) °

BEEIBEYH

BLEDRI R T F T S - EVRIA B T i
HEEESBEEEEREN - AR
4 BB IE R B8 AT T E A
X

Waste type Y 5 Rl
Oil polluted fabrics and waste oil DR = P
(Weight (kg)) (B2 (FR))
Intensity (kg/PRC turnover in RMB’000) ZE(FR/TTARES
EEH)

The Group is dedicated to proper management of the hazardous solid
waste. Specific area is assigned for the temporary storage of hazardous
waste for safety purpose. Licensed third party is engaged for the
collection of the waste for recycle and reuse purpose.

221 263

0.0023 0.0024

AEBYNHEEEEEMETZEEE
tnez 2IEFEREERERAES
BEY - BRE=ZTEEZRREEHEY
ERRAM -
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Non-hazardous solid waste emission
Besides hazardous solid waste, numerous types of non-hazardous solid
waste are generated during the production process of printing fabrics.
The Group is dedicated to managing waste in a responsible way and
strives to optimise the use of resources. The Group recorded the
following non-hazardous waste emissions figures:

RONBEEREMRESE
BERBANEY

Waste Collected by external qualified

units for recycle and reuse purpose

JiE A0 B (F52)
EEEE  ERK(FR)
PRARERER ()

Wasted fabrics (kg)
Suede dust, hatha dust (kg)
Plastic container and iron drum (pieces)

Waste Collected by the Sanitation RELEBHKEE

Department for disposal BEENEY

Sludge (kg) W (F7=)

Non-recyclable domestic and 0] [B1 W B A 0E BT IR &
industrial waste (kg) TEEY(TR)

Total waste disposed (kg) EEEMESE(TR)

Intensity (kg/PRC turnover in RMB’000) ZE(FR/TTARES

HEH)

As a corporate citizen to enhance the optimise recycling and reusing
of our waste, the Group’s non-hazardous wastes like wasted fabrics,
suede dust, hatha dust, plastic container and scrap iron are collected
by external qualified units for recycle and reuse purposes. General
garbage which is non-recyclable is cleaned by the sanitation department
regularly.

During the Period, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations related to environmental
protection.
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Use of Resources

The Group adheres to the concept of energy conservation and emission
reduction for green production. The major resources used by the Group
are principally attributed to electricity in Fujian’s factory and Hong
Kong's headquarter; water and steam gas consumed at the factory in
Fujian, while the water charges of Hong Kong's headquarter is included
in the management service fee. The Group did not encounter any
problems in sourcing water that is fit for purpose. We aim to improve
our energy utilisation efficiency to achieve low-carbon practices and
emission reduction throughout our production and operation, and strive
to save the resources. The Group’s electricity, water, steam are shown
in the following tables:

Electricity consumption

BE eRkEaHE(HE)

BREHRH

AEBESBHERFNES  BEREZESE
E-AEEEANIEERIERBRT
BB BABOES  BETRBBENIK
MER MBEBEBENFEKEIFAEE
ERN - HZMNBREZRERMOEERER
ME - EHRMOEENEEHERERT
FHUREE - BHEBHEER - ARENES -
KEFEARAENTRAT

R
&
bl

2018

—E-N\F
Electricity Electricity
consumption consumption
(Kwh) (Kwh)

REE(TRR)
Hong Kong &% 5,113,091 16,160
China H E 7,803,659 8,867,794
Total A&t 12,916,750 8,883,954
Intensity (Kwh/turnover in RMB’000) ZE(FRE/TTARE 78 59

)

Water consumption

China =2 N e

Intensity (Cubic meters/PRC turnover

in RMB’000) FEEERE)

EEGLAR/ITTARYE

ok E
2018
—E-N\F
Water

2017
—E—tF
Water

consumption

consumption

(Cubic meters) (Cubic meters)

Ak & (375 K) K& (37 75 K)
244,645 291,245
2.56 217
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Steam consumption in China

AU E ()

Total steam consumption (tonnes) wmzE A AE ()

The Group is dedicated to maintain consumption saving management for

electricity, water and steam by applying in-house rules and regulations

for both office and factory employees to follow. Saving measures

include:

Electricity saving measures

Applied variable frequency air compressor to reduce electricity
consumption.

Applied energy saving initiatives including maximising the use
of natural light and energy-saving lighting systems, applying
optimal temperature setting of air-conditioning; switching off air-
conditioning systems and lighting in vacant working areas after
operation hours; turning off office equipment when not in use.

Water saving measures

Reused water produced from singeing machines and preshrinking
machines for production process.

Modified water tanks of scouring and bleaching machines,
mercerising machine and dyeing machines to reduce storage
water surface areas, thus reduce water and steam consumption.

Modified scouring and bleaching machines to shorten the
production process and reduce electricity, water and steam

consumption.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Steam saving measures
3 Replaced heating facilities in scouring and bleaching machines to
enhance the effectiveness.

o Applied high-capacity roller into dryer machines, reducing 30%
of water retained in fabrics, thus saving steam consumption.

o Installed humidity meter and set humidity standard to control the
process of drying and avoid overheating, thus reducing steam

consumption.

3 Optimised draining valve of dryer machines to reduce outflow of
steam gas.
o Recycled steam from heat-setting stenter and various machines.

Packaging materials

The packaging materials used by the Group are mainly from raw fabrics
packaging bags, cartons, paper tubes, auxiliaries bags and other sundry
packaging materials. The Group recorded the following packaging

materials usage:

Packaging materials

Raw fabrics packaging bags, cartons, paper MEme s M- 4
tubes and other sundry items EMEEmE

Auxiliaries bags B B &%

Total packaging materials BEME &R

The Group is dedicated to consume the least packaging materials as
possible. It is the Group’s practice to implement production planning
in a timely basis so as to assess the approximate amount of packaging
materials needed for the period. The Group is also committed to source
recyclable packaging materials from suppliers with eco-friendly practice
and engagement.

BE eRkEaHE(HE)

;ﬁ_/\/_‘{/_ﬁlj /ll/jfﬁ 27_@
. RNk RUIDERGR F-opillE=" i

‘e -

. EE MR KA E R
A%_Lﬂli B BRE30% M TEKE R
TFERAE -

53

wi

. REREHARTREEE BE
HEEAHEE  BERERER
B B - TR > 2 S 5

=
=z °

. BlEHE BB KR BERKAIR
KoBAPEAERE -

. (o] 4o (=1 F 2 L TE B A A H 25 O

ZEYoRE
AEEERANEEMBIERAR M X
RMEH HE PEARKEMAZEEE
ME e REESSEEMHBENT

2018 2017

—E-N\E —tF

Amount (Kg) Amount (Kg)

A& (TR) HE(Fr)

wE R 122,407 127,735

15,425 17,730

137,832 145,465
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Environment and natural resources

In terms of minimising the environmental impact, the Group has put
its initiative in reducing the emission of sewage discharge, waste gas,
hazardous waste gas as well as the electricity and water consumption

as above mentioned.

With respect to raw materials usage, raw fabrics are the main raw
materials which include unfinished pure cotton, polyester cotton,
synthetic fibre, combined fabrics and nylon cotton. Since these are
processed materials from cotton which can be widely obtained, thus the
impact to the natural resources is not significant. The Group will closely
monitor the progress of the application of the purification system of
our setting machines so reduction of the hazardous waste gas emission
could be put into practice in the closest future.

To develop a green approach at the factory and offices, we have
developed the following measures for our daily operation starting from
2017 so as to minimise the impact brought to the environmental and
natural resources consumption.

Factory machine and office equipment
o Switch off computers, printers, machines and other electronic
devices after office hours or when leaving the workplace to

reduce power consumption.

o Affix save energy posters near the main switches in order to
remind our employees of energy saving.

o The last-man-out is dedicated to check and turn off all machines
and equipments.

Lighting
o Switch off non-essential lighting if there are only few people

working in the office or factory.

o After office hours or during lunch time of business days, only
turning on light for areas essential for safety and security
purpose.

o The last-man-out is dedicated to check and turn off all lighting

of the factory and offices.
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Water
o Conduct daily checking and maintenance of water supply
facilities. Employee should report to the management office when

water supply facilities are out of work or damaged.

Other practice
3 Encourage duplex printing, reuse of single-side used paper.

o Refill instead of new pen when used up.

3 Reduce paper printing by conducting e-filing.

o Encourage employees to adjust the margins and font size of

documents so as to optimise the use of paper.

As a socially responsible enterprise, protecting nature and the
environment has become our inescapable social responsibility, the Group
constantly looks for ways to maximise benefits with minimal resource
consumption and environmental impact, and continue to strive for

sustainable development.

Social Commitment

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group reckons that employees are the most valuable assets
of an enterprise and also the cornerstone for sustaining corporate
development. It is always the Group’s initiative to provide a fair and
competitive compensation package to attract and retain quality talents,
in the form of a basic salary, incentives bonus, mandatory provident
fund, and other fringe benefits. Remuneration packages are reviewed
periodically. The Group also has a set of comprehensive human resources
management policy to support human resources function. The policies
include compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,

working hours, appraisal, training and benefits.

The Group has always strictly observed the relevant legislations in the
PRC and Hong Kong regarding the equal employment opportunities,
child labour and forced labour. The Group abides by the employment
regulations, relevant policies and guidance of the relevant jurisdictions
where it operates, including the “Employment Ordinance”, the
"Employees’ Compensation Ordinance” and the “Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance”, etc. in Hong Kong; and the “Labour Law of
the People’s Republic of China” and the “Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China” in the PRC.
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The Group has its internal procedure to report employees’ information
regularly in order to review employment practices so as to avoid
any non-compliance. Furthermore, the Group strictly complies with
the internal recruitment process during recruitment to ensure no
employment of child labour and forced labour in any form. The Group
also strives to establish harmonious labour relationships. We protect
the rights of staff in terms of providing rest and leave days according
to relevant government laws and regulations. During the Period, the
Group did not aware of any material non-compliance with relevant
standards, rules and regulations regarding operations and activities,
labour practices.

Health and Safety

The Group is an investment holding company located in Hong Kong
and the nature of the daily operation is mainly office-based where it is
relatively low safety risk profile. The Group has equipped its office with
suitable fire-fighting facilities like fire extinguishers. Designated staff
would conduct inspection from time to time so as to ensure the exit
passageway clear and unblocked. In addition, the management office
of our headquarter office organises fire drills from time to time.

The Group’s subsidiary in Fujian engages in processing, printing and
sales of finished fabrics. The Group strongly believes that ensuring
stable and safety production is the most important social responsibility
to its shareholders, employees and the community where it situates.
Therefore, the Group has always regarded ensuring safety and stable
production as one of the priorities in corporate management. Sound
management systems have been established in occupational health and
safety in strict compliance with the regulations on occupational health
and safety the PRC.

As above mentioned, the factories of the Group have engaged third
licensed party to periodically review the waste gas concentration level
of machinery and equipment. At the same time, we continuously
reduce workload intensity for frontline staff and improve the working

environment.

The Fujian factory of the Group had obtained Quality Management
System Certification (ISO9001) and Environmental Management System
Certification (1ISO14001) formulated by the International Organisation
for Standardisation (“I1SO”) and they were certified, thus effectively
guaranteeing the establishment of a healthy, safe and stable working
environment. Daily operations are inspected by relevant department
assigned by the Group, according to the occupational health and safety
requirements of the respective company. Any non-compliance will also
be identified and rectified on a timely basis.
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During the Period, there are no work related injuries case. There were
no non-compliance cases noted in relation to laws and regulations for
health and safety.

Development and Training

We believe that cultivation and retention of talents is the core
of the Group’s development and is essential in strengthening the
competitiveness of the Group. We always consider our staff as our
strategic partners and provide various in-housing training courses to
enhance their job-related skills. During the year, we formulate quality
management and environment management training programs to
update our staff with the most updated standard of ISO9001 and
ISO14001. These two programs include quality assurance training in
production process, inspection assurance of materials received from
supplier, health and safety precautions in using production equipment
and machinery as well as customer relationship management.

In daily operation, the Group provides induction training for new
employees and experienced employees act as mentors to guide new
comers. We believe such arrangement can be the best practice to
facilitate communication and team spirit, also improve technical skills
and managerial capability and encourage the learning and further
development of employees at all levels.

The Group will continue to intensify its efforts to promote staff training
programs which we believe that by means of offering comprehensive
training opportunities, it could help providing the necessary protection
for talent reserves for corporate development.

Labour Standards

The Group strictly complies with the labour legislations and the relevant
guidelines in China and Hong Kong. In Fujian factory, we have set up
policy to ensure our business complied with the “Labor Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, the “Labor Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China” and “Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Protection of Disabled Persons”, etc. In Hong Kong, we have human
resources policy to ensure the compliance with all applicable rules
and regulations such as the “Minimum Wage Ordinance”, the “Sex
Discrimination Ordinance”, the “Race Discrimination Ordinance” and the
“Disability Discrimination Ordinance” etc. It is also the Group policy in
both China and Hong Kong region that no child and forced labor is
permitted for employment. During the Period, the Group does not aware
of any non-compliance with relevant standards, rules and regulations.
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Supply Chain Management
Raw fabrics, dyeing chemicals and fabrics processing chemicals are
the major materials used by the Group’s Fujian factory in its fabrics

processing where they are all procured in the PRC.

The Group implements supplier management in accordance with internal
guidance which governs the engagement of suppliers. Suppliers are
chosen subjecting to screening and evaluation procedures among the
suppliers, based on the quality and price. Also, to ensure supplier
capability in quality assurance, safety and environmental responsibility,
field visit and investigation is conducted. The investigation reviews the
production capacity, technology level, quality assurance capabilities,
supply capacity, safety and environment management qualifications if
needed. Only the highly qualified suppliers complied with regulatory
requirements are eligible for the supplier selection by the Group. The
Group also carry out regular assessment on suppliers’ overall capabilities,
assets position, nature of business, reputation in the industry, quality
of products, goods delivery and compliance with law and regulations.

As customers are becoming more concerned about environmental issues,
and stress the importance of using environmentally friendly materials.
The Group will continue to act as a corporate citizen in communicating
and stressing those environmental issues to our suppliers. We aim at
strengthening the cooperation with suppliers, coordinating with them
in product trials, and work with them to produce socially responsible
products.

Product and Service Responsibility

Customer service

The Group's in-house research and development team has been devoting
to new products development to suit the changing market demand
as well as the improvement of the Group’'s existing products and
production processes. The Group has established long-term relationships
with our customers comprising apparel retailers, garment manufacturers

and fabrics suppliers.

We also believe that customer satisfaction is always the foundation
of an enterprise’s survival. The Group is always trying to improve its
service quality and responding immediately to customers’ needs in terms
of delivery lead time, quality and price. The Group has established a
compliant and handling policy as well as customer communication where
questionnaire is sent to customer, we believe customer’s feedback is
always material for an enterprise’s development. We are always trying
to improve and address complaints or feedback quickly to resolve any
issues.
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Product quality and safety management

The Group is committed to achieve high product and service quality by
implementing stringent and comprehensive quality control procedures.
We have implemented quality control manual throughout the production
process form purchase of raw fabrics and dyeing chemicals to product
packaging for employee to follow. Raw fabrics are inspected to
ensure uniformity in density, thickness and texture before putting into
production so as to minimise possible disruptions during the operation.
During the Period, the amount of defective products produced by the
Group was minimal and complaints by customers in respect of defective

products were insignificant.

Intellectual property right protection

The Group markets its products under its own trademarks. The
trademarks " and " were issued by the Trademark Office
of the State Administration for Industry and Commerce of the PRC and
the Trade Marks Registry of the Intellectual Property Department in
Hong Kong respectively. During the Period, no claim has been made in

relation to infringement of intellectual property rights.

Money lending operation

The Group’s money lending business is conducted by Rende Finance
Limited (“Rende”). Rende is a licensed money lender in Hong Kong
under the Money Lenders Ordinance. The Group has established
standard operation procedures to evaluate the trustworthiness,
creditability, usage of funds of potentials borrowers. During the Period,
the Group has strictly adhered to relevant rules and regulations including

the “Money Lenders Ordinance”.

Securities investment and brokerage services business

The Group has a set of principles guiding our investment decisions.
We assess companies and are concerned with their transparency and
accountability, corporate governance and how they behave with respect
to environmental, social and workers’ rights. It is the Group intention to
invest in companies with good practices in dealing with environmental,

social and governance issues.

The Group’s brokerage services business is conducted by Sincere
Securities. The Group has established standard operation manual in
assessing customer’s creditability, capability and source of funds. The
Group has also established policy to ensure our brokerage services
business is in compliance with “Code of Conduct for Persons Licensed
by or Registered with the Securities and Futures Commission”,
“Guideline on Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing”,
“Prevention of Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing Guideline
Associated Entities”.
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Privacy and information security

The Group believes that the privacy and security of stakeholders’
information is crucial in order to gain trust from them. The Group adopts
appropriate security measures in safeguarding sensitive information and
data, including, but not limited to, trade secrets, know how, client
information, supplier information and other proprietary information.

During the Period, there are no material disputes between our Group
and our customers in respect of the quality of products made by us.

Anti-Corruption and Anti-Money Laundering

The Group believes that a system with good moral integrity and anti-
corruption mechanism is the cornerstone for the sustainable and healthy
development of the Group. The Group is strictly opposed to any form
of bribery, extortion, fraud, money laundering and other acts such as
the provision of illegal political contributions, inappropriate charitable
donation or sponsorship, provision or acceptance of unreasonable
gifts, entertainments or other improper benefits, infringement of trade
secrets, trademarks, patents, copyrights and other intellectual property
rights, and engagement in acts of unfair competition, etc. In order to
ensure that our employees could really be honest and law-abiding, the
Group maintains a “Staff Handbook”, which states the code of conduct
and requires the employees, during the course of business engagement,
not to (whether directly or indirectly) provide, undertake, request or
receive any improper benefits, or take any other actions which are in
violation of integrity, illegal or dishonest behaviors which are in breach
of fiduciary duties.

Regarding to our money lending business, the Group has policy set
forth procedures for performing customer due diligence process,
identifying customer involvement in money laundering activities,
detecting and monitoring suspicious transactions, and reporting of
suspicious transactions according to the guidelines from the Anti-
Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing (Financial Institutions)
Ordinance, Cap 615 (the AMLO).

The Group has also established a whistle-blowing policy for reporting
suspected irregularities, fraud and corruption, a compliant mailbox is
set up to provide channels for reporting corruption and bribery. We
also continue to improve our internal control and monitoring system.
We strike to take immediate actions when problems are reported and
identified. We have a zero tolerance approach to any kind of corruption
and irregularities.

During the Period, there was no legal case regarding corrupt practices

brought against the Group or its employees.
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Community Investment

The Group is committed to creating sustainable prosperity that brings
long-term social and economic benefits for all stakeholders, particularly
to maintain the relationship with interest groups which are relevant to
business operation. Same as last year, the Group continues to make
donations and organise fund raising events to provide subsidy of
employees who suffered from cancer, serious disease and severe work
injury.

The Group's ESG policy encourages and supports employees to volunteer
their time to help those who are less fortunate and advantaged in the
community. As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group will look
for worthy charities or humanitarian causes to support through direct
monetary donations or other events to contribute to the society.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS RIBEEVNEE

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section

TEER EH —REBREEARER 4]

Environmental

BE

Aspect A1: Emissions

BEA: BEBY

General Disclosure

Information on:

“Emissions”

— R E (@)  the policies; and [ ]
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer, relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions,discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
ERERRBEEREHER AKRLHHOEES AERES
BEYHELESH :
(@ HE: R
(b) BTFHBTAEEAZENHBEIERRINER -
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. “Emissions” 56-60
B & MIERAL HERU ) & 1R K AR B HE B BUE - [HEm
KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where “Emissions” 58
BEENIEEAL2 appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per [ #E k|
facility).
BERBASERECAEGE) R(NER BE(MASEES
fii « BIERMTH) -
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where “Emissions” 59
BEENIEEALS appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per [k |
facility).
FEAXEEREEVREE UM E)R(MER) BE (WA EE
SEN - BHERMAHE) -
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where “Emissions” 60
ARENIEEALL appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per [ HEp]
facility).
FEEREEEYWESE UEE)R(MER)BE (MAGE
2HEM - BERKMEE) -
KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results "Emissions” and 58, 60
B EMIEEALS achieved. “Use of Resources”
R EHRENEBERAEKR - [HEm
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are “Emissions” 59, 60
B EMIEEALG handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved. [ ]

HREEAEREERENNTE  RIEE £ B R
BRE -
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section
TEER EEH —REEREEERER E=4:0)
Environmental

BB

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EHEA2: EREH

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water ~ “Use of Resources”
—REE and other raw materials. [ &R A
BRERERBELR  KEREMEME)OBE -

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. “Use of Resources” 58
FARENEEA21 electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity [&RfE A
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
REAESHEER SEERERNE - Kolon) BFEE (A
TETFREFE) REE (MMABESEMN - BERMEAE)

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of "Use of Resources” 61
FARENIEEA2.2 production volume, per facility). [& R
HMEKEREE(MAGESEMN  BEKMAE) -

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results “Use of Resources” 62
BEEMIEEA23 achieved. [&JRE A
e R A A m et & RIS HR o

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water “Use of Resources” 62
BHARENIEEA2.4 that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results [ & /&£ /A |

achieved.
K ERGE B KR ERT AERIERE - DA RIB A K& a5t 8l

RETBKR -

KPl A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes)  “Use of Resources” 63
FARENIEZEA25 and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced. [&RfE A
BRGEATARRMENEE UEAE) R(NWER) BEEE
ffhE °
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section
TEHEHRE EH —REBERBREVREER =40

Environmental

BB
Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
EHA3: BRERXAER

General Disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the “The Environment and
—REE environment and natural resources. Natural Resources”

BIEBTAHRERRAERENEAZENBE - RFERRKAEIR]
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the “Emissions” and “Use 61
EEA31 environment and natural resources and the actions taken to of Resources”
manage them. [HERR ] R [ &R

M EBEDHRERRARNERNEAZERERKNERA % /]
MR ENTY -

Social (Note)

tE (=)

Employment and Labour Practices
BEREREZEIER

Aspect B1: Employment

B EB1: E{&

General Disclosure Information on: “Employment and
— B E (@)  the policies; and Labour Standards”
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a  [{2 & & & T #48| |
significant impact on the issuer, relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination and other benefits and welfare.
ERATMEERE BEREA TEHE - RE - TR .
Z oAb~ R DA & E 4538 R AE F A
(@ HWE: R
(b) BTFTUHBETAEEAZENHEBEZERRINER -

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EHB2 :

General Disclosure Information on: “Health and Safety” 66
—REE (@)  the policies; and [ ERER % 2 |
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer, relating to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
FRARHZETIERERREBEEREBELEEN:
(@) EE: K
(b) BTFHBETAEEATENHBBEIZRRANER -
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section
TEER EEH —REEREEERER E=4:0)
Environmental

BB

Aspect B3: Development and Training
EmEB3: &8 Rl

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for “Development and
—REE discharging duties at work. Description of training activities. Training”
EHRRAEEBTIERENNE L RENBR - midtEdl  [3E RS
EE o

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EHEB4: 55T EA

General Disclosure Information on: “Employment and 67
— R E (@)  the policies; and Labour Standards”
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have [{E & & & T #8| |
a significant impact on the issuer, relating to preventing
child and forced labour.
BB IEET LA H 4T :
(@ BER R
by BIFHBETAGEATENHBEERRONER -

Operating Practices

& 3B 18 B

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EmEBS : t fESEEE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply  “Supply Chain
—REE chain Management”
ERMEENRE RS REEEE - [ fE 38 & 12 |

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6: EmEE

General Disclosure Information on: "Product 68
—RIEE (@)  the policies; and Responsibility”
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have [ & & 1T |
a significant impact on the issuer, relating to health and
safety, advertising, labeling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.
FHAFMRERHEGNRENEREZSE  ES SERLES
HIARBRIGIEN
(@ HE: R
(b) BTHBETAFEATZENHBEELRINER -
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section
TEHER EEH  —REERBEEERER E=4:]
Environmental

BB

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7:: RES

General Disclosure Information on: “Anti-Corruption”
— B E (@)  the policies; and R&E5]
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer, relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BRI R HFERERERN:
@ BE R
(b) BITHECTAEEATZENHBEZEIZLRINER -

Community

#HE

Aspect B8: Community Investment
EEBS: HtERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of  “Community
—REE the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its Investment”
activities take into consideration the communities’ interests. @&
FEAMMR2ERTREEMNEHEZTENBRLEREH
SEBLEMBOBE -

Note: Pursuant to Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules, KPIs in this section are  F: iR¥#5 Fm iR BIF 4227 - ANEFH Y BI4R & XI5 1E
recommended disclosures only. EREZEWE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
Asia Television Holdings Limited

(Formerly known as Co-Prosperity Holdings Limited)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Qualified Opinion Arising from Limitation of Scope

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asia Television
Holdings Limited (the “Company"”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) (the “Consolidated Financial Statements”) set out on pages
87 to 231, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the Consolidated Financial
Statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2018, and of its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BIAZBEN]E

MOORE STEPHENS

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1,
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

T +852 2375 3180
F +852 2375 3828
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www.moorestephens.com.hk
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BB AR (1))

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Our report on the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2017 contained a qualified opinion on the
limitation of our audit scope in relation to the Group has (1) deposits for
other investments (“ATV Deposits”) of HK$500,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB416,250,000) for an investment in Asia Television Limited
("ATV") and (2) receivables due from ATV (“ATV Receivables”) of approximately
RMB90,006,000 as at 31 December 2017. We were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves as to the recoverability of
ATV Deposits and ATV Receivables as at 31 December 2017 because the
management of the Group was unable to access certain financial information

or other information in relation to the assets and liabilities of ATV.

This also caused us to be unable to satisfy ourselves as to the purchase
price allocation on acquisition of Star Platinum Enterprises Limited (“Star
Platinum”), which was incomplete as at the end of twelve months after the
date of acquisition. Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any
adjustments or impairment to the ATV Deposits and ATV Receivables, as well
as the assets and liabilities obtained from the acquisition of Star Platinum, was
necessary.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the acquisition of ATV by Star
Platinum (the “Acquisition”) was completed. ATV became a subsidiary of the
Group and was consolidated to the Group on 8 January 2018 (the “Completion
Date”). Based on the purchase price allocation on the Acquisition, details of
which are disclosed in note 11(b) to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the
consideration paid by Star Platinum for the Acquisition, which comprised of
the ATV Deposits and ATV Receivables (collectively the “ATV Consideration”),
exceeded the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of ATV and its
subsidiaries as at 8 January 2018.

The goodwill arising from the Acquisition of RMB114,366,000 was assessed
to be fully impaired as at 8 January 2018 and the impairment loss was
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2018. The matters that gave rise to the qualification of our audit opinion
on the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017 remain unresolved after the Completion date.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Basis for Qualified Opinion - continued

Since opening balances of assets and liabilities affect the determination of
the financial performance and cash flows of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018, we were unable to determine whether adjustments to
the opening accumulated losses, financial performance and cash flows of
the Group, and related disclosures in the notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, might be necessary for the year ended 31 December 2018.
Further, our opinion on the current year’s Consolidated Financial Statements
is also qualified because of the possible effects of the unresolved matters on
the comparability of the current year’s figures and the corresponding figures
in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our qualified opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements with
respect to the Group's ability to continue as going concerns. During the
financial year ended 31 December 2018, the Group incurred a net loss of
RMB839,139,000. As at 31 December 2018, the Group's current liabilities
exceeded the current assets by RMB192,679,000. These events and conditions
indicate a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt about
the Group’s ability to continue as going concern. Our opinion is not further
modified in respect of this matter.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BB AR (1))

Other Information in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all the information in
the Company’s 2018 annual report other than the Consolidated Financial

Statements and our auditor’s report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the Other
Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider
whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated
Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of the Other Information, we are required to report
that fact. As described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section above, we
were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about the carrying
amount of ATV Deposits and ATV Receivables as at 1 January 2018 and the
corresponding impairment amount of goodwill recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2018. Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether or
not the other information is materially misstated with respect to these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at
and for the year ended 31 December 2018. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matters — continued

BB RS ()

AREENSE-&

In addition to the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion rsfﬂ%mnﬁm%@&rﬁﬁa SEIKEHERT

section and Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern Section, we have T FH x| — &1

AEFEI - HPIEHER

determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be $I§}Ejf§5’\$$ﬁ ERNBEREETEE -

communicated in our report.

Key audit matter

HERTEHE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMNEFNAHEREF S HETRE

Purchase price allocation (“PPA”) of investment in a subsidiary — ATV and its subsidiaries ("ATV group”) (please refer to note 11(b)

to the Consolidated Financial Statements)

RERMWERAIZEEEBLI([BEEEDE]) - THERERER

On 8 January 2018, the acquisition of ATV group by the Company’s
wholly owned subsidiary, Star Platinum was completed.

At the date of acquisition of ATV group, the Group had allocated
the consideration transferred into the fair value of identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed, with the excess separately
recognised as goodwill and then recognised as an impairment loss
to profit or loss for the current year.

Significant estimations and judgements are required by the
management in the PPA, particularly in relation to the identification
and valuation of intangible assets. The intangible assets and
goodwill recognised on the date of acquisition amounted
to approximately RMB492,227,000 (note 19) and approximately
RMB114,366,000 (note 20) respectively.

Management has engaged an independent professional valuer
whose work has been relied on in the PPA of the acquisition of
ATV group.
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Our key procedures to address the matter included:

Evaluating the completeness of management assessment in
respect of identification of assets and liabilities assumed
of ATV group at acquisition date;

Evaluating the appropriateness of valuation methodologies
and the corresponding key inputs and assumptions on
determination of the fair value of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed,;

Challenging management of the Company and/or the
valuer about the appropriateness and reasonableness of
the management’s bases of estimating the fair value with
the assistance of our in-house expert; and

Evaluating the competency, capabilities and objectivity of
the valuer.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BB AR (1))

Key Audit Matters — continued
HREGEE-&

Key audit matter

MREETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMONBEFNAEERES S RETREE

Impairment of non-financial assets in Media, cultural and entertainment (“Media CGU") (please refer to note 20 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements)

e XL RRE([RERELEL )R FEEERE (52 B4 6 BRI 220

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of Media CGU'’s
non-financial assets amounted to approximately RMB524,434,000.

Management's impairment review process is based on value-in-use
calculations using cash flow projections. Significant estimations and
judgements are required by the management of the Company to
determine the underlying key assumptions, including future revenue
growth rate, discount rate and terminal growth rate, in the value-
in-use calculations.

RZFE—NF+-A=1+—H EEBRcELBEUNITEEE
BRI E & % A R¥524,434,0007T °
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Our key procedures to address the matter included:

— Assessing and challenging the management of the
Company on the reasonableness of cash flow projections
by comparison with recent performance and market

expectations;

— Assessing the relevance and reasonableness of the key
inputs and assumptions used; and

— Comparing the recoverable amount determined by the
management of the Company with the carrying amounts
of the Media CGU including the allocated goodwill and
intangible assets.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matters — continued
HREFFEHE-&

Key audit matter
HREETEE

Credit risk assessment on loan receivables (please refer to note 26 to

JE W B 3689 1= B g 5 G (78 2 B 47 A B 7% 32K i i3 26)

As at 31 December 2018, the net carrying amount of loan
receivables amounted to approximately RMB100,193,000. The
Group had recognised net impairment loss on loan receivables of
approximately RMB5,349,000 during the year.

Significant subjective judgements are required and high level of
uncertainty is involved in the underlying credit risk assessment
of the borrowers. This takes account of the value of the asset
proof provided by the borrowers, customers’ payment profiles and
creditworthiness and other information including forward looking
information relevant to those borrowers in assessing their credit
status.

RZB-NF+-_A=+—HB BEUREREEFERHARE
100,193,0007T - B & BB RN F AR K & TR E BB FELY
A E#5,349,0007T °
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BB RS ()

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEFOAEERERSERETER

the Consolidated Financial Statements)

Our key procedures to address the matter included:

Obtaining the list of the loan receivables as at
31 December 2018 and discussing with the management
of the Company about their evaluation of the background
and financial capability of the borrowers and their credit

assessment of those outstanding balances;

Understanding and evaluating the internal control
procedures of credit approvals, credit reviews and
impairment assessment performed by the management
of the Company;

Challenging the management’s assessment of the
recoverability of the loan receivables and corroborating
their assessments by obtaining and reviewing credit
related information of the borrowers provided by the
management of the Company; and

Checking subsequent settlement of the individual loan
receivables, if any.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BB AR (1))

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Consolidated Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) assists the
Directors in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements — continued
As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error; design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks; and, obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the Directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
Consolidated Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BB AR (1))

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements - continued

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hung, Wan Fong Joanne
Practising Certificate Number: P05419

Hong Kong, 27 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERaREEAKRR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B EZE=ZT—N\F+ZA=+—HILLFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B = AR T AR T
Turnover = X1 7 166,025 150,748
Cost of sales 5 & K AR (263,832) (110,476)
Gross (loss)/profit (B8 E7 (97,807) 40,272
Other income E A A 2,420 2,119
Other expenses, gains and losses HiAS  WmkEiE 8 (16,291) 1,548
Impairment loss on goodwill AmEZREREE 20 (114,366) -
Net impairment loss on trade and other B REMEBRER 2 RERE
receivables F1E (4,947) (173)
Net impairment loss on loan receivables ERER 2R EREEBFEE 26 (5,349) (9,781)
Impairment loss on intangible assets EmREEZRAEBERBRE (40,683) -
Impairment loss on property, plant and ME BMERZEHNREEIE
equipment (30,137) -
Impairment loss on interest in an associate ~ REtE& ARz 2 BEEIE 23 (56,798) -
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value X AFETABREEZHKEE
through profit or loss Z2AFEEE (43,589) (16,697)
Distribution and selling expenses D REERY (31,883) (2,914)
Administrative and operating expenses THEEERX (128,820) (103,123)
Finance costs BEKAK 9 (66,383) (34,171)
Share of (loss)/profit of an associate DREEE NF (E18),EF 23 (205,129) 4,009
Loss before taxation BRI &R 10 (839,756) (118,911)
Income tax credit/(expense) FBREe (FAX) 14 617 (4,082)
Loss for the year RFEEERE (839,139) (122,993)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) Hip2mEUas (FAX)
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to #5RH 14 B # 5 48 = 18 25
profit or loss: ZIHEA -
- exchange differences arising on -MEEECZEREE
translation 31,461 (61,830)
— share of other comprehensive expense of - D {EB & RAFIH M2 M|
an associate X (3,279) (394)
Total comprehensive expense for the year, RFEEE2EMAZBE
net of income tax (MRS (810,957) (185,217)
Loss for the year attributable to: NTERERFEEE:
Owners of the Company ARRHEEB A (800,530) (126,747)
Non-controlling interests IE 2 A% 4 (38,609) 3,754
(839,139) (122,993)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)
REeRRAMZEKRR(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B EZE=_T—\F+ZA=+—HILLFE

AONES 2017
—E—+tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt = ARMTF o AR T
Total comprehensive expense for the LTELEAFEEERS 85
year attributable to:
Owners of the Company PN/NEIEZ SN (780,896) (186,638)
Non-controlling interests JEE R R (30,061) 1,421
(810,957) (185,217)
2018 2017
—T-N\F —T—tF
RMB cents RMB cents
A B #5 ARKS
Loss per share BREE
- Basic and diluted - ERKR#EE 15 (11.35) (2.46)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REMBRRIE

At 31 December 2018 R—E—N\E+-_A=+—81

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
Bt = ARKF ARKEF T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BERZE 16 35,779 49,419
Investment properties KEME 17 1,130 -
Prepaid lease payments BN HEERIE 18 384 398
Intangible assets BREAE 19 525,729 35,731
Goodwill kS 20 20,077 20,274
Deposits for other investments HmEEz&ke 21 - 416,250
Other deposits Hitiz & 22 5,481 9,269
Interest in an associate REERA 2R 23 118,141 279,700
706,721 811,041
Current assets REBEE
Inventories A= 24 91,501 109,455
Trade and other receivables, deposits and BHRHEMBEWERER  E2
prepayments MBI FRIE 25 217,609 313,474
Loan receivables e E K 26 100,193 138,349
Prepaid lease payments ENHEERIE 18 14 14
Financial assets at fair value EBEAFEFAEREZ
through profit or loss MBEE 27 123,237 52,413
Pledged bank deposits BEHEARITER 28 20,620 38,420
Bank balances and cash RITHEHBRRE 28 173,110 229,914
726,284 882,039
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables Z 5K H i fE R RN 29 367,664 170,525
Bond payables ERESH 30 67,393 63,908
Taxation payables FER L IE 7,416 4,764
Government grant BT 8 B 24 24
Obligation under finance leases BB ERIE 31 205 188
Short-term bank loans, secured EERTEREER 32 90,350 113,550
Short-term loans from other REHM S EEE
financial institutions HEHER 32 220,866 8,340
Other borrowings HimEE 32 165,045 31,635
918,963 392,934
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(EE) EEFE (192,679) 489,105
Annual Report
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
RERBERRIR(E)

At 31 December 2018 R—ZE—N\E+-_A=+—81

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —E—tF

Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000

Bt = ARKEFT AR F T

Total assets less current liabilities REERRBAR 514,042 1,300,146
Non-current liabilities FkHBEE

Obligation under finance leases B & EAIE 31 205 389

Government grant X T 78 B 176 200

Deferred tax liabilities REFIITE A& 34 76,340 855

76,721 1,444

Net assets EERE 437,321 1,298,702
Capital and reserve EXRFE

Share capital A% < 35 616,617 616,617

Reserves 1 (154,822) 640,990

Equity attributable to owners ARBHEBAELES

of the Company 461,795 1,257,607

Non-controlling interests IR (24,474) 41,095

Total equity B 437,321 1,298,702

The consolidated financial statements on pages 87 to 231 were approved H87E231B VHAMBHREER_E—NLFE=A
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2019 and are —++tHEZEEZSHEBRBIRUTATRERE

signed on its behalf by: Z:
Deng Jun lJie Chan Wai Kit
;LA B 12 £
Chairman Executive Director
FE HiTEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & = —

Share
capital

FMB'000

ﬁ:éﬂﬁﬁiﬂli

—NFE+ZA=+—RLFE

Convertible
bond equity
reserve

Statutory Non-
surplus— Accumulated controlling
Reserve fund losses Total interests

Share Special Translation

premium reserve reserve Total equity

BHERE B i3 B Bt
RMB000  RMB00O  RMB000  RMB'000 A’MBOOO RMB'000

RMB'000

At 1 January 2017 RZ%-+t§-A-H 351,608 623,388 98,731 11 53,926 30,084 (469.212) 689,696 - 689,696
(Loss)profit for the year FEF(FE) /& - - - - - - (126,47)  (126,747) 3754 (122,993
Other comprehensive expense for the year REEZEB2ERR
- Bxchange differences arising on translation - }&ZEEZDL%@ - - - - (59,497) - - (59497) 2333 (61830
- Share of reserve of an associate SEBENARE - - - - (394) - - (394) - (394)
Total comprehensive expense for the year R 2ERXAE - - - - (59,891) - (126,747)  (186,638) 142 (185,217)
Transfer g% - - - - - 476 (476) - - -
Issue of shares under share placing RERAEERTRG  30) ()
R (iv) 253,074 493187 - - - - - 746,261 - 746,261
Transaction costs atributable to issue BARERGZRAMA
of placing shares - (17,270) - - - - - (17,270) N (17,270)
Issue of shares upon conversion of REATRREAMEN
convertible bonds B 35iil) 11,935 14,794 - (1171) - - - 25,558 - 25,558
Transactions with owners BEEAZRD 265009 490,711 - ({AA)] - - - T54549 - T54549
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENBLR 11(a) - - - - - - - - 39,674 39674
At 31 December 2017 as previously reported  R=E-t£+ZA=+-A
(MBEER) 616,617 1,114,099 98,731 - (5,965) 30,560 (596,435) 1,257,607 41,095 1,298,702
Impact on iniial application of Hong Kong Financial ~ &R 7EFR ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁi%ﬁﬁw
Reporting Standard ("HKFRS") 9 F0RMTE 2 - - - - m - (15,187) (14,916) (125) (15,041)
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RZB-tE+ZAZ1-8
(restated) R-E-N§-B-A
(7)) 616,617 1,114,099 98,731 - (5,694) 30,560 (611,622) 1,242,691 40970 1,283,661
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - - (800530)  (800530) (38,609  (839,39)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) REEZEMZENE
for the year /(7%)
- Exchange differences arising on translation -REELIERER - - - - 2913 - - 2913 8,548 31,461
- Share of reserve of an associate - He-ERERAL
HE - - - - (3219 - - B - (3279
Total comprehensive expense for the year FEERERTEE - - - - 19,634 - (800,530)  (780.896)  (30,061)  (810,957)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENERR 11(b) - - - - - - - - (3538 (3538))
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE+ZA=1-H 616,617 1,114,099 98,731 - 13,940 30,560 (1,412152) 461,795 (24,474) 437321
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
RENREDR(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B EZE=ZT—\F+ZA=+—HILFE

Notes:

92

The special reserve represents the differences between the nominal amount of
the shares issued by the Company and the Group’s former holding company and
the aggregate amount of paid-up capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to
the group reorganisation in 2005 in preparation for the listing of the Company’s
shares, net of subsequent distribution to shareholders.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment
enterprises in People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries are required to maintain a statutory surplus reserve fund which is
non-distributable. Appropriation to such reserve is made out of net profit after
taxation of the statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries while the
amounts and allocation basis are decided by their board of directors annually. The
statutory surplus reserve fund can be used to make up prior year losses, if any,
and can be applied in conversion into capital by means of capitalisation issue.

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
.ﬁ:AiEﬁ;}ﬁ‘ii

—NFE+ZA=+—RLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & = —

AONES] 2017
—N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARKEFT AREFor
Operating activities KEHET
Loss before taxation TN (839,756) (118,911)
Adjustments for: BT 5 F B R
Interest income B A (689) (648)
Interest expenses MEFE 66,383 34,171
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BELRZBZITE
equipment 20,070 8,660
Amortisation of intangible assets mRAE ZHIE 72,591 —
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TEAT T ERE 2 i 14 14
Amortisation of government grant IR RS 48 B 2 8 (24) (16)
Write-down of inventories 17 & HUR 65,545 28,845
Reversal of write-down of inventories B F 8 WO (22,948) (18,140)
Net impairment loss on trade and other B 5 &k HMERRIEZ
receivables BB EEFE 4,941 173
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair BRAFEFABEREZ
value through profit or loss MBEaE 2 A TEBE 48,836 16,697
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BERREZ
equipment & 8,754 287
Impairment loss on goodwill Fﬁﬁiz BB 1R 114,366 —
Share of loss/(profit) of an associate 1k B & R A
B Ca ) 205,129 (4,009)
Impairment loss on property, plant and ME - WERZHEZRE
equipment &8 30,137 —
Impairment loss on interest in an BiE AEl 2w R EEE
associate 56,798 —
Impairment loss on intangible assets EBVAEZREREE 40,683 —
Net impairment loss on loan receivables EWER 2 BEEE 5,349 9,781
Impairment loss in respect of deposits ENHENES ZRE
paid for suppliers E#E 2,908 2,018
Reversal of impairment loss on deposits BRI HER RS ZRE
paid for suppliers & (8,003) (1,832)
Impairment loss on deposit for other HtRE2RE® 2 RE
investment &8 — 8,671
Operating cash flows before movements in  2EBE S E BRI 2 KELERMERE
working capital (128,916) (34,239)
Increase in inventories FEIEM (25,310) (13,436)
(Increase)/decrease in financial assets at fair & AF{EFAEBZE K2 B
value through profit or loss BEGEM, R (114,171) 131,224
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other Z 5 K H h JE W BR 5K
receivables A (i pith 102,486 (103,029)
Decrease/(increase) in loan receivables F&“Hﬁl%m A (1) 33,385 (9,703)
Increase in deferred revenue IR AE Y 2 38 N 10,999 —
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
RENeRER(A)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B EZE=ZT—\F+ZA=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —2—t5

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T ARET T

Increase in bank balances and cash — WITHEBRIR SN — B
segregated accounts P (27,588) (108,227)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 K H b JE AR FIE N 93,851 2,001
Cash used in operations KEFERZE S (55,264) (135,409)
Taxation refunded/(paid) BREBIE (BM) 614 (1,699)
Net cash used in operating activities KEXBMBER RS FHE (54,650) (137,108)
Investing activities wEER
Interest received 2 WA B 689 648
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVE BERERE (36,510) (10,141)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEME BMERRZKEMRS
and equipment KIE 458 140
Deposit paid for other assets ENEMEE 2 RS (4,603) —
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RMEERRITER 17,800 —
Net cash inflow from acquisition of a WERBAR ZE R A FHE
subsidiary — 37,229
Other deposits paid EffHMIZ S — (8,612)
Payment on acquisition of an associate Uy B8 B 2 N R 2 A ER — (276,085)
Additions of intangible assets NEEFREE (82,197) (27,847)
Received from government grant B U BURT 4 B — 240
Acquisition of associate g AN (109,312) —
Acquisition of subsidiaries 1z B BT B8 A A) (86,823) —
Net cash used in investing activities KWEXEKMERZRESFE (300,498) (284,428)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
REHeRER(RA)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B EZE=T—N\F+ A=+ —HILFE

AONES] 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AREF T ARETF T
Financing activities L& EE
Interest paid AT F & (57,487) (29,137)
Proceeds from placement of new shares it & ¥ AR 19 FT 15 5K 18 — 746,261
Share issuing expenses I 1D B 1T R X — (17,270)
Proceeds from bank loans, loans from RERITER Ao m#E
other financial institutions and other ZLERREMEEZME
borrowings KIE 454,281 344,814
Repayment of bank loans, loans from BERTER  EMhormigs
other financial institutions and other ZEREAEMEE
borrowings (147,039) (334,777)
Repayment of finance leases EEMEMEE (184) (374)
Repayment of amount due to a related BEEMNEEQTFRIE
company (7,872) (53,760)
Repayment to a shareholder KRERRMBERE, (EE)
P ER K 38 — (104,052)
Proceeds from a non-controlling owners of KB B AR IEIE R = TS
subsidiaries A 52,877 —
Net cash generated from financing activities REEEENFEL 2R EFE 294,576 551,705

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash BekReEEMORLD), 18N

equivalents &) (60,572) 130,169
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BZRE&RREEEY 121,687 27,820
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes GhNEETE Ry 22 (23,820) (36,302)

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December W+—-A=+—B2RE&EHEE
ZEY 37,295 121,687

Analysis of the balances of cash and cash ReRReFEEWEHRIN

equivalents
Bank balances and cash — general accounts $R7T#E# RIRE - —REFK
and cash e 28 37,295 121,687
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERME

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

96

GENERAL

Asia Television Holdings Limited (Formerly known as Co-Prosperity
Holdings Limited), which changed its name from Co-Prosperity Holdings
Limited to Asia Television Holdings Limited on 11 April 2018, was
incorporated and registered as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and acts as
an investment holding company. The principal activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 41. The Company’s shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information”
of this annual report.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been presented in Renminbi
(“RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of preparation

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
which collective term includes all applicable Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). In addition, the
Consolidated Financial Statements include applicable disclosures required
by The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The Group's recorded a net loss of approximately RMB839,139,000
during the year ended 31 December 2018 and it had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB192,679,000 as at 31 December 2018.
These conditions indicate the existence of uncertainties which may cast
doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as going concern.
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GENERAL - CONTINUED

Basis of preparation — continued

The directors of the Company have taken the following measures to
mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve its financial position:

(i) Commenced negotiations with borrowers and other financial
institutions to renew loans that have fallen due or will be falling
due;

(ii) Implementing policies to monitor cash flows through cutting costs
and capital expenditure;

(i) Executing active measures to expedite collections of outstanding
receivables;

(iv)  Exploring the possibility of disposing certain non-core assets; and

v) Obtained a financial undertaking and financial support from a
substantial shareholder of the Company who is also a director of
the Company.

Based on the Group’s cash flow projections, taking account of
effectiveness and feasibility of the above measures covering a period
of twelve from the end of the reporting period prepared by the
management, the directors of the Company consider the Group would
be able to finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due within the forecast period. Accordingly,
the Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to write down the carrying value of the Group’s
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any future liabilities
that may arise and to re-classify non-current assets and liabilities as
current assets and liabilities. The effect of these adjustments have not
been reflected in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL"), which are measured at fair value as explained
in the accounting policies set out below.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MEERME(E)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ReMEBEERMEE)

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(a) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs — effective
1 January 2018

Save for HKFRS 15 which was early adopted by the Group in last
year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the following new
and revised standards issued by the HKICPA which are effective
for the Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements for the annual
period beginning on 1 January 2018.

(i) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the

related amendment

HKFRS 9 and the amendments to HKFRS 9 have
replaced HKAS 39 Financial instruments: recognition
and measurement. HKFRS 9 sets out the requirements
for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial
liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell non-financial
items. In accordance with the specific transitional
provisions set out in HKFRS 9, the Group has applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
requirements relating to impairment under expected credit
losses (“ECL") model) to items that existed as of the date of
initial application (i.e. 1 January 2018) on a retrospective
basis based on the facts and circumstances that existed
as at 1 January 2018. However, the Group has decided
not to restate the comparative figures. Accordingly, the
comparative information continues to be presented based
on the requirements of HKAS 39 and hence may not
be comparable with the current year information. The
cumulative effect of initial application of HKFRS 9 has been
recognised as adjustments to the opening equity.

98 ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
THEBRERARAXA

TR REER 2B EBY

RMFAIREBERZ2ERY
BHREREA - R-F-NF—
A—BERX
BAEBRNEFRABAOE B
BREEBFE 1SR - AEBER S
EEZEARBREERNRABE
ERHMOREM  THR-B—N\F
—A— BBz FEREER TS
AR ER A -

(i) BEBUBHEZEAEINR
K15 B 15 AT
BEUBREENFIRLE
BB TS E R FE I ZERT
BRRFEBGAERFERS
BMTE BRANE - - BBH
SR FEW IR
AEMBEAE  MBAGERE
TEEFSBBEANAHMR
E o RBBEEVBMEES
95 P HL A 45 E B IR MR
FEEERBR -_Z-NF—
A—BEFENFEERBELE
EBPREEBHDBRFEENR
(BRERAEEER(ES
EEBERDEXTHEEBN
RE)VEARBEZERERR
HEN—Z2-NF—A—R)E
FEHNIER - B2 AEEDR
ETEIILRET - Bk -
REHBERBEE B IE
RIZE3RMMREZS - EUEA]
BEERAFEEANLEER - B
REBEBYBERMEENFE
MRS ECER RSE Y]
RS E -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
52 M8 & W ek (i)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS -

CONTINUED

(@) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 - continued

(i) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the
related amendment — continued

(@

Classification and measurement of
financial assets

In general, HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into
the following three classification categories:

. measured at amortised cost;

. at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI"); and

. at FVTPL.

These classification categories are different
from those set out in HKAS 39 which included
held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets
measured at FVTPL. The classification of financial
assets under HKFRS 9 is based on the business
model under which the financial asset is managed
and its contractual cash flow characteristics. Details
about the Group’s accounting policies for its
financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed
in note 3. The Group did not designate or de-
designate any financial asset at FVTPL at 1 January
2018.

Accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 9 are disclosed in note 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RERBEHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

TREBHZ2ERBMY

" nu

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. HFAHE
R
[ e

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS - BHREER - &
CONTINUED
(@) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs — effective (@) EAFITIRRKRERZ2ERH
1 January 2018 - continued BREER - R=F—NF—
B—R&E%-#&
(i) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the (i) BEHBREEREIY
related amendment - continued RGBT — &
(a) Classification and measurement of @ HBEEENSE
financial assets — continued iTE - A&
The following table shows a reconciliation from TRERMEEHZ -
how the Group’s financial assets which existed as of Z-N\F—-HA—HF®&E
1 January 2018 were classified and measured under WV BEERBEERES
HKAS 39 to how they are classified and measured FHHERIZE395% o A R E
under HKFRS 9: ERREBEEBSVEBRE
LR FEIRDEREE
% BR

0ld classification under ~ New classification Carrying amount Carrying amount
HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9 under HKAS 39 Remeasurement under HKFRS 9

Efiif &

RMB'000 RMB'000

Investment in listed equity securities FVTPL FVTPL 52,413 - 52,413
RETREZFNRE RATEFAARRE RATESABER
Trade receivables Trade receivables Amortised cost 65,180 (1,417) (Note) 63,763
HHRNER BHREER RBENK (W)
Other receivables Loan receivables Amortised cost 193,511 (2,833) (Note) 190,678
H A JE YR 3 EREH RBHEAA (Hii)
Other deposits for other assets Loan receivables Amortised cost 657 - 657
HEEENERR S EREH RBEANA
Loan receivables Loan receivables Amortised cost 138,349 (5127) (Note) 133,222
JEY B ElE RBENE (W)
Pledged bank deposits Loan receivables Amortised cost 38,420 - 38,420
BEARTER EREH RBHEAA
Bank balances and cash Loan receivables Amortised cost 229,914 - 229,914
BROEBRES EREHR RBENA
718,444 (9,377) 709,067
Note: The amount represents additional Ma: SHEEERSE
impairment losses based on the new ECL S B % RS 2
under HKFRS 9. A5 958 I T 37
TEEEEEIE
B 28 SN RLE B
& -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS -
CONTINUED
(@) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs — effective

1 January 2018 - continued

(i) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the
related amendment — continued
(b)  Impairment under ECL model

HKFRS 9 has introduced the “expected credit loss
model” to replace the “incurred loss” model under
HKAS 39. The “expected credit loss model” requires
an ongoing measurement of credit risk associated
with a financial asset. The Group has applied the
"expected loss model” to the following types of
financial assets:

3 financial assets that are subsequently
measured at amortised cost (including cash
and cash equivalents, trade receivables and

loans receivables);

. contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15; and

. investments in debt securities that are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI,

e MEERME(E)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REeMBERMEE)

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS -
CONTINUED
(@) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs — effective

1 January 2018 - continued

(i) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the
related amendment — continued
(b)  Impairment under ECL model — continued

The following table is a reconciliation that shows
how the closing loss allowance as at 31 December
2017 determined in accordance with HKAS 39 can
be reconciled to the opening loss allowance as
at 1 January 2018 determined in accordance with
HKFRS 9:

2. RAFITR ﬁ%&Zé%ﬁ
i% .tllﬂ: \IJ - nﬁ
(@) EAFITIRRKRERZ2ERH
B|MEER - R=E—-NF—
B—BEXM-&

(i) BEBUBHEEAEINR
KiEEEEET - &

(b)

AR TFT

RMB’000

AR EEER
TR e - &
TREBTRERSS
ARSI E TE AR
—T—+tF+=-RA=+
— B A HA K 5 18 B 5 B
& B R A 2RI 559
RETHR-_ZE—NF
—A— AR EE R
) ER -

RMB’000
ABRET T

Loss allowance recognised as at
31 December 2017 under HKAS 39

BB WIEAERAT
RoB—tE+- A=t

—HERNEERE 15,670
Additional loss allowance as a result of & B 7 %R & 2 B 5955 18
the application of the “expected loss TREAMTEMEEER]
model” under HKFRS 9 FrEEMEINGIBEE
— Trade and other receivables - B5 & HMERERR 4,250
- Loans receivables - EWRER 5,127 9,377
Loss allowance recognised as at ERMBHREEAEINRIE
1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9 TR=ZE-NE—A—8
BANBERE 25,047

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2 M5 & W e (R)

31 December 2018 — &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS -

CONTINUED

(@) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 - continued

2.

(i) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the

related amendment — continued

(c) Interest in an associate
The net effects arising from the initial application
of HKFRS 9 resulted in a decrease in the carrying
amounts of interest in an associate of approximately
RMB5,664,000 with corresponding adjustments to
retained profits by approximately RMB5,590,000.

(@)

Effect on the Group’s accumulated losses
and other reserves as of 1 January 2018

The following table shows the impact of the
application of HKFRS 9 on the Group’s accumulated
losses and other equity components as of 1 January
2018:

—N\FE+=ZA=+—H

BRI REER2ERY
ﬁ%i’fﬁ—,\u - IIE.
RMFATRBERZEEBY
B|EED - R=B-NF—
A—B&EXM-#&
() BEUBEHERZEREIR
KRBT - &
© RBEZERNFAZEZ
BEREREBEVBRE

(@)

R 5% P E A 1O
FEBRRBERRZ
EaEREERDOAR
#5,664,0007T A B AR B
HEAMBEBHEDARYE
5,590,0007T °

HAEFEF —F
—/VF—H—H# &
FHE 18 R 2 A f# 1
g2

TREREEZZ—N
F—A—HEREBY
% 4 d Q95 WA

SEMEFEEREM
Ao E

(Increase)/ Increase in
decrease in the Group's
translation accumulated
reserve losses Total
bE 5 & NEE R G
(gm),/m L &5 18 K 35 AN et
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREFT AREF T AREFT
Recognition of additional RELAT & IE
expected credit losses BEFEINE
relating to: HEEESE:
- Trade and other -BSRkHEM
receivables JiE Wi R TE (132) 4,257 4,125
- Loans receivables - ERER (213) 5,340 5,127
— Interest in an associate - RERE QA
ZHEE 74 5,590 5,664
71 15,187 14,916
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i & R85 8 & M &k (i)

31 December 2018 — &

104

—NFE+ZA=+—H

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS -

CONTINUED

(@) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 - continued

(i)

(iii)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance Consideration

HK (IFRIC)-22 provides guidance on determining “the date
of the transaction” for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part of it) arising from a
transaction in which an entity receives or pays advance
consideration in a foreign currency. The Interpretation
is the date

on initial recognition of the non-monetary asset or

clarifies that “the date of the transaction”
liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance of recognising the related item, the date of
the transaction for each payment or receipt should be
determined in this way, the Group recorded these advances
by applying the spot exchange rate on initial recognition.
Accordingly, the application of this interpretation has
had no significant impact on the amounts reported and/
or disclosures set out in these Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification
and Measurement of Share-based Payment
transactions

The amendments clarify the following:

(a) In estimating the fair value of a cash-settled share-
based payment, the accounting for the effects
of vesting and non-vesting conditions of a cash-
settled share-based payment should follow the
same approach as for equity-settled share-based
payments;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS -

CONTINUED

(a) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs — effective
1 January 2018 - continued

(iii) Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification
and Measurement of Share-based Payment
transactions — continued

(b)

(o)

Where tax law or regulation requires the Group to
withhold a specified number of equity instruments
equal to the monetary value of the employee’s
tax obligation to meet the employee’s tax liability
which is then remitted to the tax authority, that is,
the share-based payment arrangement has a 'net
settlement feature’, such an arrangement should be
classified as equity-settled in its entirety, provided
that the share-based payment would have been
classified as equity-settled had it not included the
net settlement feature; and

A modification of a share-based payment that
changes the transaction from cash-settled to equity
settled should be accounted for as follows:

the original liability is derecognised;

ii. the equity-settled share-based payment is
recognised at the modification date fair value
of the equity instrument granted to the extent
that services have been rendered up to the
modification date; and

iii. any difference between the carrying amount
of the liability at the modification date and
the amount recognised in equity should be
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

The Group has no share-based payment at the end of the

reporting period. Therefore, these amendments do not

have any impact on the Group’s Consolidated Financial

Statements.

e MEERME(E)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i & R85 8 & M &k (i)

31 December 2018 — &

—NFE+ZA=+—H

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS -
CONTINUED
(a) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs — effective

1 January 2018 - continued

(iv) Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the

)

106

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-
2016 Cycle

The amendments clarified that the election to measure at
FVTPL an investment in an associate or a joint venture that
is held by an entity that is a venture capital organisation,
or other qualifying entity, is available for each investment
in an associate or joint venture on an investment-by-

investment basis, upon initial recognition.

These amendments do not have any impact on the Group's
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of
Investment Property

The amendments clarify that a transfer to, or from,
investment property necessitates an assessment of whether
a property meets, or has ceased to meet, the definition of
investment property, supported by evidence that a change
in use has occurred. The amendments further clarify that
situations other than the ones listed in HKAS 40 may
evidence a change in use, and that a change in use is
possible for properties under construction (i.e. a change
in use is not limited to completed properties).

At the date of initial application, the Group assessed the
classification of certain properties based on conditions
existing at that date. There is no impact to the classification
at 1 January 2018.

These amendments do not have any impact on the Group’s
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. HRAMII R EEH 2 EFE M
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS - BmEER - &
CONTINUED
(a) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs — effective (@) RAFITIRRKERZ2ERH

1 January 2018 - continued BREEL - R=F-—NF—
B—BEM - &

As a result of the changes in the Group’s accounting policies HR R AEE ST RE 2 EE

above, the opening consolidated statement of financial position MG EMBERAKRETINES -

TRINTHEINZZERARR
AE - WEFARZEYGFENA

were not affected by the changes have not been included. H -

had to be restated. The following table show the adjustments
recognised for each of the line items affected. Line items that

The effect on

31 December adoption of
2017 (Audited) HKFRS 9
—E—t+F KW EBMB

1 January 2018
(Restated)
—E-)N\F
—H—H

(g &E351)
RMB’000
ARET T

+ZA=+—H HEER

(EB%)
RMB’000
ARHTFT

ELE LR
RMB’000
ARETT

Non-current assets

3F5ﬁ§bﬁ§

Interest in an associate ABE N T 2 RS 279,700 (5,664) 274,036
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables Bk

H {th & W BR 3R 313,474 (4,250) 309,224
Loan receivables FE W B R 138,349 (5,127) 133,222
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RERBEHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. HAHFIIRZEE R 2EHEH
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS - BHREER - &
CONTINUED
(b) New and revised HKFRSs not yet adopted (b) g*?ﬂ?%Z%ﬁ%’T&%@{@E&Z

Effective for annual reporting

periods beginning on or after
R B 85k 2 % F 4

WERREHEEN
HKAS 19 Amendments Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement 1 January 2019
BERGHEREI9R 2B SEIEE - RS “Z-NE—-R-H
HKAS 28 Amendments Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2019
BERGHEREBRE 2B REERARaECENRBRR “Z-NE—-R—-H
HKAS 28 and HKFRS 10 Amendment Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor  To be determined*

and its Associate or Joint Venture

BEGHRANEBELERMBREENE0R 2B RETRABZAANNAZCEANHEREE FEE"

BRf
HKFRS 9 Amendments Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 1 January 2019
ERABREENFIR 2B AREREZRAERFT —Z-NE-A-H
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
ERUBREEN S 165 il “Z-N%—-RA—H
HK (IFRIC) - Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019
FRERVBREREZES) - REEBH MERRE THREN “Z-N%—-RA—H
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 1 January 2019
BRUBREER 2B ERUBREEN -_Z-0EZE —Z-NE-A-H
SR LFIEERE
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Amendments Definition of a Business 1 January 2020
ERABRELEREIR (BB BT ABEE “Z-Z%-f-H
HKAS 1 (Revised) and HKAS 28 Amendments Definition of Material 1 January 2020
BRGHENZR(KE) REB G RHESR BT BANES “Z-Z%-f—H
Conceptual Framework For Financial Reporting 2018 Revised Conceptual Framework For Financial 1 January 2020
Reporting
8% i AR ER2018 MBRESEIHAER “Z-Z%-H—-H
* The amendments were original intended to be effective for * ZEBIRABR_Z—N\F
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The —A—RAszERBNFE
effective date has now been deferred. Early application of AER - EMAEREHEE -
the amendments continues to be permitted. s E IR RE BT o
The Group has already commenced an assessment of the related NEE DRI LG F ol T R EEET
impact of adopting the above new and revised HKFRSs. So far, it has EEUBBEERNMABELE - HEMA
concluded that the above new and revised HKFRSs will be adopted on I DEEERAA FRFTREETE
the respective effective dates and the adoption of them is unlikely to BB REENEN A ENBEER
have a significant impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements of MM ZERH T RIEIETEBR R EE
the Group. AR B AR BN A M IS MR EE

EXFE-
108 ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
THNERZRAERL A



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation
The Consolidated Financial Statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

- the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

- rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

- the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group losses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the Consolidated Statement
of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

When the Group losses control of a subsidiary, it (i) derecognises the
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the
date when control is lost, and (ii) recognises the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received, with any resulting difference being
recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
=M B ERMEGR)

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

110

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Basis of consolidation — continued

Non-controlling interests are presented in the combined consolidated
statements of financial position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the face of the combined
consolidated statements of comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the owners of the Company.

Business combination and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure
non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value
at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control),
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Business combination and goodwill - continued

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability that is a financial instrument and
within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value either recognised in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is not within the
scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate
HKFRS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in income statement as a bargain purchase gain.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the
end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group
reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting
is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the
measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised,
to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that
existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised as of that date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any, and is presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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112

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Business combination and goodwill — continued
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill
as at 31 December. For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU") (or
groups of CGU) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those CGU or groups of CGU. Impairment is
determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the CGU (or group
of CGU) to which the goodwill relates. If the recoverable amount of the
CGU (or group of CGU) is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the CGU (or group of CGU) and then to the other assets
of the CGU on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the CGU. Any impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU (or group of CGU) and
part of the operation within that CGU is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the CGU retained.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

In the Company'’s statement of financial position, interests in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Associate and joint venture

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence,
which is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decision of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists
only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

An interest in an associate or joint venture is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method, less any
impairment losses, unless it is classified as held for sale. Adjustments
are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may
exist. Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at
cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's share of the acquisition-
date fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of
the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post-acquisition change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets
and any impairment loss relating to the investment. Any acquisition-
date excess over cost, the Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-
tax results of the investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group's share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its investment in the associate
or the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to zero and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group's interest is the
carrying amount of the investment under the equity method together
with the Group's long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associate and joint venture are eliminated to the extent
of the Group's interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which
case they are recognised immediately in the profit or loss. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of associate or joint venture is included as
part of the Group's interest in an associate or joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land and buildings
(classified as finance lease) held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other than
construction in progress) are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than properties under construction
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using straight-
line method, as follows:
Buildings Over the estimated useful lives of 30
years
Leasehold improvements Over the remaining life of the lease
but not exceeding 3 years
Furniture, fixtures 10% — 33',%

and computer equipment

Production equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Plant and machinery 10%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. An investment property acquired in a
business combination are initially recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost). Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the consolidated income statement in the year
in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the consolidated income statement in the
year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets

Film rights and licence fees

Film rights and licence fees are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Costs incurred
to produce or acquire programme rights for the Group to broadcast
related programmes on the Group's Over-The-Top (“OTT") platform,
are capitalised as “Intangible assets”. Film rights and licence fees are
amortised based on estimated viewing patterns. The amortisation is
on an accelerated basis as the Group typically expects more upfront
viewings at the initial periods after commencement of viewing. Other
payments made in advance or in arrears of film right and licence fees
recognised are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
as “Trade and other receivables, deposits and prepayments” or “Trade
and other payables”.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their
fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Intangible assets — continued

Other intangible assets — continued

Subsequent to initial recognition, other intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for other intangible
asset with finite useful life is provided on a straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life.

Other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised.
The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
being indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets at
their fair value or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding lease commitment is shown as a liability.
Lease payments are analysed between capital and interest. The interest
element is charged to profit or loss over the period of the lease and
is calculated so that it represents a constant proportion of the lease
liability. The capital element reduces the balance owed to the lessor.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased asset are consumed.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue
is recognised. The amount of any write down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which
the reversal occurs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Investments and other financial assets

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date/settlement date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which
are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1 January
2018. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to

the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED
Investments and other financial assets — continued
Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2(i)
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective

is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and has

a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBS RMEGR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

CONTINUED

Investments and other financial assets — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon

application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2(i)) —

continued

@

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit

impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains and losses”
line item.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Investments and other financial assets — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2(a)(i)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets which
are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables,
loan receivables and other receivables. The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables and
contract assets. The ECL on these assets are assessed collectively using
a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal
to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED
Investments and other financial assets — continued
Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued
Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2(a)(i)) — continued
[0) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

3 an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

. an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Investments and other financial assets — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 2(a)(i)) — continued

[0)

Significant increase in credit risk — continued

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but
will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers a
debt instrument to have low credit risk when it has an internal
as per globally

or external credit rating of “investment grade”

understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria
are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate, except for the
following businesses:

(@  Money lending
The Group considers that default has occurred when the
borrowing is more than 180 days past due.

(b) Securities investment
The Group considers that default has occurred when there
is significant financial difficulty if the issuer.

() Securities brokerage services and margin finance
The Group considers that default has occurred when all
collateral has been sold and the outstanding balances are
not guaranteed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

CONTINUED

Investments and other financial assets — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 2(a)(i)) — continued

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about
the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(© the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over one year past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Investments and other financial assets — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 2(a)(i)) — continued

W)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the
constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount,
with the exception of trade receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED
Investments and other financial assets — continued
Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued
Initial recognition and measurement (before application of HKFRS 9 on
1 January 2018)
The Group classifies its financial assets at initial recognition, depending
on the purpose for which the asset was acquired. Financial assets at
FVTPL are initially measured at fair value and all other financial assets
are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition to the financial assets.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held for trading

and those designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments or financial guarantee contracts.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL
are designated at the date of initial recognition and only if
the criteria in HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are satisfied.

Subsequently to initial recognition, financial assets at FVTPL are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

(i) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with

fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They arise principally through the provision of goods and
services to customers (trade receivables), and also incorporate
other types of contractual monetary assets. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, loan receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses
(see accounting policy on impairment of loans and receivables
below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Investments and other financial assets — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Initial recognition and measurement (before application of HKFRS 9 on

1 January 2018) — continued

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting period, whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or a group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

- granting concession to a debtor because of debtor’s
financial difficulty; and

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

CONTINUED

Investments and other financial assets — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Initial recognition and measurement (before application of HKFRS 9 on

1 January 2018) — continued

(iv)

Impairment of loans and receivables — continued

For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group's past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

The amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all loans and receivables with the exception of trade and other
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade and other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Investments and other financial assets — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Initial recognition and measurement (before application of HKFRS 9 on
1 January 2018) — continued

(vi)  Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, bond
payables, short-term bank loans, short-term loans from other financial
institutions and other borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
THEBRERARAXA

TESTHXR - &

RENRHMUBEE - &

HMBTA-#&

MEEE - #&

TANERRGTE(R=ZF—NF—HA—HAI

ERE B HEERFEIN) - &

i) HEHBTH
BEEEARGIANITENDEHECDE
ReW THBERFEELELHE
IRABEREENEEARBR - B
BEEMEBEEEENE  WEHM
BRRKRBEEFR - KT R
HITHENMGANBRBERREFM
E o MEERERBRESIALMAE
ERH s -BHBEDY  EHEER
WER @ St BAATREIAT

MERERKRAIA
SEBRETZEBRBRATATIRES
WzHrMEREBABRRATAZE
%D BAH TR MKBA -

KATA
BATADERERRMBEMAEABR
CEETHENSERZEMELDN - AR
RIBETZRATANEWAERBENRE
BEBITRARTER

HEAE
AEBHMBEEREESRAMGENR
oS EHBRTER KR
SEBBZEHERR A EE)BEERR
BERNERRBHERAHE -

AU R

AEBREERAERR - BURMK LR -
FERIEERMBAR - RELRRBZH
BaEzREEEEAREMRERNE

HeNERRER -



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its non-financial assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the
asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGU, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGU for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a CGU) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a CGU) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income

immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control of a product or
service to a customer. Revenue excludes amounts collected on behalf
of third parties.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources:

- Sales of goods from processing of fabrics and trading of fabrics
and garment products;

- Services income from subcontracting services on fabrics
processing;

- Income from entertainment and media services;
- Interest income from loan to customers;

- Commission and service income from underwriting, placing and

brokerage and related services; and
- Interest income from margin financing.

Sales of goods

The Group sells finished fabrics to customers. Revenue is recognised
when control of the goods is transferred to the customers being when
the goods are shipped to the customer’s specific location (delivery).
Following delivery, the customer has full discretion over the manner of
distribution and price to sell the goods, has the primary responsibility
when onselling the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss
in relation to the goods. A receivable is recognised by the Group when
the goods are delivered to the customer as this represents the point
in time at which the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as
only the passage of time is required before payment is due.

Subcontracting fee

The Group carries out processing, printing and subcontracting services
to fabrics provided by customers. Such services are recognised as a
performance obligation satisfied over time. Revenue is recognised for
these services based on the stage of completion of the contract.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Revenue recognition — continued

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income from sale of securities
Income from sale of equity and debt securities is recognised on a trade
date basis.

Commission income for security brokerage
Commission and brokerage income are recognised at the rate agreed
in the contract with the customers at the point when the transaction
of securities trading is completed.

Commission income for underwriting and placing
The Group provides placing or public offer underwriting services to
customers under which the Group agrees to subscribe or procure
subscribers to subscribe for (i) agreed number of shares pursuant to
a placing or (ii) shares which are not taken up under public offer.
Commission income is recognised at a point in time upon the placing
shares and public offer shares have been successfully subscribed by
sufficient number of investors. Commission income will be received
immediately based on the rate agreed in underwriting agreement with
the issuers upon the placing and offering shares subscribed.

Income for securities related handling service
The Group provides securities related handling services on collection of
dividends or dividends in kind and physical stock handling for customers’
securities under their custody. Handling services income is recognised
at the point of time when services provided and fee received based on
the listed price of relevant services notified to the customers.

Subscription income

The Group provides subscription services on its Over-The-Top (“OTT")
platform. Subscription income is recognised over time based on the
subscription period provided to its customers.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Revenue recognition — continued

Advertising income

The Group provides advertisement design and production and
advertising services to its customers. Advertising income is recognised
over time when the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date. Significant judgment is
required in determining whether the terms of the Group’s contracts with
customers in relation to advertisement products with no alternative use
create an enforceable right to payment for the Group. The Group has
considered the relevant local laws that apply to those relevant contracts.
Based on the assessment of the directors of the company, the terms
of the relevant advertisement design and production contracts do not
create an enforceable right to payment for the Group after taking into
consideration of the Group’s right to be paid for work done to date
if the customer were to cancel the contract before the order was fully
completed. Accordingly, the revenue from advertisement design and
production is considered to be performance obligation satisfied over

time.

Licence fee income of trademarks

The Group licenses its trademarks to its customers in specific period.
Licence fee income of trademarks is recognised over time when
customers have rights to assess the its trademarks.

Licence fee income of film rights

The Group licenses its film rights to its customers. Licence fee income
of film rights is recognised over time when customers have rights to
use the its film rights.

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than
termination benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before
twelve months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees render the related service.

Retirement benefit costs

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
a state-managed retirement benefit plan operated by the municipal
government of the PRC where a group entity operates. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to the
retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit plan is to make the
specified contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Retirement benefit costs — continued

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ monthly relevant
income, subject to a cap of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for the intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit/(loss) before taxation’ as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Taxation - continued

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuated significantly during the year, in which case
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve.
Such translation differences are reclassified to profit or loss from equity
in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a jointly controlled entity that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short-term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

Related parties
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related

to the Company if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Company;

(ii) has significant influence over the Company; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel of the
Company or the Company’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBS RMEGR)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED
Related parties — continued
(b)  An entity is related to the Company if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of the same
group;

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of the other entity
of which the other entity is a member);

(iii)  The entity and the Company are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Company or an entity
related to the Company;

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to the
reporting entity or to the parent of the report entity.

Close member of the family of a person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ReMEBEERMEE)
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
Estimated impairment of goodwill and non-financial
assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group and the Company have the
following non-financial assets:

- property, plant and equipment

- prepaid lease payments

- intangible assets

- interest in an associate

- investments in subsidiaries

The Group reviews its intangible assets for indications of impairment at

end of each reporting period according to accounting policies set out
in note 3.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - CONTINUED

Estimated impairment of goodwill and non-financial
assets — continued

Determining whether goodwill and non-financial assets are impaired
requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGUs to
which non-financial assets have been allocated. The recoverable amount
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the CGUs and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value or recent transaction prices of similar
assets when they are available and depreciation replacement cost when
appropriate for assets. Where the estimation of recoverable amount is
different, there will be a material impact to the Group's profit or loss.

Impairment of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price for inventories, less all the
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sales.
The management reviews the inventory ageing listing on a periodic basis
for those aged inventories. This involves comparison of carrying value of
the aged inventory items with the respective net realisable value. The
purpose is to ascertain whether allowance is required to be made in
the consolidated financial statements for any obsolete and slow moving
items. Although the Group carried periodic review on the net realisable
value of inventory, the actual realisable value of inventory is not known
until the sale was concluded.

Provision of ECL for trade and other receivable

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the trade and
other receivables. The provision rates are based on historical loss
as groupings of various debtors that have similar loss patterns. The
provision matrix is based on the Group’s historical default rates taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are reassessed and changes
in the forward-looking information are considered. In addition, trade
and other receivables with significant balances and credit impaired are
assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The information
about the ECL and the Group’s trade and other receivables are disclosed
in note 6.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - CONTINUED

Allowance for ECLs on loan receivables

Before the adoption of HKFRS 9, the Group makes allowance for
impairment of loan receivables based on an evaluation of collectability
and ageing analysis of the receivables. The impairment loss amount
of the individual receivable is the net decrease in the present value
of the estimated future cash flows, and the evidence of impairment
may include the observable data indicating that there is a measureable
decrease in estimated future cash flows of the individual receivable.
The Group periodically reviews its receivables to assess impairment
individually and collectively except that there are known situation
demonstrating impairment losses have occurred during that period. The
Group makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data
indicating that an impairment loss should be recorded. The evidence
may include the current creditworthiness and the credit history as well
as the financial conditions of the customer. The methodologies and
assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future
cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce the differences between
loss estimates and actual loss experience. As at 31 December 2017,
there was an allowance for impairment loss of loan receivables of

approximately RMB9,391,000 was made.

Since the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, the allowance
for ECLs on the loan receivables are estimated based on assumption
about the risk of default and credit risk of respective receivables. The
loss allowance amount is measured at difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
with the consideration of expected future credit loss of the respective
receivables. Such assessment involves high degree of estimation and
uncertainty. When the actual future cash flows are less or more than
expected, a material ECLs or material reversal of ECLs may arise,
accordingly.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - CONTINUED
Allowance for ECLs on loan receivables — continued

The following significant judgements are required in applying the
accounting requirements for measuring the ECL:

Significant increase of credit risk

As explained in Note 3, ECL are measured as an allowance equal to
12m ECL or lifetime ECL for respective receivables. An asset will use
lifetime ECL when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a significant
increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased, the Group takes into account quantitative
and qualitative reasonable and supportable forward looking information
including available customers’ historical data and existing and forecast
market conditions.

Model and assumptions used

ECLs on the loan receivables which are not assessed to be credit
impaired are estimated using a calculation model using observable data
as at the end of the reporting period, including the difference between
(i) the effective interest rates of interest charged by the Group for similar
categories of the loans; and (i) the risk-free rate, and GDP growth, etc.
Judgements is applied in identifying the most appropriate ECL model
as well as for determining the assumption used in the model, including
those relate to key drivers of credit risk.

The Group's allowance for ECLs on loan receivables may also take
into account the subsequent settlement, collateral valuation and the
management’s judgement on the effectiveness and marketability of
the collateral properties and customers’ capability of payment at the
estimated valuation and the actual valuation may differ from the
estimation.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of liability component of
obligation under finance leases, bond payables, short-term bank loans,
short-term loans from other financial institutions and other borrowings,
net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and accumulated
deficit as disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with the capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through various means, including
but not limited to the new share issues, raising of bank or other loans
or the redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@) Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets HMBEE
Loans and receivables (including cash

EXERER
AEMERHES  DERAEENEE
B AR AEE RN R B R IS R
AEBRBREZEE - ARE 2 BEAE
B 45 L E TR o

REHZEARBREGAVBME PR
BEMREHEAREZAESY  BNES -
RHESRITER REEMEREEZEH
ERNURAEMEE  HIBRREERASEE
YMRARREA AN ER (BIERARTE
BERMPEENEBITRA  BERETE
)

ARBEZEHMRAEARE - FRILA
B — 8D ARREFEEEARAR
BAFRMSZ AR - N RBE I KIEARF
Efxzgsd S8BT TEIR BEETR
REITH A - BERITHEMBERLE
EIRAEHMFELERBERRE -

BEITA
(a) BMBIEZER

2018 2017
—T-N\F

—E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKET T ARETF T

ERRERFERERS

and cash equivalents) RBFeEED) 456,211 666,031
Financial assets at FVTPL BERAFEFABREZ
MK EE 123,237 52,413
579,448 718,444
Financial liabilities MKkaE
Financial liabilities at amortised costs BEEK AT EZ VKA E 911,728 388,535
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — CONTINUED

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, loan receivables, financial assets at FVTPL, pledged
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables,
bond payables, finance leases, short-term bank loans, short-term
loans from other financial institutions and other borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

Market risk

Interest rate risk

Interest rate profile

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank deposits which is mainly relating to
the fluctuation of Hong Kong Prime Rate. The management of
the Group monitors the related interest rate risk exposure closely

to minimise these interest rate risks.

The interest rate risk on bank deposits is limited because of the
short maturity.

The directors of the Company consider that the exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk on bank deposits are insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RERBEHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — CONTINUED

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Market risk — continued

Currency risk

The functional currency of the group entities are mainly Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”) and RMB in which most of the transactions
are denominated in. The directors of the Company consider that
the group entities are exposed to currency risk related primarily
to financial assets at FVTPL, other receivables, bank balances and
cash and short-term loans from other financial institutions that
are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency
of the group entities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

MBTH-&
(b) MBEBEEEERBE - &

%5 kg -
B

SEER2NEBIEREL(E
TNEARE » REBHIZHAARE
FHE - ARFEERE  SEEERX
FrERRREZERZAFESFA
BalRcMBEE - At EKER
RITHEBRERBESARKEEMESH
BEZIEHERAR ZEREUE
EERDEEE AN EHEE -

B

REBERA L WIMNEEIPBE - A
- EREERNERRE XER
FEREZEEPERINERR -

AEBUIINEFEZEEEERE
ERBESHEERGOEREAENT

Assets Liabilities

BE =N
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E—tF ZE_NF ZET—LF

—E-N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR TT ARBTT ARETT ARETT

HK$ BT 172,919 173,386 426,046 359,779
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — CONTINUED

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Market risk — continued

Currency risk — continued

Sensitivity analysis

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the following details
the Group's sensitivity to a 5% increase in RMB, the functional
currency of the group entities against HK$. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 5% change in foreign currency rate. A
positive number below indicated a decrease in loss and increase
in profit where the functional currency of the group entity
strengthens 5% against the HK$. For 5% weakening of the
functional currency of the group entity against HK$, this would
be an equal and opposite impact on the loss/profit.

As at 31 December 2018, if the functional currency of the group
entities had strengthened 5% against HK$ with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s loss after taxation for the year would
have decreased by approximately RMB12,656,000 (2017: loss
after taxation decreased by approximately RMB9,320,000). There
would be an opposite effect if the functional currency had
weakened 5% against HK$.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group has policies in
place for determining credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.
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6.

146

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment —
continued
Trade receivables

(1)

(i)

Securities brokerage and margin finance segment

The credit risk arises on the margin portfolio and clients’
trade settlement. When the market goes downside, the
possibility of bad and doubtful debts will arise. The margin
clients may be unable or unwilling to settle the sum owed.
As such, credit assessment and continuous management
of credit exposures are indispensable. The Group has
established the credit policies and procedures setting out
in details the structure of the credit risk management,
the credit approval and monitoring mechanism, and the
issue for overdue debts. Meanwhile, the management has
overseen the Group's overall credit risk exposure arisen
from margin clients. Moreover, the Group closely evaluates
the margin clients’ credit rating, financial background
and repayment abilities. The assessment is based on a
closely monitoring and evaluation of the collectability of
individual account and on management’s judgement from
different aspects including the current credit worthiness of
the margin clients, collateral value and the past collection
history of each individual margin client. In addition, the
Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
upon application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model)
on trade balances based on provision matrix. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group's
credit risk on receivables from margin clients is significantly
reduced.

Other segments

In order to minimise the credit risk on trade receivables
from other businesses, the management of the Group
closely monitor the aging to recover any receivables
outstanding over 90 days. In addition, the Group monitors
subsequent settlement of each of the receivables to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application of HKFRS
9 (2017: incurred loss model) on trade balances based
on provision matrix. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk on the trade
receivables from other businesses is significantly reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — CONTINUED

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment —
continued

Loan receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk on the advances to third
parties, the management of the Group closely monitor the
follow-up action taken to recover any loans outstanding over
180 days. In addition, the Group monitors subsequent settlement
of each of the loans and receivables to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
addition, the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model upon application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model)
on loan balances individually. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk on the loan
receivables is significantly reduced.

Other receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk on other receivables, the
management of the Group closely monitor the follow-up action
taken to recover any receivable balances outstanding over 180
days. In addition, the Group monitors subsequent settlement
of each of the receivables to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In addition, the
Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model upon
application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model) on other
balances individually. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk on the other receivables is
significantly reduced.

Pledged bank deposits and bank balances

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies and PRC stated-owned banks
with good reputation.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are
deposited with several banks with high credit ratings, the Group
does not have any other significant concentration of credit risk.
Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread
across diverse industries and geographical areas.
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6.

148

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — CONTINUED
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment —

continued

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the

following categories:

Internal credit

rating

Low risk

1K = 2

Watch list

B
$
®

Doubtful

3]

Loss

& 18

Write-off

Description

The counterparty has a low risk of
default and does not have any past
due amounts

REHFHINEHNRBRBRE - B &
{E fa] 360 84 SR IR

Debtor frequently repays after due
dates but usually settle after due
date

BEHALEERBBARBEE -
REIH B & &

BEE

There have been significant increases
in credit risk since initial recognition
through information developed
internally or external resources

BT HAUREERRERBANILE
7 EYE BB SR E R B R N

There is evidence indicating the asset is
credit impaired

BEEBBRREELNREERE

There is evidence indicating that the
debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery

EREBETEBAERENBRER
AEFBTEERTRE R L
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AEEXNFEERRFRETIE

7l 48 PK -

Trade receivables in all
business except securities
brokerage and margin

finance business

B EBLAINK P 275
V8 5 e W BR X

Lifetime ECL
— not credit-impaired

EHEHEREER
- BEERE

Lifetime ECL
— not credit impaired

2HEHEREER
- EBEERE

Lifetime ECL

— not credit-impaired
2 HEMEEER

-EBEERE
Lifetime ECL

— credit impaired
2HEHMEEERE

- EERE

Amount is written off

bR &

Other financial assets

HA 5 & E

12m ECL

S

ToEAEHEERR

12m ECL

TEAEMEEER

Lifetime ECL
- not credit-impaired

2 HEIEEEE
-BEERE
Lifetime ECL
— credit impaired
> HBEHEEBE
- EERE

Amount is written off
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED 6. BIEIHA-E&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BHXEREEEERBX - &
policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment — =EREREEFG - &
continued
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s TERHFMRBREEHEEBFSETHAR
financial assets which are subject to ECL assessment: SEMBAEMER 2 ESRR:

Gross carrying
amount
Internal 12-month or BEmEAE

credit rating lifetime ECL RMB’000
A EBfE B +=fE A=k
=T 4% 2HEHREEEE A R#F o

Financial assets at amortised

costs

REBENLIFECUBEE

Trade receivables 25(a) (Note *) 12m ECL and lifetime ECL 145,456
— securities brokerage and (not credit impaired)
margin finance segment (K&t =) +oEAESHEEFIEREBEHE

B HEBER EBEBEEERE)

- BERRERRESRE DA

Trade receivables 25(b)  (Note #) Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 10,536
— other segments (Kt aF#) T HEHREEHIE(BHER)
- Hfth 5 &P
Other receivables 6(b)(iii) (Note *) Lifetime ECL (not credit impaired) 22,545
H fth JiE 45 BR 5K (77 *) *HEMEEFE(EERBE)
Loan receivables 26 (Note *) Lifetime ECL (not credit impaired) 106,514
JE W E % (7 *) THEMEEFE (X EEERE)
Credit-impaired 14,552
EERE

Annual l'\;t;poﬁr; 201 8 149



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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MBTH-&
(b) MBEBEEERRBE - &

= B E e K sl PG -

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — CONTINUED 6.
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment —

continued
Notes: oAt
* For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group * BFABEEEBREEMNS  A%E

158 P78 51 & KT 1 B )R B R R
EERRESKEEZN -

uses past due information to assess whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

Not past due/No
fixed repayment
Past due term

150

RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT
Trade receivables B 5 R
— securities brokerage and -BHFERR
margin finance segments RESCRED I - 145,456 145,456
Other receivables H {h fE W 3RE - 22,545 22,545
Loan receivables FE W E R 14,552 106,514 121,066
14,552 274,515 289,067
# For trade receivables of other segments, the Group has applied # REMD B EFIERERME

the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance
at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with significant outstanding
balances or credit-impaired, the Group determines the expected
credit losses on these items by using a provision matrix, grouped
by past due status.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group uses
debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for its customers in
relation to its operation because these customers consist of a
large number of small customers with common risk characteristics
that are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all
amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms. The
following table provides information about the exposure to credit
risk for trade receivables in other businesses which are assessed
based on provision matrix as at 31 December 2018 within lifetime
ECL (not credit impaired). No debtors with significant outstanding
balances as at 31 December 2018 were assessed individually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED 6. BIEIHA-E&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MKRBEEEEZEREE - &

policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment — =EREREEFG - &
continued
The estimated loss rates are estimated based on (i) the Group’s BEHEBEBEDEROAEBEHEA
estimates of the market borrowing rates for each of the grouping Il 71735 18 B R 2 6 £ 51 (H B 8 L B
less risk-free rate, which reflect the credit risk of trade receivables ) - R F 4D IRTE R ARFE 4
from securities brokerage services and margin finance segment MEDEHAREREROEERR
and loan receivables and (ii) time value of money and are adjusted iy #NEMEEMHRE  TRIE
for forward-looking information that is available without undue R R % K RSB RS H) A IE
cost or effort. BRGETRHE -
(i) Trade receivables — other segments () EZERES — o5

Lifetime ECL (not
credit impaired)
THEREEER

(I & ERE)
RMB’000
AREF T

As at 31 December 2017 under HKAS 39 RZTE—tF+=ZA=+—H
REBEEB G ERIE395 2,712

Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 9 FERE BB REERFEOWR
f& 3 & 1,102
As at 1 January 2018 — As restated RZTE—-N\F—HA—H-&E7 3,814

Changes due to financial instruments recognised & N RMW TS TAES) :
during the year:

- Impairment losses recognised - EERAEERE 3,010
— Impairment losses reversed -BERERE (654)
- Exchange adjustments - EHAE 121
As at 31 December 2018 R=-Z2-NE+=ZA=+—H 6,291
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REeMBERMEE)

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment —
continued
() Trade receivables — other segments — continued

Changes in the loss allowance for trade receivables of other
segments are mainly due to:

6.

EZI';]’%IE - IIE
(b) BIBEBEZEEEREEX - &

= B E e K sl PG -

() ESEWRENL — At -
E b 882 B 5 MW R SR &
BEREYHTEAN:

As at

31 December 2018
RZT—N\F
+=—A=+—8H
Increase/(decrease)
in lifetime ECL

2 Hi78 T
EEEm Of L
Non-credit impaired

I % {5 B (E

RMB’000
AR F T

Decrease in trade receivables in processing, FEIR mE AT ENTE K
printing and sales of finished fabrics in PRC HEREBHEE K
and trading of fabrics and clothing in Hong R 5 2 5 FE R FROR A

Kong

(654)

Increase in trade receivables in Media CGU HEREeELBVUNES

JiE Ug B 03 AN

3,010

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is

information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.

when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has

entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — CONTINUED 6. M&EIH-&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MKRBEEEEZEREE - &
policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment - =EREREEFG - &
continued
(ii) Trade receivables in securities brokerage and margin (i) ERELERRECHES S
finance segment ﬁ’ 5 FE WL BR

Lifetime ECL (not
credit impaired)

RMB’000
AREF T

As at 31 December 2017 under HKAS 39 RZZE—+tE+-A=+—H
RIBEE G ERIE395 3,567

Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 9 FERB AN REERFEIN
f& & 315

As at 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F—A—H-&F75

— As restated 3,882

Changes due to financial instruments recognised F AR BT T A& &) -
during the year:

- Impairment losses recognised - EERAEERE 5,451

- Exchange adjustments - BEREE S 625
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZZB-NE+ZA=+—H 9,958
Changes in the loss allowance trade receivables in EHELEEREBEREEDH
securities brokerage and margin finance segment are 2B EVGRIBEERE 2 E
mainly due to: B EHRN:

As at
31 December 2018

Increase in Ilfetlme ECL

AFRHEE

&R
12m ECL
non-credit impaired

T ERAEHEEREE

RMB’000
AREFr

Increase in trade receivables in securities BEECLERRESREEEY
brokerage and margin finance business 2B 5 FEW R IEE M 5,451
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RERBEHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — CONTINUED 6. BIEIH-E&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BHXEREEEEREX - &
policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment — =EREERHEEFG - &
continued
(i) Other receivables (i) E A FE YL BR

12m ECL and
lifetime ECL (not
credit impaired)

+=1

/\/ VALK ’D =N {E)

RMB’000

ARBF o
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+=ZA=+—H

under HKAS 39 RIEEE G5 ERI 5395 -
Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 9 ERBANEREERFEIN

B 2,833

As at 1 January 2018 — As restated RZZE—N\F—A—H- &£E7 2,833

Changes due to financial instruments recognised F NERWUFETAZSH) :
during the year:

— Impairment losses reversed - BEREEE (2,866)

— Exchange adjustments -ERAE 33
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZEB-NF+ZA=1+—-8 -
Changes in the loss allowance other receivables are mainly HipE W BE R EEREES Y
due to: T2HR:

As at
31 December 2018

Decrease in
lifetime ECL

> HIFEHEE
&5 180w
12m ECL

=]

RMB’000

AR¥F T
Settlement in full of other debtors with a PYEERABLEOARE
gross carrying amount of approximately 98,383,0007T 1) E A (F 5 A
RMB98,383,000 (2,866)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED 6. BT H-1E&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BHXREREEEERBX - &
policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment — EEE R A EF S - &
continued
(iv)  Loan receivables (iv) JEWEFZ

Lifetime ECL Lifetime
(not credit ECL (credit
impaired) impaired)

2 HTEHI (= 2 HTEH(E

BB E EBiA
FEERE) EEREE) A5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR TT AE®TT ARETT

As at 31 December 2017 under RZTE—+tF
HKAS 39 +=—A=+—8
BEEB g ER
%395k - 9,391 9,391
Adjustment upon application of JEREBIMBRESE
HKFRS 9 RSBt 1B A= 5,127 - 5,127

As at 1 January 2018 — As restated R=—Z—\F—H—H
- L E7 5,127 9,391 14,518

Changes due to financial instruments & R #E R B 7% T A

recognised during the year: 28
— Impairment losses recognised - BRI EERE 3,882 4,469 8,351
— Impairment losses reversed - B[O E K 1R (3,002) - (3,002)
- Exchange adjustments - B H R 314 692 1,006
As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZB-N\F
+=—B=+-—H 6,321 14,552 20,873
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RERBEHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED 6. MEITH-&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MEEKBEEEEREE - &

policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment — =B Bk R A E 1 - &

continued

(iv)  Loan receivables — continued (iv) JEWEZ -4#&
Changes in the loss allowance loan receivables are mainly EWEREEREEHHEE
due to: AR

As at 31 December 2018
RZZFE—N\F+=ZA=+—H
Increase/(decrease) in lifetime ECL
ZHBEHEEBEEM CRd)

Non-credit
impaired  Credit-impaired
I 15 B E EERE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TF T ARKTF T

A loan receivable defaulted as at RZE—N\F+=-A=+—H

31 December 2018 EHE—IHERE R - 4,469
Advance of loan receivables R E BB R 3,882 -
Repayment of loan receivables EREREE (3,002) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — CONTINUED

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Based on
the good working relationship with its banks and other financial
institutions and to optimise the use of the Group’s liquid funds,
the Group will consider renewing the bank and other loans upon
their maturities. The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the existing facilities from banks and other loans could be
successfully renewed upon maturity based on the past history and
good relationships of the Group with the banks and other loans.
The management monitors the utilisation of bank and other
loans, finance leases, bond payables and ensures compliance with
loan covenants. The directors of the Company closely monitor
the cash flow of the Group and, upon maturity, would arrange
the renewal and refinancing of the bank and other loans and
bond payables, where necessary, to enable the Group to carry
on its operations in the foreseeable future. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s liquidity
risk is significantly reduced and are satisfied that the Group will
be able to meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due
the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Consolidated Financial
Statements have been prepared on a going-concern basis.

In addition, the Group is exposed to liquidity risk in relation
to financial guarantees given to banks provided by the Group.
The Group’s maximum exposure in this respect is the maximum
amount the Group could have to pay RMB50,000,000 (2017: Nil)
if the guarantee is called on (note 39).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. For non-derivative financial liabilities,
the table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of non-derivative financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent
that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is
derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

e MEERME(E)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

MBITA -&
(b) HHEMEBEERIK - &

EEERPESCRRE  AEEE
REBFEEERRBERHZE
e MREEHEEY  AEAEEZEB
RHES URHERSRERDZ
FE - ERAEEEATRRITRAE
hEREBRITRFNSIERE - U
REBECASERDESHER &
SEBEERRTREMEREH
REBEEWER - ARBEFTAR
ERNBERBERAEERRTZH
BREF AAERBRITHE REAM
ERBARIBAERINESE - BIE
BERRITREMER  REHEE -
RRNESFZBRBER  LHEREET
ERRw - ARAREFENEER
EEzReRE ANFTERHD
HzRTEREMERARERNES
ETEBENBRERY  UEASE
BINAT R ARG LTS o st E -
ARAEERRAEBEZRDES
REBERKBE  LEMAREER
ARG RS 2 HETTH B8 2 @
BEME - Bt HEBBRERE
BREEERH -

AN - NEB B ERBITIRE 2 B
ERMEHAATSHESRAR - K
SEAELFEZEKRRRAMEHE
EXBTBERAERBEASEEA XN
Z & me 3 A KRES50,000,0007C (=
T—tFm)(MiE39) -

NREE IR IR 5 E B K AN SR 3F
MEFBEEZRBEOEHA - 5
ETAMBREMS F TRIOVREAL
SERFAUREBLEEFTENHE
EEERUBREZARANARER
EMFmEE  EBEMNEREAERER
E - BNERRIER  BIANRSEL
Wl EHEAERFONESL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RERBEHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

MBTH-&
(b) MBEBEEEERBE - &

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — CONTINUED 6.
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Liquidity risk — continued REELERE - &
Weighted
average  On demand Total Carrying
Amount at
31.12.2018

effective  or less than 3 months Undiscounted

interest rate 3 months to 1 year  Over 1 year Cash flows

s =&/ =fdA

—FLE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

{ Mk =l : | R

158

2018 —E-N\%
Trade and other payables* B5 R Efn AT ER A - 367,664 - - 367,664 367,664
Bond payables R & 8.00 4916 66,369 - 71,285 67,393
Obligation under finance leases BEHERE 6.35 54 162 209 425 410
Short-term bank loans - fixed rate REROTER-EL 5.68 - 92,961 - 92,961 90,350
Short-term loans from other financial ~ REHMEHEE 2 S H
institutions - fixed rate ER-ER 19.30 217,354 3,719 - 221,073 220,866
Other borrowings - fixed rate HiuEE-E 8 25.55 171,215 - - 171,215 165,045
761,203 163,211 209 924,623 911,728
2017 —T-t%
Trade and other payables* B5 R H AT BR 70+ - 170,525 - - 170,525 170,525
Bond payables R & 8.00 4,662 62,937 - 67,599 63,908
Obligation under finance leases BEREAE 6.34 51 154 402 607 577
Short-term bank loans - fixed rate RBBITER-ES 537 - 119,621 - 119,621 113,550
Short-term loans from other financial ~ FEHMEREE 2 B H
institution - fixed rate ER-TL 8.25 8,340 - - 8,340 8,340
Other borrowing - fixed rate HufEE-E 8 8.00 - 34,159 - 34,159 31,635
183,578 216,871 402 400,851 388,535
* The amount includes trade payables, other payables, customers’ * ZREBEEDEMNER - HibfE

deposits, amounts due to a director/directors of the subsidiaries/
a shareholder of the Company/non-controlling owners of a
subsidiary/related companies (2017: trade payables, other payables,
customers’ deposits, amounts due to a director/director of a
subsidiary/a shareholder of the Company/non-controlling owners

of a subsidiary/related companies).

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
THNERZRAERL A

NRE FFReERENES/
MEARES RARMRHE
NEFEEEEHREA S BER
ARBACE-—tF - BEIRNE
RHMENRE EFEER
ERER/HBARES EARA
R B ARFERERES
AN/ BEARFRIE) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — CONTINUED

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its investments
classified as financial assets at FVTPL. The management manages
this exposure by closely monitoring the price movements and the
changes in market conditions that may affect the value of the

investments.

A decrease of 5% on equity price would have an negative impact
of approximately RMB6,162,000 (2017: RMB2,621,000) on profit
or loss. An increase of 5% in the value of the listed equity
securities would impact the Group’s performance in a similar

amount.

Fair values of financial instruments
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with
standard terms and conditions and traded in active markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid and ask prices
respectively.

The principal amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
with a maturity of less than one year (including trade and
other receivables, loan receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables, bond payables,
finance leases, short-term bank loans, short-term loans from
other financial institutions and other borrowings) are assumed to
approximate their fair values.

e MEERME(E)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

BMBITHE-&
(b) MEBERABEEEEREE - &

B 18 = B
AEBRKRERDBERBRAFES
ANERBEZMBEEMAZRER
- EEEEATUEERERT
MEHEAETEREBEIAR
KERE IR R -

M AR B T BR5% « E i ¥ I8 RIEK
#HANRE6,162,0007T (T — 4 ¢
AR #2,621,00070) 2 BEFZE © i
ITTRABLEZEELAS%  HE
HAEBRRERBESBIVE -

HBEITAZLAFE
MEEERMBAB I ATEER
m

AEBBRERR G L RNIERET S
BEREZUBEERYBEEZAYF
EBEARZ2EMBEAREREEE
T o
MR IR - F 2 BEERY
BaBEBEESREMBYRER -
R ER SEMRTER RT
wEHnhkRe BHREMEMNRR
FNES BMEEE EHRTE
RoRBEMSREBZEHER
REMEE)AEDBRRELATFE
BE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REeMBERMEE)

31 December 2018 —ZE—N\F+=-_A=+—H

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued
Fair values of financial instruments — continued
The following table presents the carrying value of the Group's
financial instruments measured at fair value across the three
levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair
Value Measurement” with fair value of each financial instrument
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level of input
that is significant to that fair value measurement. The levels are
defined as follows:

Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted)

in active markets for identical financial instruments.

Level 2: fair values measured using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market data are not
available.

Level 3: fair values measured using significant unobservable
input.

160 ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — CONTINUED 6. MEITH-&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MEEKMEEEEREE - &
policies — continued
Fair values of financial instruments — continued BBETAZLNFHE-&

2018
—ZE—)N\F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

=Ry & 422 & #%3
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBBTT ARETET ARETT

Financial assets at FVTPL BEATEFAEREZ
MHEE
- Equity securities listed in - BB LTRAFES
Hong Kong, at fair value (R AFER 121,966 - -
- Equity securities listed in - BN TR AN
overseas, at fair value (R AFER) 1,271 - -

2017
—ET—+tF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

& A & .2 [& %3
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETT ARETT

Financial assets at FVTPL RATFEAABERZEZ
%A E
- Equity securities listed in - BB LT RARGES
Hong Kong, at fair value (B A FEF) 46,989 - -
- Equity securities listed in overseas, - BN ETRAEFH
at fair value (R R FEE) 5,424 - -
There were no transfers between the three Levels during the year REANRBAESE TFE=EE
and prior period. HozER R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RERBEHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. BEERIEER

The Group derives its revenue from the transfer of goods and services AEEFRELR —RIFHE RN EE
over time and at a point in time in the following major product lines. ERUTFZERE 2 AmEREmHES
This is consistent with the revenue information that is disclosed for each s o U BLIR BE 7 B B IS 5 A BI85
reportable segment under HKFRS 8. MEEAREDERBZWEER — -

2018 2017
“E-NE Tt F

RMB‘000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETFT

Revenue from contracts with customers within FEMERELA EISHEEFE AL
the scope of HKFRS 15, types of goods or WREEANHWA - &Rl RS

services: LWl
Sales of goods from LT EmEE
- sales of finished fabrics - HERSME 33,914 42,788
- trading of fabrics and garment products -mHERREEMRES 3,027 3,731
36,941 46,519
Subcontracting services income D ERBKA 57,938 68,297
Advertising income BEEKA 15,202 -
Subscription income A B A 4,237 -
License fee income — Film right BEEBWRA - R EFR 1,519 -
License fee income — Trademarks BEREBRA - 7% 3,816 -
Other entertainment and media services H R % R EEBREKA
income 59 552
Brokerage and related services income 448 RAE B BR 15 A 8,883 6,369
Underwriting and placing services income B 38 & BL & M 7% W A 7,282 8,894
Handling services income BB AR IS A 645 457
136,522 131,088
Revenue from other sources H i ROR 2 W=
Loan interest income B AR B WA 18,160 14,659
Margin financing interest income RESBEF WA 11,343 5,001
166,025 150,748
1 62 ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION -
CONTINUED

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised by
a mixture of both business lines (products and services) and geography.
In a manner consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group
has presented the following six reportable segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.

of finished fabrics and

3 Processing, printing and sales

subcontracting services in the PRC;
3 Trading of fabrics and clothing;

o Money lending;

. Securities investment;

. Media, cultural and entertainment (“Media CGU"); and

. Securities brokerage services and margin finance (“Brokerage and
Margin CGU").

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s senior executive management
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include non-current assets and current assets
attributable to the activities of the individual segments. Segment
liabilities include trade and other payables attributable to the activities
of the individual segments and short-term loans managed directly by

the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

31 December 2018 — &

7.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RERBEHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - 7.
CONTINUED
Segment results, assets and liabilities — continued
Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as provided to

EXRERIEER - &

PHEE BEERAE-&
REBRPERTHIBERENEALEE &
BRTEEBIRHZASEARESEZ
ERmT

the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance is set out
below:

Securities investment Entertainment and med

Trading of fabrics and

- Hong Kong - Hong Kong ment elimination

Revenue from extemal RENARERZ
Customers Wi 91,852 111,085 3007 3731 18,160 14,659 - - 24833 552 2153 20 - - - - 166,05 150748
Revenue from intersegment W5 B - - - - - - - - 16709 12,641 - 184 26860 S4T08 43578 (69,173) - -
91,852 111,085 3007 3731 18,160 14,659 - - 0,54 13193 2153 22545 26,869 54,708 @3578) (69173 166005 150,748
Reasonable segment AREFEUER
revenue and timing of ~~ WEBZZER
revenue recognition
Products and services RE-REYES
transferred at
a paint in time 33914 4,788 3007 331 18,160 14,659 - - 1519 13193 2153 22,545 26,869 54,708 #3578) (69173 68,064 82,451
Services transferred over tme E & R BB -&
EREBRE 57938 68,297 - - - - - - 40,013 - - - - - - - 97,961 68,207
Reportable segment revenue AR %5 A 91,852 111,085 3007 331 18,160 14,659 - - 054 13193 28,153 2545 26,869 54,08 (#3578)  (6973) 166,025 150,748
Reportable segment BREAE
(loss)fprofit (58)/ 47
(adjusted EBITDA) (EBEmBIDA) (16,057) 2,963 2% (653) 12,755 4,804 (49062)  (15091)  (150937)  (46,964) 9,097 10306 (39407) (35389 - - (33585 (80,024)
Depreciation and amortisation 37 &7 (10606)  (7301) 6] ] - - - - (81059) (326) (174) (118) (834) (973) - - @1 (872)
Impairment loss on goodwil  HEHHEEE - - - - - - - - (114,366) - - - - - - - (114,366) -
Impairment loss on intangble &7/ & 45 &
assels i - - - - - - - - (068) - - - - - - - 068y -
Impaiment on property, 1% BER&E
plant and equipment JHE (3,606) - - - - - - R3] - - - - - - R AE)] -
Finance costs BERK (5,947) (6,384) - - (19719 (11,705) (2617) 1,209 - (381) (4,384 (815 (53435 (2538 19719 11,705 (66383 (34171)
Share of (losslprofit of EhBERR
an associate (BR)/ &7 (205129) 4009
Impairment loss on interest in B E A FHER
an associate NEEEE (56,798) -
Loss before taxation BEH(58)/E7 (839,756)  (118911)
Reportable segment assets AH%E 2 HEE 159847 22691 230 880 100245 418481 202881 235667 580355 582015 338912 26956 1098537 715014 (1,048002)  (712,845) 1433005 1,693,080
Addiions to non-curent ~ FAFEFERE
segment assets AREE
during the year 2979 1504 - - - - - - 170 7429 79 46 362 1118 - - 45,240 10,557
Reportable segment AREREER
liabilities 138,091 167,383 3898 4360 412380 381,08 67233 8340 160,977 7561 208349 104528 47138 102206 (41238  (381,082) 995684 394378
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ReMBEERMEGE)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - 7.

CONTINUED

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the geographical location
of (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers and (ii) the Group's
property, plant and equipment, investment properties, prepaid lease
payments, intangible assets, goodwill, deposits for other investments,
other deposits and interest in an associate (“specified non-current
assets”). The geographical location of revenue from customers is based
on the location at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical location of the specified non-current assets

is based on the physical location of the asset.

EXERIEER-&

TREJNEBOARBERAIAELZI
@ RARBZYME  BEREE  RE
WE ENHERE BREE BHE-
HMREZRE  HMBEERRBE QT
2Em((EEFRDEEDNEMEZ
HEER - KATEPRENMWENERE
REHBRBIXNEROLEMET © &
EFRDEENHECEREANEEER
FIEMEMETE °

Turnover Non-current assets
EER FERBDEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\F ZFT—tF —ZE-N\F =ZFT—LF
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREFT AEBETFT ARETIT
PRC F 95,668 111,085 26,575 40,527
Malaysia SRED - - 118,141 279,700
Hong Kong FB 70,357 39,663 556,524 490,157
166,025 150,748 701,240 810,384
Information about major customers EHRTERFZEH

There are no customers who individually contribute over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group.

WA R P AR BB E 210%IA L -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RERBEHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - 7. B EELoEEH - &
CONTINUED

Contract balances e
The following table provides information about receivables, contract TRHEIEEP ZEHNRZERER &
assets and contract liabilities from contracts with customers. HNEERAGHABER -

2018 2017
—T—N\F T —+tF

RMB‘000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETFT

Receivables, which are included in FATES REAMBERER]Z
“Trade and other receivables” JE L2 BR 3R
- Sales of goods from finished fabrics and - EREERZ
garment products EmiEE 2,152 6,855
— Subcontracting services income -5 BRBEKA 35 485
— Entertainment and media services income - REREBRBIKA 2,058 131
— Brokerage and related services income - i1 RARRA RIS A (B 77)
(Note) 135,498 57,709
139,743 65,180
Contract liabilities = which are included in HAATES R EMEWER]Z
“Trade and other payables” (note 29) B EE K F29)
— Sales of goods from finished fabrics - @R REER
and garment products AmiHE 5,720 6,803
- Subcontracting services income - DB RBEKA 12,551 10,968
— Deferred revenue - BEEW = 11,442 -
29,713 17,771
The contract liabilities primarily relate to the deposit received from EHEBEFESRATPRBERERIE
customers as security deposit. BZESE
The Group applies the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of HKFRS AEBRAEBMBREENESHKPE
15 and does not disclose information about remaining performance N ATt 2R 1THEERE M ERER
obligations that have original expected durations of one year or less. MZERTENBHEFHA—FRUANZ
BRTERAOBEZEHR -
Note: Bt 7
Due to the business nature of brokerage services and margin finance business, it ENBERBRREEREXEB 2 EBHIEE - 7]
is assumed that the entire trade receivables balances belong to the category of LWBEZ2HESRKRERER BB NEL LB
brokerage and related services income as customers would not indicate whether ARBURAZER  REREFPTERHAEEE
they are settling the brokerage and related services fee, handling services fee or EEREREBREER  RERBEERRE
margin financing interest. SMER S ZHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Reversals of impairment loss on deposits paid

OTHER EXPENSES, GAINS AND LOSSES 8.

ReMBEERMEGE)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

Httpix - WEREE

2018 2017

—FN\F —F—tF

RMB’000
ARETT

RMB’000
AR®TT

BEENHERZZS ZRERE

to suppliers 8,003 1,832
Impairment loss on deposits paid to suppliers B ER 2 &€ 2 mEKE (2,908) (2,018)
Impairment loss on deposits for other HRE v Ze 2 mERBE

investment — (8,671)
Net exchange (loss)/gain P& 5 (E18), W F 58 (12,624) 10,692
Loss on disposals of property, plant and LEWE BMEERREZEIE

equipment (8,754) (287)
Loss on de-registration of subsidiaries SNSRI 1= i gl (8) -

(16,291) 1,548

9. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank and other borrowings wholly
repayable within five years

9. BERAK

2018
—E—)N\F

2017
—ET—+tF
RMB’000
AR FoT

RMB’000
ABRET T

ARNAFRNEHEEZRTR
HEEZH B

- bank loans - RITEE 5,780 6,185

— other secured loans - BEMEERBER 15,786 1,209

- other unsecured loans - EMEEKEER 35,409 16,521
56,975 23,915

Effective interest expense on bond payables B {E5 2 EEREF B ML 4,726 4,856
Effective interest expense on convertible bonds ] # % (&% 2 B R F B F 2 - 1,565
Interest expense on finance leases MERE A EFAX 17 60
Other finance costs E b §h & B AR 4,665 3,775
66,383 34,171
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RERBEHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

10. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 10. BRBiATES 38

2018 2017
—E)N\F —F—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT

Loss before taxation has been arrived at after B AT B, (GTA) T3l

charging/(crediting): BIE:
Directors’ remuneration (note 12) EEMe (Hat12) 5,792 6,823
Staff's retirement benefits scheme BT ZRKEF S
contributions, excluding directors’ TEEEEME
remuneration: 2,685 2,331
Other staff costs, excluding directors’ HMEIRA  TREZEEWS:
remuneration:
— Staff salaries -BI% 106,555 53,838
- Staff welfare -BIwA 340 322
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %1% - BME R ZHB 2 ITE 20,070 8,660
Auditor’s remuneration 1% HRD B & 1,122 1,577
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses X2 T E KA (BETEMORF
(including net write-down of inventories %8 A FR#42,597,000T (ZF—+
amounting to RMB42,597,000 (2017: F : AR %10,705,0007T))
RMB10,705,000)) (note 24) (Kt at24) 112,757 110,324
Net (gain)/loss on securities investment — FEREZWR)/EBFHE-®
financial assets at FVTPL decrease in fair NTEFABRECHBEEZ
value, net N ERDFE
- disposed of during the year -FRAHE (5,247) 9,311
— held at the end of the reporting period -WMEMKREER 48,836 7,386
43,589 16,697
Operating lease rentals in respect of FENATEHEZKEHEHRS
— prepaid lease payments - BNEERE 14 14
- rented premises -HEWME 7,261 8,734
Government rewards and subsidies X T 5E B & & B
(including in other income)* (Gt AH A AR) * (360) (1,068)
Interest income from bank deposits AT A B WA (689) (644)
* The government rewards and subsidies which are included in * Hh B B ) A AR B4R A i AT A EoAts
other income provided by the PRC government to the Group were WAZBNEBEES  FZRF
paid mainly as an incentive for energy saving and organisational ABEEAREEGERAMERE 28
development of the Group. There are no conditions and B o WENE B BN & By I /M
contingencies attached to the receipt of the government subsidies ERGEHERKABE  BEREL
and they are non-recurring in nature. TEBREEMHIER -
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11. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(@) Acquisition of Million Federal International

Limited (“Million Federal”)

On 23 May 2016, the Group had entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party, Sincere Finance
Holding Limited (“Sincere Finance”), pursuant to which the
Group had conditionally agreed to acquire and Sincere Finance
had conditionally agreed to sell the sale shares, representing
60% of the entire issued share capital of Million Federal and its
subsidiaries (collectively refer to as “Million Federal Group”) at
the consideration of HK$90,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB79,785,000). Million Federal Group is principally engaged in
underwriting, placing, brokerage and related services.

The acquisition had been completed during the year ended
31 December 2017. The fair value of net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed of Million Federal Group at the
acquisition date are disclosed as below:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ReMBEERMEGE)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

11. K
(a)

BB

KWBELEKRERAT
(R-P-2)
R-E—RERAA-+=H K&EH
HEVEZFMESCHREEEGRAR
((AESR]) I EERE - Bt
AEEERGRERBEmMMESRE
BKHRELEHERN (BB RE
MBAR (REIEAFEE]) 2B
TR 7N 260%) + X {8 /90,000,000
BT (M8 F M 4 A K 179,785,000
M- BHFEBEIZHRERHE B
E K RABRRS TS o

ZEWBEREBEEZE-Z—+tF+=A
=t+—BIEFETK - TlEZ287S
SEAHRNEEFERMAEZE
FEEBERKERARIATER
TETR

RMB’000
ARBTT

Property, plant and equipment (note 16) Y - B KRR E6) 416
Other deposits Hiiz® 699
Other intangible assets (note 19) HtEEEAE K719 9,580
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H h FE W BR 5K 38,222
Financial assets at FVTPL BRATFEAABRZEZTBHEE 122
Bank balances and cash RITHEHBRRRE
- segregated accounts -BIRP 53,626
- house accounts - AAElERP 56,296
Tax recoverable Al e 2 Fi 18 1,084
Trade and other payables 5k EMEMER (47,914)
Amounts due to related parties FEBEBEE AT RIE (12,868)
Tax payables JE B IR (14)
Deferred tax liability (note 34) iR SE B IE BUE (B 77 34) (64)
Net assets acquired Fri i 2 & E R 1A 99,185
Non-controlling interests (Note) eIt (B 7E) (39,674)
59,511
Goodwill (note 20) B 20,274
Total consideration BRE 79,785
Annual R:;pc;g 201 8 1 69
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11. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES — CONTINUED 11. WWiEMiB AR - &

170

(a)

(b)

Acquisition of Million Federal International (@ WBEBFEKBEERALA
Limited (“Million Federal”) - continued (BF)-&
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in FHAlEEFEE ReRESSE
respect of the acquisition of Million Federal Group is as follows: BYMRANFEITAT
RMB’000

AR T
Total consideration BRE (79,785)
Add: deposit paid in prior year mRBTEFEFEENz2ES 7,092
Cash consideration paid during the year AFEEENReSNRE (72,693)
Cash and bank balances acquired of Fru g v IR & RIBRITHE & 109,922

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of BRIWNBEWE AR 2B RRESEEY

the acquisition of subsidiaries A E R 37,229
Note: M5
The Group has chosen to recognise non-controlling interests at their AEEEEERIELERERERARED
share of fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed HET U g 2 & 7 S B ] Rl & & R A&
of Million Federal Group. BrBEREBEAEEZAFE-
Acquisition of Asia Television Limited (*"ATV") (b) WEBEMNERBRAR
and its subsidiaries (“ATV Group”) (ERDERHEMEBE QR
(ER&ER]
On 30 April 2016, Star Platinum Enterprises Limited (“Star RZTE—R"FEOA=+H  ARAZ
Platinum”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered 2EMBRAREZACEARLAR (TR
into arrangements in relation to the acquisition of approximately MDD LHE  NA B WE
52.42% equity interests in ATV and, together with the joint and AR R 4952.42% - W HER LR
several provisional liquidators (the “Provisional Liquidators”), has kSR ERATREERADE
proposed the scheme of arrangements to the creditors of ATV MR ERARBETEREER
by which all liabilities of ATV shall be assumed by Star Platinum. ZH BRIt EROEBRERTR
As a result, ATV shall be debt-free and given a fresh start upon ZHEEE MEAKREBEER
the completion of the scheme of arrangements. iz REEHEEEHERATE
A e
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11. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES — CONTINUED
(b) Acquisition of Asia Television Limited ("ATV")

and its subsidiaries ("ATV Group”) — continued

On 29 July 2016, Star Platinum has acquired approximately
52.42% equity interests in ATV Group and the Company has
given undertaking to provide sufficient financial support to ATV
to rebuild its business and operation.

On 8 January 2018, the Group completed the acquisition of
ATV Group (the "Acquisition”) after completing a series of
arrangements (i) scheme of arrangement to be approved by the
creditors and the High Court of Hong Kong (the “Court”); (ii)
the Court granting the order to sanction the withdrawal of the
winding-up petition against ATV; and (iii) ATV resumes normal
operation under the management of its new board of directors.
As such, ATV is considered as a subsidiary of the Group and was
consolidated to the Group on 8 January 2018 in accordance with
the relevant accounting standards.

The fair value of net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed of ATV Group at the acquisition date are disclosed as
below:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ReMBEERMEGE)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

11. K
(b)

LA N

- 4=

i
KEBEMNERERATF
(ERNDRHEMBEAT
((ERER]) - &
R-EBE—XE+LA-t+hA B#HL
FUWRE DR R 2 IR 4952.42% -
BARQRRIEABZATRIZRERZHN
MBI LNEREEBREE -

RZZE-NF—-—AN\B AEERT
AT — R 2 B g e R B AR
SE(WRBERD - VEEAREE
BEER(DERDIEZ BB EE
ZH R B ()AERR R S T
HUTSHZBEREF  RENBHER
MEESEGZERE TIRELEREE -
At RIFEEE G LR DRE
BRAEEZHBRARARNR-ZE-N
F-ANEBRAEBEZ RARNEGE
BE o

Bz ZREETHANEEFE
RAEZDREBABERKER
HrzRATEEENT

RMB’000
AR T T

Investment properties (note 17) WEWMEEF17) 1,130
Other intangible assets (note 19) HM @\ AE (K219 492,227
Trade and other payables B 5 K E i FE AT BR 3K (65,551)
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRS 3,071
Deferred tax liability (note 34) EEREEE K 7E34) (75,528)
Net assets acquired FriiE s EEFE 355,349
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR HE B 35,383
390,732
Goodwill (note 20) & (ff 72 20) 114,366
Total consideration BRE 505,098
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11. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES — CONTINUED 11. WWiEMiB AR - &

172

(b) Acquisition of Asia Television Limited (“ATV") (b) WEBEMNERBRAR
and its subsidiaries (“ATV Group”) — continued (ERDERHEMBE AR

(TER&EE]) - &

RMB’'000
ARBF o
Total consideration BRE
— Deposit paid in previous year - BAFEENES 415,204
— Amount due from ATV — FEU R AR R IB 89,894
505,098
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in EHRRBEIREE 2 A RESS
respect of the acquisition of ATV Group is as follows: BYMRLEFEITOT
RMB’000
AREF T
Total consideration BRAE (505,098)
Cash and bank balances acquired of Frik B 2 IR & M IR1T 4 84 3,071
Deposit paid in previous year BEFEENES 415,204

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect BREKEHB AR 2RE N

of the acquisition of subsidiaries ReFEYRLFHE (86,823)
Reconciliation of non-controlling interests share net assets of ATV FIEREZHSEDRERMEEFE
Group 2 H R

RMB’000

AR T

Net assets acquired WE2EESFHE 355,349

Share of net assets to non-controlling interests BEFESNIFERER (169,075)

Less: Share of amount due to the Group W DR E AR B SR IE 204,458

35,383
The share of amount due to the Group is recorded as liabilities ERNAEEzZHDHEBERIEER
in ATV Group’s financial statements and this amount is required ZHBREARAABRZEEA
to be shared to non-controlling interests but there is no effect DIGIEERER - Bt ESFEM

on the Group in regard of the Acquisition. TEHASBENELE -
The Group has chosen to recognise non-controlling interests REBCEEFFTRERERE
at their share of fair value of identifiable assets acquired and EnhmkErEREEBTHRE
liabilities assumed of ATV Group. ERFAEZDREEEEZAT
@ -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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11. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES — CONTINUED

(b)

Acquisition of Asia Television Limited (“ATV")
and its subsidiaries ("ATV Group”) — continued

Upon completion of the acquisition of ATV, the directors of the
Company have engaged an independent firm of valuers, Valtech
Valuation Advisory Limited, to carry out a valuation of a media
cash generating unit including ATV and another wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, Asia Television Digital Media Limited that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
based on facts and circumstances existing as at that date.

The directors of the Company became aware of the impairment
loss at the date of the Acquisition so that the Group fully
recognised the impairment loss of the goodwill arisen from the
Acquisition of approximately RMB114,366,000 during the year.

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
AND EMPLOYEES" EMOLUMENTS

Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors of the

Company and chief executive officer are as follows:

1. WEKEB QR

- 4=

M

(b) WEEMNERBRLQT

(ERDREMEAR
(ER&EED-&
RERMBTRE  AARBHCE
B-MEVHEAARFRTEE
RAF - WERZABEENEER
15 - HEMEG R A 0 5 R R E
CHEBASELEU(BEDARE
SES-M2AMBAREMER
BEHBARAR)ETHE -

AAREENERKRBEBH 2 AE
EiE WASEERFANZEER
KA EEHARE14,366,000
TZEEREER -

12. EF - THRBEREEFH

AN S [ 1) AN X B B SR AT AR A AN 2
EHBOT:

2018 2017
—E-N\% —5-tF
Retirement Retirement
Salaries benefits Salaries benefits
and other scheme and other scheme
Fees benefits  contribution Total Fees benefits  contribution Total
U TAT 3B K
we  HAEF At we  HpER At
RMB'000  RMB'00 RMB000 RMB'000  RMB'00 RMB'000
A y T /
Executive directors HIES
- Mr. Sze Siu Bun -BOREE - 506 15 521 - 520 16 536
- Mr. Tang Hon Kwo (Note (i) -BERREM ) - 464 8 4n - 1,041 16 1,057
- M. Ip Ka Po (Note (i) -EREREWHG) - - - - - 185 3 188
- Mr. Ma Zhi (Note (i) - SRR EW i) - 393 6 399 - 907 16 93
- Mr. Lam Chi Keung (Note (i) - WEREEMH ) - - - - 456 5 4 512
- Mr. Law Kin Fat (Note (1) -BREREWHY) - 2,31 15 2,336 - 1,052 8 1,060
- Mr. Deng Junjie (Note (1) - BEAKEW H ) - 597 1 608 - - - -
- Mr. Wang Jia Si (Note (i) - ERIE (0 i i) - - - - - - - -
- Mr. Chan Wai Kit (Note (vii) - BRGS0 # vi) - 57 - 57 - - - -
Non-executive directors FHTEZ
- Mr. Li Wenfeng (Note (i) - EXEREWH ) - 1,060 9 1,069 1,736 456 16 2,208
Independent non-executive directors BV FEHITEE
- Ms. Tao Feng (Note (1)) -BETL(WEY) - - - - 14 - - 14
- Mr. Han Xingxing -BEERT 110 - - 110 113 - - 113
= Mr. Li Yu (Note (xi) - ERREWH W) 110 - - 10 99 - - 9
- Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Note (xi}) - SRBME £ (W 2 (i) 110 - - 110 113 - - 113
330 5,398 64 5,792 2,531 413 79 6,823
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12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS -
CONTINUED

Note:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

174

Mr. Tang Hon Kwo was resigned as an executive director with effect from
15 June 2018;

Mr. Ip Ka Po was resigned as an executive director with effect from
7 February 2017,

Mr. Ma Zhi was resigned as an executive director with effect from 1 June
2018;

Mr. Lam Chi Keung was resigned as executive director and chief executive
officer with effect from 9 March 2017;

Mr. Law Kin Fat was appointed as executive director with effect from
29 June 2017 and resigned as executive director with effect from
13 February 2019;

Mr. Deng Junjie was appointed as executive director with effect from
15 June 2018;

Mr. Wang lJia Si was appointed as executive director with effect from
27 November 2018;

Mr. Chan Wai Kit was appointed as executive director with effect from
27 November 2018;

Mr. Li Wenfeng was resigned as non-executive director with effect from
1 August 2018;

Ms. Tao Feng was resigned as an independent non-executive director, the
chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of each of the
audit committee, the nomination committee and remuneration committee
with effect from 14 February 2017,

Mr. Li Yu was appointed as an independent non-executive director, the
chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of each of the
audit committee, the nomination committee and remuneration committee
with effect from 14 February 2017,

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam was resigned as an independent non-executive
director, the chairman of the audit committee and a member of each
of the audit committee, the nomination committee and remuneration
committee with effect from 31 January 2019;

Salaries and other benefits paid to a director is generally an emolument
paid or receivable in respect of that person’s other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary
undertakings.
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12. B THRARKESHH -

i

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS -
CONTINUED

Of the five highest paid individuals in the Group, 1 was director (2017:
1), details of whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of
the remaining 4 (2017: 4) highest paid employees for the year ended

31 December 2018 are as follows:

ReMBEERMEGE)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

12. %% CTHRRBRREEHH -

AEEBRLEREHFALH  —BREZ(Z
T—tF:—F) WZHMEEHIINLEX -
REE_T-NF+_A=+—BIEFEZ
HHpNE(CE—+tF OR)KaFHES

ZHEHBMMT
2018 2017
—T-)N\F —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF AREFor

Employees BB

- basic salaries and allowances - EAREH e RER 7,504 5,329
- retirement benefits scheme contributions - RIREF B R 72 59
7,576 5,388

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T %1,500,000/% 7T - 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7T 2,000,000/ 7T 3 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,0017% 7T 22,500,000/ 7T 1 -

There was no arrangement under which a director or the five highest
paid individuals waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil). In addition, no emolument
was paid by the Group to any of the directors or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as
a compensation for loss of office (2017: Nil).

13. DIVIDENDS
No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil). The Board resolved not to declare
the payment of any final dividend for the year (2017: Nil).

REBEE-T—)\F+-_A=1+—BIEFEH
EEHEFARAEESTATHERRE
MEAMNGFH 2L (T —EF:E)-
o AEEBVEANARNEFHEEES
FATIAME  EAMARSEBESEINA
REEE EESBEBREHEE(CT -5
) o

13. BE
ARRRBE_E-N\F+-A=+—8BLt
FEITEREAEREMNRI(ZZE—+
FE) BEEFEARNAFENZIREM
RABRB(ZT—LF )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RERBEHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

14.

176

TAXATION

The PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at the rate of 25%
prevailing in the PRC jurisdiction for the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: 25%). Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at
the rate of 8.25% or 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The
Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill") which
introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed
into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of
profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue
to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

14.

B IE
FRCEMSRUBE-_SE—/N\F+=A
S+—RLEFEPBEAEER ZE AR E
5% H(ZFE—+HF:25%) - FREFRR
BB E A 2 FHFE TR AR T %E8.25%
516.5% (ZF —+ F : 16.5%) 52 & % A
IS B REE o

RZZ—\F=ZR=+—H ' &BULZEE
BB(ZE—EFRBUEED(ETHR) &6
BER)MEBIEZR]D - 5| ARG F 15 B
HE KA EER-_ZE—NFEF=ZA=-FTN
AEERALEZ THRIB2ATIEFH R
BRASFESREFNE cEREEERE
B E2E &8 7T 0 FE 5 128.25% M B &k
i MEBE2EEETHNEEIZ16.5%K
REGR - THFAMBHFESHEHEN
EETEFHEBEERICSNNHE X
BE o

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LtF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF AREF T
Current tax BV ER 4 18
- Hong Kong Profits Tax - BANEH 1,391 1,858
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") -FRCEMER

(TREMRERD 620 1,413

— Under/(over)-provision in prior years -BEFERELIRS
(EBEREE) 6 (17)
— Deferred tax (note 34) — BRI IE (M 7F34) (2,634) 828
(617) 4,082
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

14. TAXATION - CONTINUED 14. BB - &
Tax (credit)/charge for the years are reconciled to loss before taxation REFE 2B EGEA),/ I E HE R FATE 18
as follows: HERMOT

2018 2017
—N\F —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ABRBTT ARETIT

Loss before taxation W i BT S 18 (839,756) (118,911)
Tax at the applicable rate HEAMEFEZRIE (141,814) (20,795)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BEARBBAZH IS L
purposes (777) (2,042)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax A~ A $0 8 B & 2 7% 7% 5 £
purposes 40,847 17,213
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences KERAMMERFEE 2B BT E
not recognised 18,612 2,615
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERMBEB 2B ETE 48,879 7,929
Tax effect of share of profit of an associate ~ D {hE & ARl H 2 R F & 33,846 (662)
Under/(over)-provision in respect of prior year i@ 4F & iR %8 % & 6 (17)
Others HAty (222) (159)
(617) 4,082
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REeMBERMEE)

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

15. LOSS PER SHARE 15. BREE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable to ARABEBABGEERERNREEEET
owners of the Company is based on the following data: BEUATHESE:

AONES
—E-N\EF

RMB’000
AREEF T

Loss attributable to the owners of EAREBAEEEE
the Company

Loss for the purposes of basic and BRABETGRERRE S
diluted loss per share EEZERE (800,530)

2017
—E—LtF

RMB’000
AR T T

(126,747)

Number of shares ;' &l 2 4=

Weighted average number of ordinary shares FARFEFREAR B FEIE 2
for the purposes of basic and diluted loss I im AR N RE T
per share 7,055,668

5,154,314
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ BERXR®E

Furniture
fixtures and
Leasehold computer Production Plant and
Buildings  improvements equipment equipment  Motor vehicles machinery

BT HEHR  RERR EERE nE HERES
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000

cosT RE

As at 1 January 2017 W=Z-t#-F-H 125,230 1,203 4,235 - 5577 188,003 324,248
Currency realignment BEAR - (99) (357) (58) (299) - (813)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 11(a) ‘M BLE (H#11) - - 416 - - - 416
Additions RE - 363 5788 1,466 951 1,573 10,141
Disposals mE - - (158) - (2,005) - (2,163)
As at 31 December 2017 RZE-+£+-F=+-H 125,230 1,467 9,924 1,408 4,224 189,576 331,829
Currency realignment BERZ - 23 1802 104 200 - 2,329
Additions NE - 4,688 36,562 678 342 2,970 45,240
Disposals e - (1134) (6,601) - - (38,359) (46,094)
As at 31 December 2018 RZB-NE+ZA=+-H 125,230 5,244 41,687 2,190 4,766 154,187 333,304

DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT #HERHE

As at 1 January 2017 WZZ-t&-F-H 102,082 343 3,103 - 2,822 166,199 274,549
Currency realignment BEAE - 42) (101) 2 (153) - (298)
Depreciation provided for the year ~ £EH EFE 1,140 460 480 4 457 6,082 8,660
Disposals e - - (67) - (434) - (501)
As at 31 December 2017 RZF-tE+Zh=1-H 103,222 761 3,415 39 2,692 172,281 282,410
Currency realignment BERR - 155 1,442 70 123 - 1,790
Depreciation provided for the year ~ FEFEEE 3,963 1,01 7,657 400 461 6,578 20,070
Impairment provided for the year —~ FEHERE

(note 20) (Wi#t20) 292 2,79 22,454 1,283 - 684 30,137
Disposals e - (1,008) (1,331 - - (34,523) (36,882)
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+=A=1-A 110,107 3,693 33,637 1,792 3,276 145,020 297,525
CARRYING VALUES EREfE
As at 31 December 2018 R=E-NE+-A=1-A 15,123 1,551 8,050 398 1,490 9,167 35779
As at 31 December 2017 RZF-tF+ZA=1-H 22,008 706 6,509 1,369 1,532 17,295 49,419
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REeMBERMEE)

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 16

CONTINUED

The carrying value of the Group's properties which are situated on land
under medium-term leases is analysed as follows:

Buildings in the PRC hEZEF

URFPHAE LM ASEMEZREE
DT ¢

2018
—E-N\F

2017
—E—+tF
RMB’000
ARET T

RMB’000
ABRET T

15,123 22,008

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has pledged its buildings with an
aggregate carrying value of RMB15,123,000 (2017: RMB22,008,000) to
certain banks to secure the credit facilities granted to the Group (note
32).

The Group’s motor vehicles held under finance leases (note 31) which
were used as security have a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB475,000 (2017: RMB636,000).

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment belonging to

each cash generating unit (“CGU") are as follows:

RZE-—N\F+_A=+—H x&EEEH
HBERTEE A R#15,123,000T (2 —+H4:
AK#22,008,00070) 2 EFEATE TR
T UERAEEEREERE (M E32)
ZAE -

AEERBERERERE 2B (3D
REERR  HERmFELN A ARKAL75,000
T(ZE—+F: AR¥636,0007T) °

BreReEtsBEN((REELABENDZ
ME - -BERZEERETENT

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T T ARKTF T

CGU 1 R EEBR 20,651 19,618
CGU 2 ReEESM2 4,366 10,109
CGU 3 WEESENS - 10,345
Media CGU WS e EE BN 8,192 6,875
Brokerage and Margin CGU KEFRFRRSELEN 799 211
Unallocated corporate office ROMAFRPFER 1,771 2,261
35,779 49,419

The impairment assessments of property, plant and equipment of (i)
Media CGU and (ii) Broker

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -
CONTINUED

CGU 1, CGU 2 and CGU 3 belong to the Group's reportable segment
of processing, printing and sales of finished fabrics. The impairment
assessments of property, plant and equipment of these CGUs are set
out below:

During the course of preparing of the Group’s Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018, the directors of the
Company identified:

a) The demand from emerging markets of fabrics business remained
weak; and

b) There were downsize of sale scale and gross profit margin in these
CGUs.

Therefore, the directors concern about the recoverability of the carrying
amounts of these CGUs and performing impairment review on non-
financial assets of these CGUs.

During the impairment assessment of these CGUs, the management
of the Company identified the indications that property, plant and
equipment of these CGUs may be impaired.

CGU 1

As at 31 December 2018, the directors of the Company reassessed the
recoverable amount of the CGU 1 based on value-in-use calculation. The
value-in-use calculation used cash flow forecast derived from the most
recent financial budget approved by the management based on their
best estimates. The projected period was 5 years and the growth rated
and pre-tax discount rate used in the forecast was zero and 17.32%
(2017: zero and 13.24%) respectively, for CGU 1.

Impairment losses of approximately RMB3,606,000 were made in
respect of property, plant and equipment of CGU 1 for the year ended
31 December 2018 as a result of the impairment test (2017: Nil).

31 December 2018 — &

16.

e MEERME(E)

—N\FE+=ZA=+—H

ME- -BEERE-&

ReELEM ReELFEM2RESE
i@m§%$ﬁlﬁﬁ¢2&ﬁﬁﬂm
T EEREEN R - LWERSELE

ZW%‘W%&&%@E%E%WWT-

REAREHEZE_T-N\F+_A=+—H
ti&ﬁa%%ﬁ%ﬁ'ﬁAﬂ§$E%
Al :

a MHEBREFEMSOEREE
®88 R

b REELBEMNBEERERENE
e

At EFEIREReELEMNREE

R e YRR EFREEE BN

MBEEETRESH -

ﬁ%%ﬁ%@iﬁﬁLﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ'$

RAEEEEHANZSREELEUNY
¥ BERRBLATEREOTR -
BEEE B

RIB-N\EFE+-_A=+—8 ARARIESE
BIEERBEEFTEENTHECELSEN
12 RE &% - EREEAFERFERITE
BERERBESREMGTALENR
MV KBEENESRERA - RREE
EEMNIME - TERF E RS i 8B AT A
ZWRERBBESNATRITI2% (ZF
—+tF T RK13.24%) ©

CRENRE  REBEE-Z-N\F+=A
S+ BLEFERSELSBMIZUE K
BEREEZREEBELRARSE3606000
T(ZE—EF: )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RERBEHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —ZE—N\F+=-_A=+—H

16.

182

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -
CONTINUED

CcGU 2

As at 31 December 2018, the directors of the Company reassessed the
recoverable amount of the CGU 2 based on value-in-use calculation. The
value-in-use calculation used cash flow forecast derived from the most
recent financial budget approved by the management based on their
best estimates. The projected period was 5 years and the growth rate
and pre-tax discount rate used in the forecast was zero and 12.18%
(2017: zero and 11.65%) respectively, for CGU 2.

No impairment loss had been recognised on property, plant and
equipment of CGU 2 for the year ended 31 December 2017 as a result
of the impairment test (2017: Nil).

CGU 3

CGU 3 was processing the de-registered during the year and became
inactive as at 31 December 2018. The de-registration was completed
on 21 January 2019.

As at 31 December 2017, the directors of the Company reassessed the
recoverable amount of the CGU 3 based on value-in-use calculation. The
value-in-use calculation used cash flow forecast derived from the most
recent financial budget approved by the management based on their
best estimates. The projected period was 5 years and the growth rate
and pre-tax discount rate used in the forecast was zero and 15.58%
respectively, for CGU 3.

No impairment loss had been recognised on property, plant and
equipment of CGU 3 for the year ended 31 December 2017 as a result
of the impairment test.

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
THNERZRAERL A

16.

ME- BEERE-&

REELE M2
R-B-NF+-A=+—0 AQRAESE
RIEERBETEENFHECELSEN
27 Bl &% - EREEAERFERTAE
BEREBERBEREZREMTALENR
MHVMEEENRESRERA  -HRREE
A BAI21MF - ARG HI R 54 w788 BT A
ZIEERERUBBEESFATRI12.18% (ZF
—tF: TRI11.65%) °

KAEARE YERBE_ZT—LF+
“A=ZtT-REFEREELEM22Y
¥ BEAREERBREBR(CZ L
F:E)e

HEELEMNS
REEABMIRFERNELETHRM - TR
—E-N\E+Z A=+ BRIEEE - B
RZZ—NF—A=+—H%K -

R-ZE—tF+-A=+—B ARFES
RIEERBAETEEN T HESELEN
3zAliEl &% -  EABENERFRITA
BEERERBRERESZZEMTLENR
IHBGEEMRSREREN - RS E
£ EBAI3ME - BRI AR5 w188 A A
ZIBRER IR ES R AZR15.58% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

17.

31 December 2018 — &

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

ReMBEERMEGE)

—N\FE+=ZA=+—H

REME

2018 2017
—FN\F —F—tF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR FT ARBEFT
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 71(b)) and Lo 5 B B X | (BT At 11(0) e B
balance as at 31 December T A=+ —B2z&# 1,130 -
Fair value hierarchy NFESHRERB

An independent valuation was performed by an independent firm of
valuers, Valtech Valuation Advisory Limited, to determine the fair value
of investment properties as at 31 December 2018. There was no any
revaluation during the year. The following table presents the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties carried at
fair value:-

%8 3 & {& Bl Valtech Valuation Advisory
Limited B#E1TB I E - UEEREWE
RZE-—N\F+ZA=+—HHAFE - F
R EAE A EfL - TRINTAERBRRQF
BIEOREVENRTETEER:

Fair value measurements as at 31 December 2018

Fair value at
31 December
2018
/\¢

RMB’000
AR T
Recurring fair value REMEDFETE
measurement
Investment properties: REWE:
- Residential = PRC -fEE-HH 1,130

categorised into
—)\E-I-* A=+—H&EH

NTEELERE
Quoted prices
in active

Significant Significant

markets for observable unobservable
identical assets
HEE E

B E B T
#ﬁf%‘-’i
(Level 1)
(E#&1)
RMB’000

REFT

inputs

BAX
AE R
R

(Level 2)

([ #%2)
RMB’'000
ANREFT

inputs

BAX

IR %
&

(Level 3)
(8 #&3)
RMB’000
AREFT

1,130

There were no investment properties held as at 31 December 2017,

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3 (2017:
N/A).

RZZ—+FF+_A=Z=+—"HUTEFFR

HME-T—\FTA=+—BLFE  FI
BREEIERZMLWETES - HEHE
A EIER(—F £ FHEA) ¢
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RERBEHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. FAFHERKIE

2018 2017
—FN\F —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT

CARRYING VALUE REE

As at 1 January ®—H—H 412 426
Charged to profit or loss for the year RAFEZ B ENR (14) (14)
As at 31 December ®R+=ZA=+—H 398 412
Analysed as: DT

Non-current assets FRBEE 384 398
Current assets B A E 14 14
As at 31 December R+=ZA=+—A1 398 412
The amount represents the prepayment of rentals for land use rights ZeBIEMNFEABS0F 2 T HfE A
situated in the PRC for a period of 50 years. 2 ENEERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BILEE

Premium over Film rights

prepaid lease  and licence Trading
payments fees  Trademarks rights
BiRTEL

BE R 51 T
M RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREFT AREFT ARETTT
(Note (iii)) (Note (iv))
(H 3% 3ii) (K1 % (iii) (B 7% (iv)

COST A&
As at 1 January 2017 RZZE—+F—-H—H - - - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 17(a)) Y &% IT @ 2 &) (47 & 11(a)) - - 2,646 6,934 9,580
Additions NE - 27,847 - - 27,847
Currency realignment BERE - (1,112) (162) (422) (1,696)
As at 31 December 2017 RZT—+&+=-A=+—H - 26,735 2,484 6,512 35,731
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 71(b) Y 8 T B 2 &) (A7 &% 11(b) 465,858 253 26,116 - 492,227
Additions = - 82,197 - - 82,197
Currency realignment BERAE 26,427 4,784 1,690 295 33,196
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE-N\E+=-A=t+—H 492,285 113,969 30,290 6,807 643,351
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION ~ Rt ##RAE
AND IMPAIRMENT
As at 1 January 2017 and RZZE—+F—-H—H
31 December 2017 R-ZE—+F
+-A=1+-8 - - - - -
Amortisation provided for the year R &2 %44 16,048 56,543 - - 72,591
Impairment provided for the year EREHEZRE
(note 20) (H#t20) - 40,680 3 - 40,683
Currency realignment BERE 430 3,918 - - 4,348
As at 31 December 2018 R-Z-N\E+=-A=+-H 16,478 101,141 3 - 117,622
CARRYING VALUES WREE
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE-N\E+=ZA=t—H 475,807 12,828 30,287 6,807 525,729
As at 31 December 2017 RZT—tF
+-A=+—~H - 26,735 2,484 6,512 35,731
Analysed as: AT
As at 31 December 2018 RZZ—N\F+-A=+—H
Media CGU BEREELEN 475,807 12,828 27,607 - 516,242
Brokerage and Margin CGU BEhREERS
EEEM - - 2,680 6,807 9,487
475,807 12,828 30,287 6,807 525,729
As at 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F+-A=+—H
Media CGU BRRSELEN - 26,735 - - 26,735
Brokerage and Margin CGU BERREGRGELESM - - 2,484 6,512 8,996
- 26,735 2,484 6,512 35,731
Impairment assessments of intangible assets are set out in note 20. Y& B /R A =R MY 20 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RERBEHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

19.

186

INTANGIBLE ASSETS — CONTINUED

Note:

(@)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

Upon completion of the acquisition of ATV, the directors of the Company
re-assessed the nature of the leasehold land and buildings included in
property, plant and equipment of the ATV. Hence, the leasehold land and
buildings were reclassified as “premium over prepaid lease payments”
included in intangible assets. The underlying prepaid lease payments
has lease term of 42 years commencing 22 September 2005. Therefore,
premium over prepaid lease payments is amortised over 29 years which
is the remaining lease term since acquisition of ATV.

Film rights and licence fees represent direct expenditure incurred by the
Group until the programmes are available to broadcast on the Over-The-
Top ("OTT") platform of the Group. Film rights is the fees incurred to
acquire the right for broadcasting transcripts of films on the OTT platform
of the Group during the terms ranging from 1 year to 2 years. Licence fees
are fees incurred to obtain rights to use film rights or music copyrights
owned by the independent third parties for production of films by the
Group. Film rights and licence fees are amortised on estimated viewing
patterns. The amortisation is on an accelerated basis as the Group typically
expects more upfront viewings.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has not provided
any amortisation of film rights and licence fees as the OTT platform is
launched on 29 January 2018.

Trademark was acquired by the Group as part of ATV (note 11(b))(2017:
Million Federal (note 11(a)).The trademarks have no foreseeable limit to
period that the Group can use to generate net cash flows, accordingly,
the trademarks are considered as having an indefinite useful lives.

Trading rights represents rights that confer eligibility of the Group to
trade on the Stock Exchange which was acquired by the Group as part
of the acquisition of Million Federal (note 11(a)) during the year ended
31 December 2017. The trading rights have no foreseeable limit to period
that the Group can use to generate net cash flows, accordingly, the trading
rights are considered as having an indefinite useful lives.

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
THNERZRAERL A

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

19. BILEE - &
B 5 -

RKBLRR ARBAEEENFEA
TROME BELRENEEL R
BFOME - At HELHRETRE
MOBRAAEBREETNENEER
Bl - AHBENBEEFRRCEEEN RS
“ERRFNATRBER42F - At
BEBNHEEREANGSEHR A RED
BRBTHERN29F AHH -

FRAENREEEEGAENEEAE
B2 B A ([OTT)) F & 48 M2 A/l PR
EEZEERAX -ZRENRRKER
FBIRZHER - UMM ZE2F 2 IR RER
SEOTTVPAEMMELECER - BESE
RESHBYE=THEB TN ENX
SRREZERE  AEAREREY
FMELZER FhEMNREERRE
AHRERATUAMEE - HRAKE—KTE
HERZATRBELARE  SIRMEH
HEREEITH -

HE-_Z—+H+-A=+—RHILEFE
AEBVEELARAEA R REES
i REROTTFARZZE—N\F—A
ZHRABABITHD -

PR AN 5 B A W R S AR (B 52 11(b) 12
sz 22—t F:HH(MFE
1) - BELEAITER Z AR - U
REIACEEHFELFRSAE A
It BRERERERERTERFE -

RHOERETAEEERNBIMEEZ
A AAAEERBE—T—tF =
A=t+—RILEFEREES (KFEn@) &
Bz —#n  RXS5ELEANEILZER
HR ARV AKREERGEELE FR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

20. BB &

20. GOODWILL

2018 2017

—FN\F —F—tF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AE#HTF T AR T T

As at 1 January ®—H—H 20,274 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries L B Bf 8§ 1 A

(notes (11)(a) and 11(b)) (Kfat11(@) % 11(b)) 114,366 20,274

Impairment during the year FARE (114,366) -

Currency realignment BERE (197) -

As at 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 20,077 20,274

Goodwill is arising from the acquisition of ATV during the year and
Million Federal in the last year and has been allocated to Media CGU
and Brokerage and Margin CGU respectively. The goodwill recognised
is not expected to be deductible for income tax purpose.

Upon completion of the acquisition of ATV, the directors of the
Company have engaged an independent firm of valuers, Valtech
Valuation Advisory Limited, to carry out a valuation of the Media CGU
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, based
on facts and circumstances existing as at that date.

The directors became aware of the impairment loss at the date of
acquisition of the ATV so that the Group fully recognised the impairment
loss of the goodwill arisen from the acquisition of ATV of approximately
RMB114,366,000 during the year.

FREURBEREEFEBRBEETMES
ZHEEDRAEERKBRSELFEMMN
EERRRESCRESELFEM - OHER
BEAPE MM EHR -

REBEERE  AAREECEFBE LG
{ERTAF]Valtech Valuation Advisory Limited
EREEEESERBRAUER BRSO
BRASERE N EEReEESUE
TE1E -

RIRBTEHEZA EFMBREBE &

AEBRFALEBAKBERAMELEZ
7 2R B B 18 49 A R 114,366,0007T °
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20.

188

GOODWILL — CONTINUED
Impairment Testing on Goodwill and Intangible
Assets Allocated to Brokerage and Margin CGU

The carrying amounts of goodwill and intangible assets allocated to

Brokerage and Margin CGU are as follows:

0. & - &

TRELECRAESREELEN
ZEBRETLEERENR
BERETEEZRAEBRUTALDE
ERERRBESASELBA:

Property,

Intangible plant and

assets Goodwill equipment

mE - BB

BREE S N &

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AREFT ARETT

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZB-NF+=ZA=+—8H 9,487 20,077 799
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+-_A=+—H 8,996 20,274 211

The recoverable amount of Brokerage and Margin CGU as at
31 December 2018 based on a value-in-use calculation (2017: value-
in-use). That calculation covered an indefinite period as estimated by
the Group as there is no foreseeable limitation on the period of time
over which the CGU is expected to generate economic benefits to
the Group. The calculation uses cash flow projections prepared by the
management based on financial budgets approved by the management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the projection period
are extrapolated using an estimated growth rate of 3% (2017: 3%). The
pre-tax rate used to discount the forecast cash flows is 15.58% (2017:
16.34%).

Based on the assessment, no impairment loss was recognised during
the year (2017: Nil).

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
THNERZRAERL A

KEPRESCHESELEEMNN-_Z—\F
+—A=+—RBzAkE<BEEREERE
EfE(ZE—tF THEE)  %EFE
FEREAEBEGF AERE ZHE - 1t
THRESELEEN T ENER 2R -
BHEEBEHAAEETREENE - ;T E
FERABREEEGRYE A REEA -
NEREMEREAFH MK BEAE
Ao BRTEAFH IS REMF AMTg
£EE3% (ZZT—+HF :3%) #H - AR
WEABRSRE ZHATFEARI558% (=
T—+F:16.34%) °

ERFE - R ERBAERE(CF—
)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

20. GOODWILL - CONTINUED 20. BHE - &

Impairment assessment of Media CGU
The carrying amount of non-financial assets allocated to Media CGU
are as follows:

BRERSELBMN ZRENE
HEERBRECELEMNIERFEER
EEMT :

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8

AONES] 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE#¥TF T AE®TF T

Carrying value: AR A :
Intangible assets EmREAE 516,242 26,735
Property, plant and equipment W% - WEKEE 8,192 6,875
Other deposits Hibiz ¢ - 8,612
524,434 42,222

The recoverable amount of media CGU as at 31 December 2018
has been determined to be approximately RMB524,355,000 (2017:
RMB72,451,000) based on the value-in-use calculation prepared by
the management under the best estimation of the management of
the Company. That calculations use cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering an indefinite
period (2017: three-year period). The pre-tax discount rate used of
15.29% (2017: 20.0%) for media, cultural and entertainment business.
The management determined the budgeted revenue and costs based on
past performance and its expectations for the market development. The
cash flows beyond five years (2017: three years) have been extrapolated
using a steady 3% (2017: 3% and 5%) growth rate for revenue and
expenses respectively.

HEBSEABMN_T—\E+=-A=
+—BzAkEcEEREBERIEEAE
B E&E T A AR524,3550005 (=
T —F: AR¥72,451,0007T) ° % H 5t
BREXKARSREEN  UEBEEi
MEBRTHZUBEEAEE(ZET—+
FTEE) o IR UL RIREEKAT
FAZHABIR R A15.20% (T — &
200%) - EEEREBERBEREHMS
BR2MBETHERSERMAE - KE R
X cBBRAFEH (T —tF =FH)2
REMEDANFERABEEREI% (ZF—
+F 3% Kk5%) HEE o
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20.

21.

22.

190

GOODWILL — CONTINUED

Impairment assessment of Media CGU — continued
Impairment loss is allocated to fully impair the goodwill and then
allocated to the other non-financial assets in the CGU on the pro rata
basis of the carrying amount of the non-financial assets. Based on the
assessment, the impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets of approximately RMB26,531,000 and RMB40,683,000
respectively was recognised in the profit or loss during the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

DEPOSITS FOR OTHER INVESTMENTS

Deposit paid for acquisition of ATV

RRBERCHZE S

20.

21.

ﬁ % - IIE

BRRSELBN ZRENL - &
REBREFCREERASBIZLASD
B AREEABERSRERSELEY
ZHEMEE - BEFTE NE HER
REREREEDREBRDINOARS
26,531,0007T &2 A R#40,683,000 A& =
—E-\F+- A=+ ALFEHEN
BaPBR(CE— L5 )

HitiREz &S

2018
—T—N\F

2017
—E—+tF
RMB’000
AREFT

RMB’000
AR T T

- 416,250

As at 31 December 2017, balance
HK$500,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB416,250,000) paid
or payable by the Group for the acquisition of ATV. The acquisition of
ATV was completed on 8 January 2018 (note 11(b)).

represents deposit of

OTHER DEPOSITS

22.

N_ZE—tE+-_A=+—B BE@E&&%
REAEBE G ERKEFEMS N KL EN
2 1% €500,000,000% 7L (HHERHARE
416,250,0007T) ° AR WENR T —N\F—
ANB K (M 311(0)) ©

Hitiz &

2018 2017

—ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREF T
Other assets (Note) Hi&EE M) 5,481 657

Deposits paid for acquisition of property, MUEWE  BERZBEEN

plant and equipment i - 8,612
5,481 9,269

Note:

Other assets mainly represent statutory and other deposits with the Stock
Exchange and clearing houses, which are non-interest bearing.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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23. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 23. REBEERNT 2R

2018 2017
—FN\F —F—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT

Cost of investment in an associate REEE QXA 2 WE KR 385,396 276,085
Share of post-acquisition (loss)/profits and other 53 1 U 85 1% (&5 48) % 7 |2
comprehensive expense Hibh 2 WX (210,457) 3,615
174,939 279,700
Less: Provision for impairment B B (56,798) -
118,141 279,700
Particulars of the associate are as follows: Bt NR 2 ERMAT

Place of Percentage of ownership
Particulars of incorporation/ interest attributable
issued shares held  operation to the Group Principal activity
Fr B 31T 05 vy RNEBE PG R
1% 17 1 & EIEM BmZADL FEXB
2018 2017
—N\FE —ZT—+F
Yong Tai Ordinary shares Malaysia 28.60% 21.53% Property development
(Notes (i), (ii) (Note (iv)) and development and
and (iii)) operation of tourism
stage performance
IR (BT EEG) ~ (i) Em ik S ] 28.60% 2153% MEHRRNULERRE
K (iii) (Kt &t (iv) Bk A ROE
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192

—NE+=A=+—H

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE — CONTINUED

Note:

(@)

(i)

(iii)

On 9 May 2017, Full Winning Developments Limited (“Full Winning”),
a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement with Impression Culture Asia Limited, a subsidiary of Sino
Haijing Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1106) to acquire 107 million ordinary
shares of Yong Tai, a company listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad, at the consideration of approximately Malaysian Ringgit
("RM") 117,700,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB189,016,000).
Following this acquisition, the Group owned as to 16.42% equity interest
in Yong Tai.

On 2 August 2017, Full Winning entered into the subscription agreement
with Yong Tai. Under the subscription agreement, Full Winning had
conditionally agreed to subscribe for 43,000,000 new Yong Tai shares at
the issue price of RM1.26 (equivalent to approximately HK$2.29) per share
(the “Subscription Share”). The total consideration of the subscription was
amounted to approximately RM54,180,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB86,857,000). The Subscription Shares subscribed by Full Winning
represented approximately 6.17% equity interest in Yong Tai as enlarged
by the allotment and issue of the Subscription Shares. Following this
subscription, the Group owned as to 21.53% equity interest in Yong Tai.

On 9 January 2018, Full Winning entered into an agreement with Jade
Stones Group Limited (“Jade Stones”) to acquire 60,000,000 ICPS of Yong
Tai at the consideration of RM66,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB109,312,000) which represents 8.17% equity interest in Yong Tai.
Following this acquisition, the Group owned as to 28.60% equity interest
in Yong Tai.

Yong Tai has outstanding ICPS as at the date it became an associate of
the Group and as at 31 December 2018. The Group has determined that
the ICPS represented present ownership interests in Yong Tai as the ICPS
are convertible to ordinary shares of the Company from 28 November
2019 without any further consideration. The effective interest of the
Group in Yong Tai after taking into account the ICPS and all issued and
outstanding ICPS held by other parties would be 28.60% (2017: 21.53%)
as at 31 December 2018.

The financial reporting date of the above associate is not coterminous

with those of the Group, as it has financial year ending 30 June.

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
THNERZRAERL A

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

B AN ]
BY 75 ¥R 5 B E 0 M Y

23 EAW““/Z\\E.IZE llﬁ

oAt

RZT—+tFRANE ARAIZEHE
2EMBAREREEARAR(TLE]D
BPEFSERAERAR RN K5
1106) 2 [} /& 2 &l Impression Culture Asia
Limited 5] 32 # &% + A 4 88 ok R (— B R
BRAGEHFZIGHER LM Z AR Z
107,000,000/ AR - Btk Kk 2 KB
HRBERATSE(F])117,700,0007T
(FZER KA RK189,016,0007T) » Y5
e - REBEABKKZ16.42%M & °

RZZE—+FENA-H LHFEEKKET
UREWE - BREBERERE EEAK
HREBEFETESREEI26t(HER
#92.297% 7T) 7 843,000,000 % 5k A A%
M RERMD]) - ZBRESR ZHERE
#4555 #54,180,000t (HEE RN AR
86,857,0007T) - B R 2 R K7 E
EREEE REITRERDMEKXZ K
ABELX617% - RETRE  NEEHE
BKKZ21.53% 8 °

RZZ—N\F—ANE - L H]ade Stones
Group Limited ([Jade Stonel) 7] 37 3 5% -
LA U B860,000,0000% 7k K A~ A] & [0] A] #2
% & 5 % - {8 R K %66,000,0007T (48
Z R4 A R #109,312,0007T) © 15 &k K
817% M - WHEEIEE  REBN KK
% H28.60% M1 °

KARKAEAEBZBERREBRNZ
TE-N\E+-_A=+—BHAEREEZT
AR B AT R AR B e AR o B A S AT RE B AT
BREERTE-_Z-NAF+—A=-+N
AREEESRAEADNF LR - WAEE
BEZE A EE A RAREEREER
WEN KR ZHAREEZR - G5t RTH
ERIATRELEREFABEHEMATRES
ZEBITREETAIER A RRE LR
AEEBR-ZZT—NFE+= H7+75%ﬁ
ZKKNEB L 528.60% (ZF—+4F:
21.53%) °

E’Jﬁﬁﬁ%#EiEIHﬂéﬁiK%@E’J
HEMBRFEER

BHEAA=1+H-
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REBERTRzER - &
AABREBZ EABRAL  HUBA

23. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE — CONTINUED 23.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material

associate, Yong Tai, is as below:

BHER T

2018 2017
—E-)N\F —E—tF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARKFT ARKEF T
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—AH
Current assets MEBEE 582,694 654,831
Non-current assets FERBEE 414,143 514,912
Current liabilities mEEE (550,201) (264,278)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (282,942) (28,678)
Equity and net assets EmkEEFE 163,694 876,787
Year ended 31 December BE+t-A=+—HLEE
Revenue g = 184,154 160,051
(Loss)/profit from continuing operations BECEEBZ (BB, %7 (709,313) 24,483
Post-tax loss from discontinued operations BRIEEE R & EE - (64)
Other comprehensive expense HEM2HERAX - (2,398)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income 2E(FX), s (709,313) 22,021
Dividend received during the year FAB WK E - -
Fair value of the Group's investment based on &£ @EE N EER+=-F=1+—H
quoted market price at 31 December ZTEREHEZATE 118,141 365,326
At 31 December R+=-—A=+-—H
Ordinary shares of Yong Tai held by the Group 7K B 4% 2 7k A% i/ iR 150,030,000 150,000,000
ICPS of Yong Tai held by the Group AN B P FF 2 K KT Al fE [
AR AR 2 5 IR 60,000,000 -
Effective equity interest used for share of Yong %157k K ¥ 48 7 B KR AL 4%
Tai's result 28.60% 21.53%
Share of fair value of net identifiable assets and 5 AU EE B H 2 Al i R & & &
liabilities as at date of acquisition BEFHEIAFE 235,817 160,880
Goodwill EES 149,579 115,205
Share of post-acquisition (loss)/profit DRI BB R (B R), T (206,710) 4,009
Share of other comprehensive expense DIEEMEERY (3,747) (394)
Provision for impairment VERERE L] (56,798) -
118,141 279,700
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—NFE+ZA=+—H

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE — CONTINUED

As at the date of approval for issuance of the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 December 2017, the fair value
assessments of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Yong Tai as at
the date of acquisition have not yet been completed. Accordingly, the
Group's share of the relevant fair values of the net assets acquired had
been determined on a provisional basis for the year ended 31 December
2017. For the purpose of initial recognition of the investment in an
associate and application of the equity method of accounting, the
directors of the Company had determined the best estimates for the
value of these assets and liabilities as at the date of acquisition.

The fair value assessments of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Yong Tai as at the date of acquisition have been completed during the
year. After the completion of the assessment, the goodwill arising from
the acquisition of Yong Tai is approximately RMB115,205,000.

As the acquisition of 60,000,000 ICPS of Yong Tai set out in note 23(iii),
a goodwill of approximately RMB34,375,000 was recognised during the
year.

Based on the quoted market price of the ordinary shares and ICPS held
by the Group, total impairment loss of approximately RMB56,798,000
was recognised in the profit or loss during the year (2017: Nil).

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
THNERZRAERL A

23.

REt = ’_\72%&1 - &
REE_Z—+tF+_A=+—HLEFE
E’J%?E\ﬁﬁf%iﬁﬁﬁtﬁﬂ?éﬁ,ﬁﬂ I WAL
BRABCUBNEERBEZ ATFEFNGE
MATK Bt AEBEREE_ZT—+
FH+ZA=Zt+—BLEFESEMKBEE
FEZEBEATELREEEEET - Bty
RN BE AR ZREMKAES SR
EME ARAEECRZEEERERE
RIEERH BEESEME -

FARA - KAKRKEEHZAENEE R
BEZAFEREHARTE - R KT

BE WEAKREENBEROARE
115,205,0007T ©

L B 5 23(ii) B 8 Us B ok K60,000,000 8%
AERTBRRELER  FAERBENHA
R #534,375,0007C °

ERNAEEH BN L E R LA ERL A SR
BELEBROMSRE FRESERRE
BB A B#56,798,000t (- & —+ 4 :
=)o
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31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

24. 78

2018 2017

—FN\F —F—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR# T AR T T

Raw materials R 43,830 31,752
Finished goods By 47,671 77,703
91,501 109,455

As at 31 December 2018, certain inventories with original cost
amounting to approximately RMB63,953,000 (2017: RMB156,548,000)
were stated at net realisable value of approximately RMB27,548,000

(2017: RMB68,059,000).

R-ZE—N\E+-A=+—8 " RHEREKY
A ANR®63,953,000(ZT—+EF AR
#156,548,00070) v & T E &1z o] # 35 %
B4 AN RKE27548,000C (= —+F: A
R #68,059,0007T) 5l B °

2018 2017

—E—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR#EFT
As at 1 January ®—H—H 88,479 77,774
Write-down during the year F R HUR 65,545 28,845
Reversal of write-down during the year [0 F A HOR (22,948) (18,140)
Currency realignment BERAE 667 -
As at 31 December R+-—A=+—82 131,743 88,479

As demand from (i) emerging markets of fabrics and trading business
and (i) Hong Kong market of Set Top boxes of entertainment and
media business (2017: emerging markets of fabrics and trading business)
remained weak during the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
has made net write-down of inventories amounting to RMB42,597,000
(2017: RMB10,705,000).

B G) 0 R B S ¥R E T E WIS R
REDHEEFNRESFTEMNSL (T
—tF AR RESEBEHEDE) 2
ERREBE-_T-N\F+-A=t+—8BL
FEHEBFED ASEECHMATEFE
AR®42,597,000 (ZF—EF: AR
10,705,0007T) ©
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 25. ES5 R HMWEWERR - &L
AND PREPAYMENTS REAFHIE

2018 2017
“E-N\F CFtF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARET T

Trade receivables from securities brokerage BHELLERBRRESRENEZ

services and margin finance segment B 5 FE WK R (72 (@)
(Note (a)) 145,456 61,276
Less: Allowances for bad and doubtful debts  J& : 53 BR B & (A7 72 6(b)(i1)
(Note 6(b)(ii)) (9,958) (3,567)
135,498 57,709
Trade receivables from other segments Hthn¥a 2 &5 BRI (A b))
(Note (b)) 10,536 10,183
Less: Allowances for bad and doubtful debts & : 542 BR 8 & (47 726(b)(i)
(Note 6(b)(i) (6,291) (2,712)
4,245 7,471
Deposits paid to suppliers (Note (c)) ENERERZIES (B ) 29,081 50,245
Less: Allowances for impairment R ORE B (11,632) (16,727)
17,449 33,518
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables &% « T84 Z0I8 K H fth i Uz Bk 3%
— Other receivable due from ATV - WK 2 MR R
(Note (d)(i)) (K1 72 (d)) - 90,006
— Other receivable from a fund administrator -ERESEEAZEMER
(Note (d)(ii)) (Bt 5 (d)(ii) - 98,383
— Value-added tax recoverable —- AT el 2 s A A 913 1,365
— Other receivables and prepayments — E fh pE Y BR 3k R FE N R IE
(Note (d)(iii)) (K7 &2 (d)(iii)) 54,034 21,799
- Other deposits -Hihike 1,105 3,223
- Amounts due from related companies - BB EARRIE
(Note (d)(iv) (Bt 5T (d)(iv)) 4,365 -
60,417 214,776
217,609 313,474
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS — CONTINUED

(a)

Trade receivables from securities brokerage
services and margin finance segment

All receivables from cash clients, margin clients and clearing house
are not past due at the reporting dates. Hence, the management
believes that the impairment allowance of approximately
RMB9,958,000 is enough under ECL model as these balances
have not been subjected to a significant change in credit risk
(Note 6(b)(i)).

Trading limits are set for customers. The Group seeks to maintain
tight control over its outstanding accounts receivable in order to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly monitored by

the management.

No aging analysis by invoice date is disclosed for trade receivables
from securities brokerage services and margin finance segment as,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, an aging analysis
is not meaningful in view of the business nature of securities

dealings.

Details of ECL assessment of trade receivables from securities
brokerage and margin finance business are set out in note 6(b)(i).

Movement in the allowances for bad and doubtful debts:

25. ESREMEBEWRER &

RFEMNFE - &
(@) BEELRBRAEEHE
PEZEZREERX

RUREEF  RELEPREEM
ZHIERRERSHAREE - At
ERERGEREEBEEBRERT
Ut % 48 8 1E ) A R 59,958,000
TREREERHN RAZGEEA
B 0 4 K2 B (M FE6(D)()) ©

AEBREEFPRHRE - A& E
BOEEERERZ BRIERER
B B EERBEE R
K- EEETHERDRER -

EBMHE RROWTZEETA
b WERBEESFRLCRERRE
ERMEDHEZESBBRRRER
SRHZIZRE DT -

KEEFERRBEEREFEBEE
BHEZRKERZEREEER
Al 515 B T FE6(b)()

REBERBEEHMT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
At the beginning under HKAS 39 BB G ERFIRE NFA 3,567 3,567
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 9 BRERBEBMBHREER
FORHWTE 315 -
Adjusted balance at 1 January R—A—BEARER 3,882 3,567
Impairment loss made during the year FRFERIE 5,451 -
Currency realignment AR 625 -
As at 31 December R+ZA=+—8 9,958 3,567
Annual Report 201 8
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 25. ES5 R HMWEWERR - &L

AND PREPAYMENTS — CONTINUED REMSRE-&

(b) Trade receivables from other segments (b) Hitn B 2EZRWERER
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables from other RWERBERE  REEMD
segments presented based on the invoice date at the end of the WESEKRERBREEZAHLED
reporting period: ZEREOWMT

2018 2017
—E—N\F —E—+F

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR®TT

0 to 90 day(s) 0&90H 3,583 5,971
91 to 180 days 91£E180H 461 144
181 to 270 days 181£270H - 745
271 to 365 days 2712 365H 201 239
Over 365 days B #@365H - 372
4,245 7,471
The Company generally allows a credit period of 30 days to its HK KRB —MRETHEBESHEPZE
trade customers and no credit period is allowed to its PRC trade EfAARTELATEHRRES
customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables EFEEH - -EaBERREZE
which are past due but not impaired: SERWER 2 RRDITOT:
2017
—E—tF
RMB’000
AR T
0 to 90 day(s) 0Z90H 5,407
91 to 180 days 912180H 745
181 to 270 days 1812270H 239
Over 270 days #®iB270H 372
6,763
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 25. B R HMWEWERR - &L

AND PREPAYMENTS - CONTINUED REMNRE - &
(b) Trade receivables from other segments - (b) Hittn B 2EZRWERER -
continued &

Movement in the allowances for bad and doubtful debts:

KEEHERD

2018 2017
“E-NF  ZBt%

RMB‘000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®TT

At the beginning under HKAS 39 BB G ERIE395RH N F V) 2,712 2,546
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 9 BRERBBMG®REER
FEIORMTE 1,102 -
Adjusted balance at 1 January B —A— B LR 3,814 2,546
Impairment loss made during the year FANREEE 3,010 173
Reversal of impairment loss recognised F N RO (B B 18
during the year (654) -
Currency realignment B 121 (7)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 6,291 2,712

At each reporting date, the management reviews trade
receivables for evidence of impairment on an individual and
collective basis. Due to the significant financial difficulties of
several counterparties, the Group determined impairment loss
recognised for trade receivables of approximately RMB3,010,000
as individually impaired (2017: RMB173,000) and reversal of
impairment loss recognised for trade receivables of approximately
RMB654,000 (2017: Nil) respectively during the year.

As at 31 December 2017, management closely monitors the
credit quality of trade receivables and considers trade receivables
that are neither past due nor impaired to be of a good credit
quality.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances as at
31 December 2017 were debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of approximately RMB6,763,000 which were past due at the
reporting date for which the Group has not provided allowance
because those debtors have good credit records. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

REREAH EEERENRESE
BEERWNESIERERZRED
2 HREEEHHFEAHEKRY
BRE WASEIRHRFRNET
HE D EWER RO EBIELN
AR®3,010,000t AERFEE(ZE
—tF: AR#173,000) M E 5
EWERERNREBBEDOA
R#654,0007C(C T —+F:E) o

RZZE—+F+_A=+—H &8
EERERESRRERZEREED
X URRELABHARBREZES
EUWEREBEEERRA

R-E—+EFE+-_A=+—H K&
EESBWEREHT  BER
REAYEOHmMAKEAENAA
R 166,763,0007T 2 FE W AR - AR %
EEBECEBAAERTIEER
8 - A AEEIN E AL HRRE -
AEEVEAEZSEEHEEEME
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REeMBERMEE)

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS — CONTINUED

25. EERHE
RAEMNRE -

=)
o=}

(b) Trade receivables from other segments - (b) Hittn B 2EZRWIERM -
continued i
As at 31 December 2017, the Group has provided allowances RZZE—EF+ZA=+—H K&
for certain trade receivables, as the directors of the Company EEHETESEMBRRELEE -
consider the recoverability of these debts are low based on REARARAEERBATERR
historical experience. REENHEEH s KERE -
Details of ECL assessment of trade receivables from other KRB H M B E 5 FE YRR 3R 2 78 AR
segments are set out in note 6(b)(ii). BB B RS E R M Ee(b))
(c) Deposits paid to suppliers () BftEFZZS
Deposits was paid to certain independent third parties as deposits AEBEMEBETELEF =&
to purchase raw materials of the processing and printing of fabrics ® - (ERREEEE AR B A ED
in the subsequent period. Movement in allowance for impairment EIFRERMEBZES - B #
of deposits paid to suppliers is as follows: ERzEe 2 REREBESHOT:
2018 2017
=z \4 ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFr ARBF o
As at 1 January ®n—A—H 16,727 16,541
Impairment loss during the year FANREEE 2,908 2,018
Amount written-back e & (8,003) (1,832)
As at 31 December R+ZA=+—H 11,632 16,727
(d) Deposits, prepayments and other receivables d) &2 BEARERHEHMER
IR
(i) As at 31 December 2017, other receivable due from i RZE—EF+ZA=+-—
ATV represented (i) debts previously owed to the ex- H - U EEAR 2 H fh B UAR 3R
employees and ex-independent contractors of ATV in REROEAMBRERANET K
the aggregate amount of approximately HK$54,249,000, B EAREBIEEE RN
equivalent to approximately RMB45,162,000 (including 54,249,000 7L (8 5 R 49 A
mandatory provident fund contributions and surcharge R #45,162,0007T) (B 1 & 22
for ex-employees of ATV in Hong Kong and social R BANE TR 2986 1%
security insurance contributions and surcharge for ex- ANESHRAEMINE R ASTR
employees of ATV in PRC) which have been assigned to ZHFBRETEE SRR
Star Platinum during the year; and (ii) amounts advanced ESHRRWEME)  BEX
to ATV for maintaining its operation of approximately HERFAEZEZEENDE:
HK$53,868,000, equivalent to approximately R)RHEFEREEMENT
RMB44,844,000. ATV became as subsidiary of the Group 048R 2 B IE £953,868,000% 7T
during the year (Note 11(b)). (B & R4 A R 144,844,000
) BHRARFRKAREE
B B 88 2 B (B FE11(b))
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS — CONTINUED
(d) Deposits, prepayments and other receivables -

conti
(i)

(iii)

(iv)

nued

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group had
served a notice for redemption of an unlisted investment
fund which was classified as financial assets at FVTPL. The
redemption price was approximately HK$118,177,000 and
the amount remained unsettled as at 31 December 2017,
therefore recorded as a receivable. The Group has received
the full settlement from redemption of the unlisted fund
during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
paid approximately HK$34,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB29,849,000) to an independent third
party which has been processing the claims of the creditor
of a partial-owned subsidiary, ATV, under a scheme
of arrangement (the “Creditor Scheme"”) approved on
12 September 2017.

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

26. LOAN RECEIVABLES

The credit quality analysis of the loan receivables is as follows:

25.

26.

EZREMBERERN  BE

RENRKIE -

=)
o=}

(d #% BAIREREMGENK
R -

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

REBEE=Z—tF+=-A=+
—ALFEE AKEEH =
DPEREAFEFTABRE
CHBEEZLEMREES
BHERBANE - BRENS
118,177,000/ 7t * MARZF —
+t&+-A=+—HEHELHE
B REEE - EIL TIA RS IERE
RS - AEEDRFERIKE
ZELTESENZHERS
8 o

HE-_T—N\F+ZA=1+—
ALFEE AEER—EBL
= 7 1 #934,000,0007% 7T
(188 R 4 A R 29,849,000
L) REZHERER-T
—+FAA+ B ES —1E
ZHEETEI ((EREAGTE]) R
—REDHEBWEQRATVE
BEREABRE -

el IR S EET - R E KA

& & K
R EREES T -

2018 2017

—FN\F —F—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFr

Unsecured loans P E R

- principal - K& 108,763 138,861

- interest - MR 12,303 8,879
Less: Impairment loss recognised W BERRBEEE (20,873) (9,391)
100,193 138,349
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RERBEHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

26. LOAN RECEIVABLES — CONTINUED 26. BRER - &
The Group’s loan receivables, which arise from the money lending AEBMZERER(EAREBHOREES
business in Hong Kong, were denominated in HK$. The net carrying MEE)IABTEE RZE—N\F+=
values of the loan principal and interest receivables in original currency A=+—BzRERKEFRARE RF L (GRRRK
as at 31 December 2018 amounted to approximately HK$102,349,000 2 EW) 2 R FE D R4 102,349,000
(2017: HK$156,800,000) and approximately HK$11,779,000 (2017: ¥ 7T (Z T — + 4 : 156,800,000 7£) & 4)
HK$9,385,000), respectively. 11,779,000 7T (= T — + 4 : 9,385,000
BIt) e

Aging analysis of loan receivables (after impairment allowances) HBASHNAERERHABBHRKEEH
prepared based on loan commencement or renewal date, which were HEE s ADPREREERCAERER)Z
not past due, set out in the relevant contracts is as follows: R DT -

2018
—E—N\F

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®TT

Less than 1 month L —1E A - 24,893

1 to 3 month(s) —@MAE=fA 26,013 -

4 to 6 months MEAZNEA 46,906 80,767

7 to 12 months t@EAzE+—MA 27,274 32,689
100,193 138,349

Loan receivables as at 31 December 2018 are unsecured and interest RZZE-—N\F+ZA=+—H EBRERA

bearing at fixed rates ranging from 10% to 24% (2017: 10.0% to EEFRAEEFEELI0%E24% (ZF—

24.0%) per annum. + & :110.0%E24.0%) 5t 2 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

26.

LOAN RECEIVABLES — CONTINUED

The movement in impairment loss on loan receivables is as follows:

31 December 2018 — &

ReMBEERMEGE)

—N\FE+=ZA=+—H

BRER - &
BRER 2 REREEDET

2018 2017

—N\F —E—+F

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR#TF T AR#TFor

At the beginning under HKAS 39 BEE B EEIR N 9,391 -
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 9 BRERB BV REEREIR

(Note (6(b)(iii)) B %2 & (Y iE6(b)iii) 5,127 -

Adjusted balance at 1 January R—A— B LRAEE S 14,518 -

Impairment loss recognised during the year FANRRZBERRE 8,351 9,781

Reversal of impairment loss recognised during % [ 4F /0 i 52 2 Al 1B &5 18

the year (3,002) -

Currency realignment WEAE 1,006 (390)

As at 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 20,873 9,391

Impairment provisions are recognised for expected credit loss (2017:
incurred losses). All the loan receivables are entered with contractual
maturity within 3 months to 1 year (2017: 3 months to 1 year). The
Group seeks to maintain tight control over its loan receivables in order to
minimize credit risk by reviewing the borrowers’ or guarantors’ financial
positions.

Simplified approach is applied to measure the lifetime ECL for loan
receivables of short term in duration (i.e. less than one year) and the
remaining loan receivables is measured on 12m ECL basis unless there
had been significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Allowance for ECLs on loans receivables are estimated using a calculation
model based on observable data as at the end of the reporting period,
including the difference between the interest rates of interest charged
by the Group for similar loans, and the risk-free rates. The Group
has recognised allowance for ECLs, representing approximately 2.61%
- 9.11% of the gross carrying amounts, against all loan receivables
as at 31 December 2018 due to the collective assessments which
indicated that these receivables may not be fully recoverable because
of risks associated with the customers and the industries, in which the
customers operate.

As at 31 December 2018, all loan receivables are classified as lifetime
ECL.

Wﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgréﬂ%ﬁﬁm(_g +
F EELAER) - MBEERKES Z Exl
HER=EAZ-—FAN(=ZZE—+t :1I
AE—%F)- K%.@(jﬂLﬂ%E‘afaTJ\

B % AR %&ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ&(%%ﬁﬂ’]}%ﬂ%&%ﬂ :
BREEERRBRERE -

RAECAFERR A IR —F)BKE
RO ERBEREERE - MRGRERER

Br—@ABEMEEERTE KFEaM
95 e °R DA SR (5 A R [ R B 0 -

HEREXBEHEEBRBREDIZER
ERNHEBRTBERBURO G TEAMS
i BERAREHREEREHNERNE
BASERERBRANEXZEAEZR - R_-F
—NF+= ﬂ T—H BRERITHET

ERESRAEERAEERPRE P EEMETT
FHREMRRMEZBHED - AARE

EERMEEKREREREHEEEBEEBR
B HEREEAELN261%E9.11% °

RZF-NF+-—A=+—0 \EEKE
DHREXHNEBREEES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REeMBERMEE)

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

26. LOAN RECEIVABLES - CONTINUED
The following is a credit quality analysis of loan receivables under HKFRS
9. In the event that an instalment repayment is overdue, the entire
outstanding balance of loan receivables is classified as overdue.

Neither overdue nor credit-impaired

BHREERE

Overdue and credit impaired

26.

REB I EERRE

BHRER - &

WA 8 7 5 B 75 3R 55 A R 5505 70 4
HRMEREEDN - WESMERD S
SRR S E S EX Y P
B

2018
—E-N\F

RMB'000
ARETFT

106,514
14,552

Less: Allowance for ECLs

BoREHEEBRER

121,066
(20,873)

100,193

The following is a credit quality analysis of loan receivables under HKAS
39. In the event that the instalment repayment is overdue, only the
balance of this instalment is classified as overdue.

Neither overdue nor impaired

Overdue above 90 days BHI0K LA £

REERTEEERE

UTAEBGFERFEIRETEKER
MEEEEMN - WESHEREBE
ARERDHNBERERAY -

2017
—E—+tF

RMB’000
AR T

138,349
9,391

Less: Allowance for impairment loss

HoREHEEEERES

147,740
(9,391)

138,349

Loan receivables which were neither past due nor impaired related to
a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

26.

27.

LOAN RECEIVABLES - CONTINUED
As at 31
impairment individually based on customers’ payment history and the

December 2017, the Group reviewed and assessed for

values of the assets pledged. Loan receivables that were past due but
not impaired relate to customers that have good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company were of
the opinion that no provision for impairment was necessary in respect
of these balances as there had not been a significant change in credit
quality for these customers and the balances were still considered fully
recoverable.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong and

(R 2T

overseas at fair value

ReMBEERMEGE)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

26.

27.

BEERBILETRAE S

EWEXR - &
R-T—+F+-_A=+—8 AEERE
BERPFERCEREREE 22 FEEBR
SR ERERR - BE AT ERERN
ERERDEHEASEEERITFFERE
MEF - ERBALH  ARAFEERA
mARZEERERBERE BZEEP
WEEEEYESKEHALHRNE AT
2 HUE o

BAVEFABRRRZUH
BE

2018
—E-N\F

2017
—T—tF
RMB’000
AREFT

RMB’000
ARETT

123,237 52,413

The above equity investments as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 were
classified as held for trading.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, certain financial assets at FVTPL of
approximately RMB121,795,000 (2017: RMB20,444,000) were pledged
to other financial institutions to secure the credit facilities granted to
the Group (Note 32).

RZE-NEFRZTE—tF+=ZA=+—
A Ll AKREEDHEARBIELEZE
F

o

e

RZE-N\EFR=_E—+tFF+=_A=+—
A AEBEBEAFEFABSEEZETH
BEEHARE121,795000TEF T HAb
CREE (T —tF: AR%20,444,000
L) MERASEEEREERE (M :E32)
ZAE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RERBEHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

28. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK 28. EEMBITHERURBITE
BALANCES AND CASH BREEE
Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to secure EEFRITFRARERBRTER TR
banking facilities (note 32) granted to the Group and carry fixed interest LERAEBEREITEE (W32 28
rate ranging from 1.5% to 1.95% (2017: 1.5% to 2.1%) per annum at R HRZE-NF+ZA=+—H0%KE
31 December 2018. EFEERIS%EIN% (ZE—EF:15%

E21%)EFB °

Bank balances carry interest at market rates ranging from 0.0% to RZZE-—N\F+_A=+—8 Ri7&#
0.35% (2017: 0.0% to 0.35%) per annum as at 31 December 2018. EMHEFEE00%E035% (ZE—+F:

0.0%%0.35%) 5t 2 °

2018 2017
“E-NE Tt F

RMB‘000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETFT

Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRE
- segregated accounts (Note (i) - BRI 5 3) 135,815 108,227
— general accounts and cash (Note (ii) - — R BR P RIRE (ML) 37,295 121,687
Total bank balances and cash RIEITHEBRR 173,110 229,914

Less: Clients’ monies in segregated account B BPRBILKRP ZFR

(Note (i) (Bt a) (135,815) (108,227)

Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEEY 37,295 121,687

Note: B 5%

(i) From the Group’s ordinary business in provision of brokerage and related (i) AEBRETRHELEREERE 2 —
services, the Group receives and holds money deposited by clients in the MEBBEBEFELEZRETDE - g
course of the conduct of the regulated activities. These clients’ monies BEREBEPHFERZHRIE - ZFEP
are maintained in segregated bank accounts at market interest rates. The REERRG THSNEZ2BILRTE
Group has recognised the corresponding accounts payables to respective PR -AEECEAEE ENIEBRE
clients. PRIE

(i) As at 31 December 2018, there was certain pledged bank deposit and (ii) RZZ—N\F+ZA=+—8 AWEF
unpledged bank deposit in two (2017: three) PRC banks. BOTBEETEEFBRITERERER

RITFER(ZE—LF: =)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 29. ESREHMENERR

2018 2017
—FN\F —F—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT

Trade payables from securities brokerage BERKERBRREBCRE B

services and margin finance segment B 5 AT BR B (M A ()

(Note (i) 146,858 62,530
Trade payables from other segments (Note (i) Eith 7 8 =2 & 5 FE - B8R 3% (M 72 (ii) 16,529 26,021
Customers’ deposits BEP2ES® 18,271 17,771
Other payables and accruals (Note (iii)) H M FE A BR Sk K FE R B B (Y A2 (i) 69,814 28,778
Other payables under Creditor Scheme BEREAGTEIIE T HA AR

(Note (iv)) (Bt &% (iv)) 31,792 -
Amount due to a director (Note (V) e EERIE (M E W) 626 214
Amounts due to directors of the subsidiaries &< fff BB A 7 & = 308 (ff 77 (v)

(Note (v)) 153 100
Amount due to a shareholder of the Company J& - 2~ A &) i% 3 2038 (A7 3£ (v)

(Note (v)) 386 366
Amounts due to non-controlling owners of FERM B AR EIERES AKIE

subsidiaries (Note (v)) (B 7 W) 55,007 26,841
Amounts due to related companies (Note (vi)) F& < B8 i& 2 &) 5018 (B 72 (vi) 105 7,904
Deposits on disposal of subsidiaries (Note (vii)) & i B X &) 89 3% & (K7 2% (vii) 16,681 -
Deferred revenue iR W 5 11,442 -

367,664 170,525
Note: B 3
(i) The trade payable balances arising from the ordinary course of business (i) BRERPRBE IR ??EEJE":PR?EH#EZ
of securities brokerage services and margin finance are normally settled REBRRERKBEREIN R—REFLL
in two trading days after the trade date except for the money held on BR 7 B AR 7F fﬂﬁ%%z%ﬁ%ﬁkqﬂé
behalf of clients at the segregated bank accounts which are repayable EZEBIRNERERETRRZS EIHJ?
on demand. No aging analysis is disclosed for as in the opinion of the EMEARSBEE - KXRAEERR -
directors of the Company, an aging analysis is not meaningful in view of REFEERRECREEB XD \‘_*L
the business nature of securities dealings and margin financing. B REROMZBETA Bt - W&

BREOW -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RERBEHRRMER)

31 December 2018 ==

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES — CONTINUED 29.

—NE+=A=+—H

Note: — continued

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

208

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

EEREMEBENKRR -

oAt

(ii)

- &

RBEPRHEERE - EHENSRABE
BRAPENZRESNAOT :

2018

—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TFT AE®FT
0 to 90 day(s) 0E90H 7,403 7,361
91 to 180 days 91£180H 688 2,193
181 to 270 days 181%270H 993 3,348
271 to 365 days 271%365H 864 4,981
Over 365 days R iB365H 6,581 8,138
16,529 26,021

Other payables mainly represents the payables to acquire or produce film
rights, acquire licence and property, plant and equipment.

Other payables under Creditor Scheme represents the amount due to the
claimants of a partial-owned subsidiary, ATV, under Creditor Scheme.
These claims were in process as at 31 December 2018.

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free except for an amount
of RMB55,007,000 which is interest bearing at 8.5% per annum, and
repayable on demand (2017: the amounts due were unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand).

The amounts are due to related companies which directors of certain
subsidiaries have significant influence or direct equity interest. The
amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand (2017:
The amount due were unsecured, interest-free except for an amount
of RMB7,766,000 which was interest bearing at 5% per annum, and
repayable on demand).

On 16 July 2018, a wholly owned subsidiary, Co-Prosperity Investment
(International) Limited entered into agreement with Ms. Yang Xiaogiu to
sell 60% of the entire issued share capital of Million Federal International
Limited at the consideration of approximately RMB87,790,000 (equivalent
to HK$100,000,000). As at 31 December 2018, the Group received a
deposit on disposed of this subsidiary of approximately RMB16,681,000
(equivalent to HK$19,000,000).

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
THNERZRAERL A

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

HENEREIBERBEXREEFZR
- BMEREENE  BERRENEN
BRAX ©

B A GT &I T #9 E At B RO 2 e R
*E)\ﬂ%'F%“%ﬁ@ﬁ%’&ﬁﬂvm%%
ABRE - R-T—-N\F+-A=+—H
EA#EFl%{HE AT

ERFEAEER 28 BREP—ZFA
R #55,007,0007T KB AIEFSE8.5% K
ZEJEEE%F‘ﬁ(:%ftE CRUE AR
W aERARERERE)-

ZEREENTREEATENNEER
B2ETHEBARESZBEQR - %5
RIBREER ﬁa%&mﬂ’éﬁrﬁ g (=
T—LF FEAEER 25 KREF
— % AR¥7,766,0007T 718 B ik F B X
5% K BREEREE) -

RZZE-NFLtA+ B 2EWBA
7] Co-Prosperity Investment (International)
Limited £2 Yang Xiaoqiu Z = 7] 37 13 % A
it £ Million Federal International Limited
2HEETREF0N RERHAR
#87,790,0007T (1§ & 7100,000,000/8
) RZE-NF+ZA=+—B %K%
EREEEMNBEARBRIEZEESNARE
16,681,000 (48 & 719,000,000 JT) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

30.

BOND PAYABLES

On 15 October 2015, the Company as issuer (assignor) and the assignee
as subscriber entered into a subscription agreement in respect of the
subscription of the one-year 15% coupon secured bond to be issued by
the Company in the principal amount of HK$70,000,000 which would
be secured by the share charge to be executed by Widerlink Group
Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) (the “Chargor”) in
favour of the assignee over the entire issued share capital of a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group.

A supplementary subscription agreement was signed on 14 October
2016, the maturity date was extended to 14 October 2017 and the
interest rate was adjusted from 15% to 8% per annum for the period
from 15 October 2015 to 14 October 2017.

A second supplementary subscription agreement was signed on
14 October 2017 and interest rate was remained at 8% per annum for
the period from 15 October 2015 to 14 October 2018.

A third supplementary subscription agreement was signed on
15 October 2018 and interest rate was remained at 8% per annum for
the period from 15 October 2015 to 14 October 2019.

e MEERME(E)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

30.

P& 13 18 &5

R-T—AF+A+AEB  KAARERHET
ANERNBEZZAMEARBEA)IGTLR
Bz NAAUEREBEARBEITA
£ #070,000,0008 TR EX15% 2 —FHIA
HIFES  MERFEFBAERRFZE
& Mt B A Al Widerlink Group Limited ([ &2
ANUAEE-—H2EMBARZIC %
TRAERBUSZBAAIZAELZR
IR R A -

—ORZFB-RETATHAZEZEZHAE
RBEBEBNPAERE_T—tF+A
TR Y -T-AFTATRRE"ZF
—tFTATHBEEZFFEHI5%FHE

£28% °

— PR ZE—LEFTATHAREZE -
WHAERBHHEHA _ZT-—AF+A+AA
E-T-NFTATOAMBZFN R G
8% ©

—ORZE-N\FTATERRBEZE=N
WaERBHES-_T—HAFETATHEE
TE-NAFHATHASAMZFN G R
8% ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RERBEHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

31. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASES 31. MMEMHEAE
The Group leases certain of its motor vehicles (note 16) under finance AEERERERERREE TR (K
leases. £16) ©

Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments
=X &R REEENHRZHRE
2018 2017 2018 2017

—E2-N\F —ZT—+tF ZZE-)N\F —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANEETFT ANEETFT AE®TFT AE®TFT

Amounts payable: JE A SRR
Within one year —FR 216 205 205 188
In the second to fifth years, E_FEERF
inclusive (BEERME) 209 402 205 389
Total minimum finance lease SEBERNREE
payments 425 607 410 577
Future finance charges RERBMEER (15) (30)

Total net finance lease payables FERTRLE M E KB

R 48 B 410 577

Portion classified as current NEAREAME
liabilities (205) (188)
Non-current portion FER B IS 205 389

210 ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

32. SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS, SHORT 32. EHARITER - REHMEH
TERM LOANS FROM OTHER FINANCIAL BBECEHERRKREMEES

INSTITUTIONS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Interest rate 2018

) = —T-N\F —T—+tF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR F T AREFT
Short-term bank loans, secured RESRITER (BER) 4.79%-6.96%
(note (a)) (bt 5% (@) (2017: 4.35%-6.42%)
4.79%-6.96%
(ZF—t%F:

4.35%-6.42%) 90,305 113,550
Short-term loans from other REEM SRS 8.38%-8.63%
financial institutions, secured HHER(FEMR) (2017:8.25%)
(note (b)) (K1 &£ b)) 8.38%-8.63%

(ZE—+1F :8.25%) 50,553 8,340
Short-term loans from other REEM SRR 12.00%-24.00%
financial institutions, unsecured HHER(EIER) (2017: Nil)
(note (c)) oz3) 12.00%-24.00%

(ZE—tF:8\) 170,313 —

220,866 8,340
Other borrowing, secured (d) Hith B3R (B ) 30.00%
(B 7% (d)) (2017: Nil)
30.00%

(ZE—+F:8\) 131,685 —
Other borrowing, unsecured (e) HmER(EER) 8.00%
(it (e)) (2017: 8.00%)
8.00%

(ZZF—+F:8.00%) 33,360 31,635

165,045 31,635

476,216 153,525
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RERBEHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

32. SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS, SHORT 32. EHIRITER - REHMESH
=1 =,
TERM LOANS FROM OTHER FINANCIAL BEcERERKREMEE -
INSTITUTIONS AND OTHER BORROWINGS - &
CONTINUED
Note: Bt 7
(a) Certain short-term bank loans are secured by certain property, plant and (a) ETEHRTERAETOE BER
equipment (note 16), prepaid lease payments (note 18), pledged bank (K16 « A ERE (W E18) &
deposits (note 28) and guaranteed by certain related parties and the BIEFRITER(LE)ERE  ImET
maximum amount guaranteed is set out below: EHEALTER HRERSEHIIW
T
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—+F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTFT AR Fr
Joint and several guarantee (Note (i) H R R M@ B E R (K1) 75,000 131,000
Joint and several guarantee (Note (i) A Ko M@ B HE AR (K A7 (i) 130,000 -
Joint and several guarantee (Note (iij) R K M8 Bl HE AR (B a2 (i) 22,500 74,500
Guaranted by Mr. Cai Chaodun AEPRBLERER 50,000 -
277,500 205,500
Note: B 5
0) The credit facilities were jointly guaranteed by Mr. Cai Chaodun, (i) FHREERMEBERAREE - B
Mr. Qiu Fengshou, Ms. Wang Yuee, Mr. Cai Chaodun’s wife and BWEE BRHAEEZETE
Ms. Ding Honggan, Mr. Qiu Fengshou’s wife. Mr. Cai Chaodun is ARZLtREBQREEZEFT
the deputy general manager of the Group, who is considered as AHEZTHRAER BBHBHELE
a key management personnel. REAEBEZBIEEE  BRERRB

TEEBAB -

(if) The credit facilities were jointly guaranteed by Mr. Sze Siu Hung, (if) FHREEREARIERE - 8BS
Mr. Cai Chaodun, Mr. Qiu Fengshou, Ms. Wang Yuee, Mr. Cai Rk - BEWEE BBHIELLE
Chaodun’s wife and Ms. Ding Honggan, Mr. Qiu Fengshou's wife. ZEFTRBRTRBEWELE
Mr. Cai Chaodun is the deputy general manager of the Group, ZEFTHHZTHRER %
who is considered as a key management personnel. HAHEERAIEB 2R BIEE -

WRERTEEEAR

(i) The credit facilities were jointly guaranteed by Mr. Cai Chaodun iy EHEEMEHRSZEBHHEENLL
and Mr. Qiu Fengshou. LEERRER -
ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

32. SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS, SHORT
TERM LOANS FROM OTHER FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS AND OTHER BORROWINGS -
CONTINUED

Note: — continued

(b)

()

These short-term loans from other financial institutions are secured by
certain pledged fair assets at FVTPL (note 27) as at 31 December 2017
and 2018.

These short-term loans from other financial institutions represent two
unsecured borrowings from two following independent third parties as at
31 December 2018.

Short term loan from other financial institution contains a borrowing of
carrying amount of approximately RMB166,801,000 has a repayable on
demand term, interest was bearing at 24% per annum and guaranteed
by a substantial shareholder of the Company, Mr. Deng Junjie. This short
term loan from other financial institution was expired on 4 October 2018.
The Group entered into supplementary loan agreement with the borrower
on 26 March 2019 to extend the loan to 26 June 2019. Following the
renewal agreement, the loan principal was changed from HK$190,000,000
to HK$194,200,000.

Another borrowing is interest bearing at 12% per annum, and will be
repayable on 28 May 2019.

This other borrowing from an independent third party is repayable on
26 February 2019, interest is bearing at 30% per annum and secured by
the 100% of the issued shares of the Group’s wholly owned subsidiary,
Full Winning, which held the issued share of the Group’s associate, Yong
Tai. In addition, there are (i) first fixed charge on all and singular the
fixed property and assets of the Company; (ii) first floating charge on
the whole of the undertaking and all other property assets and rights
of the Company and (iii) first floating charge on all and singular the
fixed property and assets of the Company, of whatsoever nature and
wheresoever situate both present and future.

This other borrowing from an independent third party was expired
on 28 December 2018. The Group entered into supplementary loan
agreement with the borrower on 3 January 2019 to extend the loan to
4 January 2020. Following the renewal agreement, the loan principal was
changed from HK$38,000,000 to HK$40,000,000 and the interest rate
was changed from 8% per annum to 12% per annum.

e MEERME(E)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

32. HHRTENR - REEMEH
BB EHERKAEMESR -

&
s - &

(b) ZERBHEMESBEEZ QHPERURZ
T—tFR-F-NF+_A=+—HK
AFEFABEENEEFAFEE M
FE27) A o

(© ZERBEMCEREBZERETER
“E-N\F+-A=t+—-BEREME TR
BYFE=T 2 MEAREEFER -

TEHMbeRMEBEZEREREE—E
BEEELNAARE166,801,000T 2 EE -
BRERER  BFNE24%5E - X H
RAAREERRBENLEER - %ZE
REHMeRmEBEZEHERER S

“NFTrAMNBBY - ALEER-_FT—A
F=A= +/\E|§51E /\n—fiﬁﬁg

HE BEREHE=ZFTE-NAF~AZ
+RA - FNEZEHFEE BERLALH
190,000,0007% 7T 24 £194,200,000/% 7t ©

—HBERFNER%FTE AR -E
—NFREAZ+NBHEE

Ch ZERE—RBUE= N ZHMEERAR
:i_ﬂﬁiﬂf"'/\aﬂgi_ R F H X
30%&TE - W AFA AR KB L RFKK
BBRTRONEEE2ENBARIERY
100% B 1T EEIR - dtoh - RAEE
@ OARAMERERNEENEREEN
E—EFEME ()RR A 2 FBAEYE R KAT
Eﬂfm%%ﬁ@&%ﬂ&’]% FEIRAC

R (iii) 72X B HA 3R F % oS SR TE fE o (] 1B M
B RERAE 2 A REREEDER
BEMNEFHMIL -

(e ZERE-—RBUF=TZ2HMEEE
RZZE-NF+ZAZTNBEH - k&
BEERANRZ-AF-A=HTILH
TERHHE BERCHE-_ZT_ZTF
—RA=ZH - FINEZHHEE  BEXELLAH
38,000,000 7T. 24 440,000,000 7T+ if7
B 1R F F 8% 5T B B A 12 &F F £12% 7
B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
=M B ERMEGR)

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

33.

214

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 23 October 2015, the Company entered into a conditional placing
agreement (“CB Placing”) (as supplemented by the supplemental
CB Placing agreements dated 13 December 2015 and the second
supplemental CB placing agreement dated 1 February 2016)
(collectively, the “CB Placing Agreements”) with China Everbright
Securities (“China Everbright”) in relation to the placing of the bonds
in accordance with the terms of the CB Placing Agreements (the
“Placing Bond”). On 15 April 2016, the Placing Bond with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$120,450,000 (equivalent to RMB100,611,000)
had been successfully placed by China Everbright to not less than six
CB investors. Details of the Placing Bond were set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 14 December 2015, 1 February 2016, 8 April
2016 and 15 April 2016 and the circular dated 22 February 2016.

The convertible bonds mature in three years from the date of issue
at 8% interest of its principal amount, unless previously converted or
purchased. Neither the Company nor the bondholder may demand early
redemption of the convertible bond in any event.

The conversion option of the convertible bonds is accounted for as
equity instrument and is determined after deducting the fair value of the
liability component from the total fair value amount of the convertible
bonds at the date of issuance. The residual amount represents the
value of the conversion option, which is credited directly to equity as
convertible bond equity reserve of the Group. The valuation of the fair
value of the liability component at the date of issuance was carried
out by an external independent valuer, Hong Kong Appraisal Advisory
Limited, by using discounted cash flow method. The effective interest
rate of the liability component on initial recognition and the subsequent
measure of effective interest expense on convertible bonds is calculated
at 9.78%.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, an aggregate
principal amount of HK$30,800,000, equivalent to approximately
RMB25,558,000 of the convertible bonds was converted into
140,000,000 ordinary shares at the conversion price of HK$0.22 per
conversion share. There is no outstanding conversion shares after this
conversion.

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
THEBRERARAXA

33. A RESR

RZTE—AF+AZ+=H ARFEFEH
K RFEH(BB)BRAR(PEKXKESR]
AVBRHRERZE(ERBA-ZZT—AF
T At=AZERATRERESFRERZ
MBHAZTE-AF_A—BZE_HNHE
A BRBREFREREET)(GEBAIZ
SR ESFEEHE]) AR BBERE
ZEABMRESFEEHEREESF (RS
EH]) e RZTE—A"FHWEA+EH - FEK
AEBHERNATPRANBABRRESFE
B EEE ARG %5 45120,450,00008 T (A%
MAR¥100,611,0000) 2 BREE S - BL&E
BEBHEZFBHRNARAIERBR AT —
AE+-A+HE - ZZE—-XE-A—H -
—E-RENMANBR=-ZZE—XFMA+
FRAZAMERERAMA-ZZT - F=A
ZtZHZ@EE -

BRIOFERAEBMAES  JHRRESFK&E
TREEF = F R R E AR R IA8% AT
B RARAERBEFHFAEAREMBERTH
AR ERBAERAHRRES

REITEH  TBRRESZBRERED
ARFERATRE  ReliREHAFE
BERHNBREBESIZAFERTUAEE -
EHRBEARKREERZEER HEER
BmARAAEE A RRES EFE -
BEBINETAPRZ A FEHINGE L
HEMSETEBERBERAGUTRERE S
MEERITHE - AEBORYBEHERE
AR FANGTER BN 2R BRESFERF
BEREZZEBAER.78% -

HEZT—+F+-A=+—HIEFE &
48 %530,800,0008 L HHERHOARE
25,558,0007T) 2 A MR EH B IRMIREST
R 42 % % 19 0.22 7 JT 8 42 /4140,000,000 %
T o AR RE I EBITEIINE

Betn e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

33.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS — CONTINUED

ReMBEERMEGE)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

33. AR ESH - &

The convertible bonds are bifurcated into a liability component and

an equity component for accounting purpose. The following tables

summarise the movements in the liability and equity components of the

Company'’s convertible bonds during the year ended 31 December 2017:

BREFENME  JRRESOSRAR
Mok#Emey  TRHPABE—FT—+
FTZA=ZT —HLFEARARRATH]AR
BErzaEhEado228:

2017
—T—+tF
RMB’'000
AREF T
Liability component E2END
At the beginning date A B H 26,589
Effective interest expense BERAMERX 1,565
Interest payable FE AT F 2 (1,323)
Conversion during the year RAFESER (25,558)
Currency realignment BB (1,273)
At the end of the year REHER -
Equity component ERBD
At the beginning date R e A H 1171
Conversion B (1.171)
At the end of the year REFER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RERBEHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

34. DEFERRED TAXATION 34, FEERIE
The components of deferred tax recognised in the consolidated RiFE PR RER 2IEERIBI D &
statement of financial position and the movement during the year are HFERNEHMAT
as follows:

Fair value arising
from business  Accelerated tax
combination depreciation Total

EEE7

ABHATE MEHRBEFTE B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR®TT

Deferred tax liabilities RIEBIEAR
As at 1 January 2017 R-_T—+tF—-H—H - - -
Charged to consolidated profit or loss R4 & ENK - (828) (828)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 11(a)) W &I & AR (M 11@) - (64) (64)
Currency realignment BEBRAE - 37 37
As at 31 December 2017 RZZT—t5F

+—-A=+—8H - (855) (855)
Charged to consolidated profit or loss R4 & 182 BRI - 2,634 2,634
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 11(b)) B M BB /) (B a2 11(b) (29,275) (46,253) (75,528)
Currency realignment BEAE (1,674) (917) (2,591)
As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZF-N\F

+=A=+—H (30,949) (45,391) (76,340)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible temporary RREBRBERE  AEEEAHNRY R
differences of RMB237,604,000 (2017: RMB256,343,000). No deferred ZRARM237,604,000T (ZF—+HF: A
tax asset has been recognised in relation to deductible temporary R #256,343,0007T) ° AR N KA REH FE R
difference because it is not probable that taxable profit will be available FEF I SRR R B A =58 4K 8
against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. P ES AR E S EEREREERIEE

= o
Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends REBEFBRCEMRSHE BT NF—
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January A—RHE BHEMERFMEIERNE
2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the AR EAHRENR - MWK AR
financial statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to ERPRENBARKREENNERKESE
retained profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB58,458,000 AR #58,458,000t (ZF —tF: AR
(2017: RMB156,516,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of 156,516,0007T) {E R AE B TE B - [REA 2
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the AEEAEZE YR EENELRRE -
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. LA K 3% 55 R Z BB AL 0] A 2R K A) g
@ -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

35. SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

ReMBEERMEGE)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

35. A

Authorised

Number

of share Amount
P& 17 20 B TRER
‘000 HK$°000

F AR FET

FRME108 T 2 & B K

As at 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017

and 31 December 2018

R=-—ZE—+tH&—HA—8"

—E2-tF+ZA=t—-HR
—E2-N\F+=ZA=t—H 20,000,000 2,000,000

Issued and fully paid
EETRER
Number of Amount Amount

Bt 24 B TN R TN R

‘000 RMB’000 RMB’000

TR AREFTT ARETT

As at 1 January 2017 RZZT—+tF—A—H 3,985,920 351,608 398,592
Placement of new shares (Note (i) Bic & 37 AR 10 (B 2% (1)) 797,184 70,949 79,718
Placement of new shares (Note (ii) fic & 37 B 10 (B 2% (i) 956,620 82,757 95,662
Conversion of convertible bonds a3 0] I AR E 55 (B £ (i)

(Note (iii)) 140,000 11,935 14,000
Placement of new shares (Note (iv)) i & # R 1D (K7 2 (iv) 1,175,944 99,368 117,594
As at 31 December 2017 and R-ZB—+tHE+-A=+—-HK

31 December 2018 —E2-N\Fg+=-A=+—H 7,055,668 616,617 705,566
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RERBEHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_E—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

35. SHARE CAPITAL — CONTINUED

218

Note:

(@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

On 16 February 2017, the Company entered into a share placing
agreement with the placing agent. Pursuant to the 2017 share placing
agreement, the placing agent has conditionally agreed to place, on a best
effort basis, up to an aggregate of 797,184,000 new ordinary shares of the
Company to not less than six placees at a price of not less than HK$0.20
per placing share. On 9 March 2017, 797,184,000 ordinary shares has
been successfully placed at HK$0.20 per placing share. These shares rank
pari passu in all respects with the existing shares.

On 30 June 2017, the Company entered into the placing agreement with
the placing agent and Sincere Securities Limited (“Sincere Securities”) (an
indirectly non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company). Pursuant to the
share placing agreement, the placing agent and Sincere Securities has
conditionally agreed to place, on a best effort basis, up to an aggregate
of 956,620,000 new ordinary shares of the Company to not less than six
placees at a price of not less than HK$0.25 per placing share. On 24 July
2017, a total of 956,620,000 shares were successfully placed at HK$0.25
per placing share. These shares ranked pari passu with other shares in
issue in all respect.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, an aggregate principal
of HK$30,800,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB25,558,000) of
convertible bonds (note 33) was converted at the conversion price of
HK$0.22. These shares ranked pari passu with other shares in issue in all
aspect.

On 24 November 2017, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with the placing agent. Pursuant to which the placing agent agreed to
place 1,175,944,000 new shares under general mandate at the price of
HK$0.40 per placing share to not less than six placees based on a best
effort basis. On 19 December 2017, a total of 1,175,944,000 shares were
successfully placed at HK$0.4 per placing share. These shares ranked pari
passu with other shares in issue in all respect.

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
THNERZRAERL A

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

35. A& - &

oAt

RZZE—tFZA+B  AQRHEEE
REBITIROESHE  RIE-_FT—+
FRNEEHR BEREEEKGR
BRBNEERNTIORANEBEARARE
&% 46 £797,184,000 8 AR R FTE @M
REBATMERGREERN0.208 T »
M-Z—t&F=HhH 797,184,000/ &
BREKNIZERESER7H0.208 T 2B
BEE - WERNMESHTERERERNE
BRZEHNAL -

RZZE—tFNA=Z1TH AQRHEKEE
REEARAFB ZEEIFZ2EMB AR
EFHFARAR(FERHFTIRER
HFoBREBZROEERZE  RBERER
MEFFEERGRBERENEERTD
RN AR ARS &% 4 $£956,620,000
BARARMEBR AKEBATERE
RBLER D025 T - RZZE—+F+ A
—+mA - A ££956,620,0000% % 15 2 A
HiZ BRI ERMD02SET 2 BREE -
HERNESHFEREMBERTROER
EES:uEval

RBEEZZE—tHF+-A=+—HLF
€ N4 4% 430,800,000/ T (FHE R
# A R #25,558,0007T) 2 A] #2 i% (& % (Ft
F33)BIR0.22B T2 REER - KE
BHOESHFEREMERITRHZERSE
bR VAR

RZT—+tF+—A=+WMA  AQAH
RERBITVEEHRE Bt BER
BERELRSRESRKRN0.40E T ZER
BE-—RBEERATLORANBEREARS
1,175,944,000 & ¥ % 17 - BLE IR N EE
T -RZZE—+F+=-At+hA &
1,175,944,0000% f% 17 B A ) 12 B IR B2 &
RHDOAB T ZBRES - LERGES
FERHEMEEHTRNDEARRZMAL



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

36.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

On 15 June 2016, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) to provide the people and the parties working
for the interests of the Group with an opportunity to obtain an equity
interest in the Company, thus linking their interest with the interests of
the Group and thereby providing them with an incentive to work better
for the interests of the Group.

Upon approval by shareholders by ordinary resolution at the annual
general meeting (the "AGM"”) on 15 June 2016, the total number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme will be 293,604,000 shares which were equivalent to
10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of the AGM.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted and to be granted to each grantee under the Share
Option Scheme in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time unless (i) a
circular is despatched to the shareholders; (ii) the shareholders approve
the grant of the options in excess of the 1% limit referred to in this
paragraph; and (iii) the relevant grantee and its associates abstain from
voting on such resolution.

An option may be exercised at any time during the period to be
determined and identified by the Directors to each grantee at the time
of making an offer for the grant of an option, but in any event no
later than ten years from the date of grant but subject to the early
termination of the New Share Option Scheme. An offer of grant of an
option must be accepted within 21 days after the date of grant. The
amount payable on acceptance of the grant is HK$1, which must be
received by the Company within 21 days from the date of grant or
within such other period of time as may be determined by the Directors
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

31 December 2018 — &

36.

e MEERME(E)

—N\FE+=ZA=+—H

LXH“@Z%E PANE &
RZZE—RNFANATHB  ARARIHEHN—IE
%M%%%U%h%ﬁ%ﬁ’%$@ﬁﬂ
ZERAREENRITE L ATRHERA
NARAER 2 BE  KMEEZF2F &=
HAREEF S - BEEEE AR
EEFEELER -

ERERZZE-—A"FAATREARTZR
%ﬁik@ﬂh%ﬁik@Dtﬁ@%L
RERMER  BEEREETREZ
B R M PN e 2 BR 10 4B 801§ /293,604,000
BEG  DHESERARFTRBRRAFAE
ERAZEETRMNI0% °

PAEMI2E AR 825X ARTEE
EBREAIERTRERTZBREND
BORBTEITZEROEZS  TABBA

NATEEEITRAZI1%  BIENE R K
REBEBH: (NVREILERDBBAER

1% IRz B - R (i) AR AR A KA
BEAITHERBBERERERSE -

BREAIREEANELARAREZRHE
P #E B P E W E 2 AT BB B 1T A
HEERMAANSERFE L BMEF; 5
WHORR T BREABATRFLL - &
BAARBEHARRZ -t —RARER
BEMBETEREZEZE - ARARER

ERZBRERAINUEL  AEZKEYS
ARARNAREEARRI; Z+— KAk

E=EREBLTRASAKEE 20 HRERA
W B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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36.

37.

220

—NFE+ZA=+—H

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION -
CONTINUED

The subscription price for the shares under the Share Option Scheme
shall be a price determined by the Directors at its absolute discretion
and shall not be less than the higher of: (i) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of
the shares.

No share options were granted under the New Share Option Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum lease
payment under non-cancellable operating leases for premises falling due

as follows:

36.

37.

ARBRERZARRS
llﬁ
RIRTRIE S B - BRI ELES 2

REBRAEBERTGEERTIEZEEZE
RN ( hfﬁﬁ@?ﬁﬁﬁ%@ﬁﬂﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ{gﬁ
Fraf s WmE: (VRMAEER LB
FEZEEBEBIMEAMBERAT W
MEFHE: Ri)EHzHEE -

RBE-Z-N\Ft_A=+—HIEFE"
jﬁ?ﬁ*ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ&%ﬁ%ﬂﬁHj,ﬁ%ﬁﬂ’é(f%?
—EF ) -

REHERE
R-E—N\F+-A=+—A  AREEE
55 4o o0 7 T B34 TR 6 B DA T 4R 50
S 7 kR AR AR NT

AONES] 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR FT ARBEFIT
Operating lease commitments BT ERE
— Within one year - —FR 2,281 5,527
- In the second to fifth years, inclusive -E_ZERFRN(BEEERNEF) 1,824 362
4,105 5,889
The Group's operating leases are for terms from 1 to 3 years (2017: 1 AEBEEHERH—Z2=F(2F—+

to 3 years).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBHRRMER)
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of remuneration of key management personnel which

38. FHAEALTRS

TEEBEE2HNBIARRERTRAE
represents emoluments of the directors of the Company and executive BESRTBABRZME) S BEHNMEI2 -
officers of the Group are set out in note 12.

MR A BB IRRM FE25 - 29 32FT &

Save as disclosed in notes 25, 29 and 32 to these Consolidated Financial

Statements, other material related party transactions for the year are EN ORAFEZEMEAEBEALR
ZWEWT

disclosed as below:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Name of related party Nature of transactions RMB’'000 RMB’000
BHREANTHRE RH5MUE AE#¥TFT ARKTF T
Sincere Finance Holding Limited (Note (i) Interest expenses 531 613
MESEEBEBERQR (ML) B X
Sincere Link Asset Management Limited (Note (ii)) Rental expenses 577 445
EEEEEE AR AR (M) HEMX
Sincere Bullion Limited (Note (iii) Interest expenses 24 202
MLIE € 2 B BR A | (A &2 (i) FMEFHE
Rental expenses 617 718
HEMX
Incharm Limited (Note (ii)) Rental expenses 891 650
HEARRE (K 0) HEMX
Joy East Holdings Limited (Note (ii) Rental expenses 928 780
RiaEBH R R (K2 i) HEMX
Sino Wings Technologies Limited (Note (iv)) Consultancy fee 614 234
EAE AR B R QR (ML v) A=
Mr. Hui Chi Yuet (Note (v)) Commission paid 867 806
B AR A (B ) B AE
Mr. Tse Shiu Hoi (Note (vi) Commission received 291 -
A6 8l 5 A (HT AT (vi)) 2UlE e
Mr. Deng Rongjie (Note (vii)) Interest received 246 -
B 88 71 o A (B9 2 (vii) 2 WA
Ms. Tse Chee Lam, Aries (Note (vii)) Interest received 342 -

WZ I L £ (B A (vii)

SR @RS
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38.

39.

40.

222

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS -

CONTINUED
Note:
(i) Other interest expenses were paid to a non-controlling owner of a

subsidiary based on the terms as disclosed in note 29(v).

(i) Companies in which directors of certain subsidiaries have significant
influence. Rental expenses were charged based on terms mutually agreed.

(iii) A company in which director of a subsidiary has significant influence. The
expenses were charged based on terms mutually agreed.

(iv) Company in which a close family member of a subsidiary’s director has
direct equity interest. Consultancy fee was charged based on terms
mutually agreed.

(v) Commissions were paid to directors of certain subsidiaries at terms
mutually agreed.

(vi) Commissions were received from directors of certain subsidiaries at terms
mutually agreed.

(vii)

Companies in which directors of certain subsidiaries have significant
influence. Interest income were received based on terms mutually agreed.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had provided corporate guarantee
to a bank in respect of certain credit facilities granted to Shasing-
Shapheng Quanzhou of which RMB40,000,000 was drawn down.
The total amounts to be guaranteed by the Group should not exceed
RMB50,000,000. The effective period of the guarantee should be from
16 July 2018 to 15 July 2023. No provision for the Group’s obligation
under the guarantee contract had been made as the directors of the
Company considered the possibility that Shasing-Shapheng Quanzhou
would not meet their obligations to the bank is remote, and it was
not probable that a claim will be made against the Group under the
guarantee contract.

MOVEMENT OF THE GROUP’S LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were,
or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated
statements of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
THNERZRAERL A

38.

39.

40.

FREALRS - &

0] HoAh F) 8B S AR I8 B RE29(v) BT IR B 2 14
RN TFHBARZIEZEREFA -

(ii) ETHBARZEERZEAFTTHEE
FEH  BERXBBEIAGE 2K
FRULER ©

@iy —HHBARAZEFRAZRAATHESE
FEN AXRBEEBEBEZHIK
HR o

(ivy —HWEARZEFZOREAZAT
ZHEERE BEERERIMEBEZG
FRULER ©

(v) BEREREBEZGRRAINTETHE
REZES °

(vi)y REZIRENGEREETHELATE

FWEREE -

oy

ETHBARESFNEAEATEND
Al o ARIREETT R B A 5 BB SR A

HARBE
RZE-N\E+-_A=+—8 KAEED
RBEHBLERMNERZETEERE
m—HEBRTREAFRER  ERPARE
40,000,000 C B IR HY - RE B R AT
B8 iH A R%50,000,0007T ° ERZE X
HEAE—Z—N\FLtA+BE-_T==F
+tA+AEB - AEBUWERERENTZ
EEELEE RARARGEER AR
BiHE (RN REBITHEET ZAEREE
W BEAEERBERAGHBAR ZA4E
HERK o

BREETHELEZAEEE
5825

TRAIIEMEEDEL 2 AREAES
B BERGRFRLED - ABEED
EEzABRARSABZASAECE
(HAKEL RIS RARBGARLR
BRSMALURAETDELIRENE -

(vii)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBHRRMER)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

40. MOVEMENT OF THE GROUP’S LIABILITIES 40. aﬁmﬁlﬁﬁéizmﬁﬁ
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - BE8E - &
CONTINUED

Amounts Short-

due to non-  Amounts Obligation term loans

controlling dueto  Amount under  Short-term  from other
owners of related  due to a Other Bond finance bank loans,  financial Other Convertible
subsidiaries  companies shareholder payable  payables leases  secured institutions borrowings bonds

EfF

4] FE OBRRFE EAEN EfWfF #HE (RER) RHEXR EtkE &7 B
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 /WEO()O RMB'000 /WEO()O RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000

| = i | = i i | =

As at 1 January 2017 RZB-t#
-A-H - - - 2,461 63,7

0 2,281 119,340 26,647 26,589 241,028

Changes from financing RERERE

cash flows: 25
Borrowing costs paid BREERE - (815) - (5,929) - (60)  (6,384) (15949 - - (29137)
Proceeds from bank loans, loans K& RTER »

from other financial institution ~ Eft & BEFE 2

and other borrowing ERREMEEL
MEHRE - - - - - - 114,150 182,107 48,557 - 344,814
Repayment of bank loans, loan (& B HRTEF -
from other financial institution ~ REE & BEE
and other borrowing ZEFRERES - - - - - - (119940 (199,229)  (15,608) - (334,777)
Repayment of finance leases ~ EEEEME - - - - - (374) - - - - (374)
Repayment of amount due to a (£ EFEIEAE
related company HE - (53,760 - - - - - - - - (53,760
Repayment to a shareholder  {EE KRB - - (104,05) - - - - - - - (104,05
Total changes from financing ~ BERETE
cash flows ZEai - (54,575 (104,052) (5,929) - (434) (12,174) (33,071) 32,949 - (177,286)
Exchange adjustments EiRE - (1,706) (15) (107) (4,658) (95) - (1,184) (1314) (1,273)  (10,352)
Other changes: Hit2E:
Finance costs BARKA - 815 381 - 4,856 60 6,384 17,158 2952 1,565 3417
Net cash flow from acquisiion  WEHBEAF 2
of a subsidiary RERFE - 63,232 - - - - - - - - 63,232
Settlement of finance lease EERBELENE
in relation to disposal BELRZEZ
of property, plant and REMETE
equipment - - - - - (1,235) - - - - (1,235)
Conversion of convertible bonds % # ] & (% - - - - - - - - - (25558 (25558
Settlement of other payables £ B E B[ & - - 104,05 - - - - - - - 104,05
Credited of interest payables P A &I 8 - - - 4275 - - - - (2,952 (1,323) -
Operating activities on financial R &% 2
assets at FVTPL BATEHAER
RoHBEE - - - - - - - (1,210) - - (1,210)
Total other changes HZ Bz - 64047 104433 4,275 4,856 (1,175) 6,384 15948 - (25316) 173452

Annual Report 201 8 223
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40. MOVEMENT OF THE GROUP’S LIABILITIES 40. aﬁmﬁliﬁb}%izz&%ﬁ
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - BE8E - &
CONTINUED

Amounts Short-

due to non-  Amounts Obligation term loans

controlling dueto  Amount under  Short-term  from other
owners of related  duetoa Other Bond finance bank loans,  financial Other Convertible
subsidiaries  companies shareholder payable  payables leases  secured institutions borrowings bonds

et RELf

wE R R 3% Bn : (RER) REHEXN AtkEE TARE:
M/B’OOO RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000 M/B’OOO RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000

=

As at 31 December 2017 it 2
+ZA=+-H - 7,766 366 700 63,908 577 113,550 8,340 31,635 - 226842
Changes from financing RERERE
cash flows: #E:
Borrowing costs paid BREEKE (3,966) (23) - (40375 (4726 - (5780 (617) - - (57487)
Proceeds from a non-controling R & Hi BA R
owners of subsidiaries FRRERZ
A 52,877 - - - - - - - - - 5877
Proceeds from bank loans, BRTER - £t
loans from other financial CREELER
institutions and other REMEEZ
borrowings feaE - - - - - - 115400 21229 126,585 - 454,281
Repayment of bank loans, BERTER
loan from other financial REEMERH%
institutions and other BZEFRLEM
borrowings EE - - - - - - (1386000 (8439 - - (147,039
Repayment of finance leases ~ EEFERE - - - - - (184) - - - - (184)
Repayment of amount due to a (EE BE AR FNE
related company - (7,872) - - - - - - - - (7.872)
Total changes from financing ~ BERERE
cash flows ZEai 48,911 (7,895) - (40,375) (4,726) (184)  (28,980) 201,240 126,585 - 294,576
Exchange adjustments ERRE 2,130 106 20 397 3,485 = = 8,669 6,825 - 21,632
Other changes: Hp2g:
Finance costs BEMA 3,966 23 - 4,665 4,726 17 5780 34037 13,169 - 66383
Credited of interest payables ~ sFAFEfIFI 8 - - - 44589 - - - (31,4200 (13169) - -
Total other changes HE g et 3,966 3 - 49254 4,726 17 5,780 2,617 - - 66383
As at 31 December 2018 RZB-N\E
+=-A=t-8 55,007 - 386 9,976 67,393 410 90,350 220,866 165,045 - 609,433
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

ATV

EiL

Co-Prosperity (Hong Kong) Limited

hEHhE (EE)ERAT

(Xiefeng (Fujian) Printing & Dyeing
Co,, Ltd)

(Xuesheng (Shishi) Printing &
Knitting Industry Co., Ltd.)

BEBHTABEEERLA

(Xiefeng (Fujian) Printing & Dyeing
Industrial Co., Ltd.)*

e RBHAEEERDT

Place of incorporation/
establishment/operation

Galilzav

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

PRC

For a term of 50 years
Commencing 26 May 1999
as a WFOE

i

“AAAFRAZTRAR
RES0F - (FRNABELE

PRC

For a term of 50 years
Commencing 16 September
1993 as a WFOE

HE

“AAZEARTRERE
RESIEERIBEEALE

PRC

For a term of 30 years
Commencing 24 May 2006
as a WFOE

mE

ZEEAFRAZT AR
REB0F - (ERINEEELE

ReMBEERMEGE)

31 December 2018 —_ZE—N\F+=-_HA=+—H

41. T EHE LT

Particulars of issued
and fully paid up share/

registered capital
E B

1,316,251,097
ordinary shares -
HK$1,528,767,028
1,316,251,097/%
ERk-
1,528,767,0287% 7T

2 ordinary shares -
HKS2

WERR-
2B

Registered capital -
Us$10,000,000

st A -
10,000,000% 7T

Registered capital -
US9$5,000,000

Zf A% -
5,000,000% 7T

Registered capital -
HK$30,000,000

A -
30,000,000/ 72

ARARRERBERBT LI EHNB LA
ZEBEMT

Percentage of
ownership interest/
voting power/

rofit share Principal activity
‘ TEXHB
Indirect

ik

52.42%
(2017: N/A)

Property and intellectual
property holding

52420% BENERMEER

- 100%  Trading of fabrics

BEm#H

- 100%
(2017: 100%)

Processing, printing and sales
of finished fabrics

- 100%
(ZE—+&:
100%)

REAMNI DEREE

- 100%
(2017: 100%)

Processing, printing and sales
of finished fabrics

- 100% MEHANT OEREE
(ZE—t%:

100%)

- 100%
(2017: 100%)

Processing, printing and sales
of finished fabrics

BRI BEREE

225
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41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES — CONTINUED 41. T EREBELAT - &

Name of subsidiary

(Xuesheng (Shishi) Printing &
Knitting Industrial Co., Ltd.)**

Particulars of issued
and fully paid up share/
istered capital

Place of incorporation/
establishment/operation
ERA LR/
BEME

PRC Registered capital -
For a term of 30 years HK$50,000,000
Commencing 15 December
2006 as a WFOE

Percentage of
ownership interest/
voting power/
ofit share

- 100%
(2017: 100%)

Principal activity

Processing, printing and sales
of finished fabrics

MR (EBTABEZERAT e HMER - - 100% KEBHMNI DEREE
ZETREtZATRAR 50,000,000% 1 (ZB—+%:
REBOF - (FRIBBALE 100%)
Rende Finance Limited Hong Kong 10,000 - 100%  Money lending
ordinary shares - (2017: 100%)
HK$10,000
CREBERAF & 10,0001 & @ i - - 100% HE
10,000/ 7T (ZZ—tF:
100%)
Co-Prosperity Investment British Virgin Islands ("BVI") 1 ordinary share - - 100%  Securities investment
(International) Limited Us$1 (2017: 100%)
BRBLREEK)ERAR EBRAEE IRERR - - 100% HEHKE
(£BR&#E]) (E9 (ZE—tF:
100%)
Asia Television (China) Holdings Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - - 100%  Entertainment and media
Limited (formerly known as HK$1 (2017: 100%) services
Eastern Culture Communication
Consultant Limited)
SHER(PE)BERAT i REER - - 100% BRERERRE
(IREEENERERAR) 1% (Z2—tF:
100%)
Star Platinum BVI 100 - 100%  Entertainment and media
ordinary shares - (2017: 100%) services
Us§100
Bt ABRIEE 1001% & 38 & - - 100% BEREERH
100% 7T (ZF—t&:
100%)
Co-Prosperity Management Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - - 100%  Provision of management
HK$1 (2017: 100%) services
BEGEERBERAT i REER - - 100% REERRE
18T (Z2—t&:
100%)

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
THNERZRAERL A
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41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES — CONTINUED M. TENBELR - &
Percentage of
Particulars of issued ownership interest/
Place of incorporation/ and fully paid up share/ voting power/
Name of subsidiary establishment/operation registered capital profit share Principal activity
Indirect
%
Asia Television Digital Media Limited Hong Kong 100,000 - 100%  Entertainment and media
ordinary shares - (2017: 100%) services
HK$100,000
CHEREBEEARARA £ 100,000 & & & - - 100% BERFLRB
100,000% 7t (ZB—t%:
100%)
Eastern Culture International Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - - 100%  Investment holding
HK$1 (2017: 100%)
SEARNICREARAT N REBER - - 100% ®EZR
17T (ZB—t%:
100%)
Full Winning BVI 1 ordinary share - 100% - Investment holding
US$1 (2017: 100%)
3 RERTHEE REBER - 100% - REBRK
=T (ZB-F:
100%)
Million Federal Hong Kong 25,000,000 - 60%  Investment holding
ordinary shares - (2017: 60%)
HK$25,000,000
EX G 25,000,008 & - - 60% REER
25,000,000 70 (ZB-t%:
60%)
Sincere Securities Hong Kong 60,000,000 - 60%  Underwriting, placing and
ordinary shares - (2017: 60%) brokerage and related
HK$60,000,000 services
AEE S B 60,000,008 & i@ % - - 60% B REARELERER
60,000,000/ 7 (ZE—t%: MR
60%)
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41.

228

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES — CONTINUED

* This subsidiary was processing the de-registered during the year and
became inactive as at 31 December 2018. The de-registration was
completed on 22 January 2019.

x* This subsidiary was processing the de-registered during the year and
became inactive as at 31 December 2018. The de-registration was
completed on 21 January 2019.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.

Seven (2017: Nil) wholly-owned subsidiaries were de-registered
during the year resulting in loss on de-registration of subsidiaries of
approximately RMB8,000 (note 8) for the year ended 31 December
2018.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end
of the year, or at any time during the year.

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
THNERZRAERL A
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42. XA R Z BB RN K

COMPANY

2018 2017
—T-)N\F —ET—+F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 ARBFT AREFT
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - WERXK 73 474
Interest in subsidiaries KRB AR 2 41 54,998 -
55,071 474
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H h fE IBR 3R 608 3,106
Amounts due from subsidiaries JIE W B J&B A B BB 41 80,566 1,290,767
Amount due from a director FE IR E FRE 25 - -
Bank balances RITHE - 46,859
81,174 1,340,732
Current liabilities RBERE
Other payables and accruals HihERRZ M ETEA 12,514 2,779
Amounts due to subsidiaries NP NGIE ] 41 2,053 2,749
Bond payables JET & FH 30 67,393 63,908
Short-term loans from other financial KEEMmemEBEZ CHER
institutions 170,313 -
Other borrowing HEiEE 165,045 31,635
417,318 101,071
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(AE) BEEFE (336,144) 1,239,661
Annual Report 201 8
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42. KA ATz B MR« - &
COMPANY - CONTINUED

2018 2017
—T-N\F —T—+tF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
i it AREF T AR%TFT
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAES (281,073) 1,240,135
Net (liabilities)/assets (BfE) EEFHE (281,073) 1,240,135
Capital and reserves ERRHE
Share capital N 35 616,617 616,617
Reserves & (897,690) 623,518
Total equity BRER (281,073) 1,240,135
The financial statements of the Company were approved and authorised ARARAMBBREER=ZZT—NLF=A=+
for issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2019 and are signed +tHEEESHEBBIBANUTATRE
on its behalf by: =E
Deng Jun lJie Chan Wai Kit
LN PR 12
Chairman Executive Director
B HiTEE
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42. ZXARZHMBERRARK - &
COMPANY - CONTINUED

Details of the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity AABMER EEBAIRFINEFLEEE 2
between the beginning and the end of the year are set as below: BEFEHINAT

Convertible
Share Special  bond equity  Translation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses

%

BiEE  BHEE i I 51, f 2 E#R T
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETL ARETE ARETH ARETT ARETT ARETL

As at 1 January 2017 RZZE—+F—-HA—-H 623,388 146,472 1171 43,575 (255,616) 558,990
Loss for the year AEEBE - - - - (363,863)  (363,863)
Other comprehensive income for A% & E b 2 E UK
the year
- Exchange differences arising -MBEELZ
on translation ERER - - - (59,328) - (59,328)

Total comprehensive income for ~ AEE2ANHLHE

the year - - - (59,328) (363,863) (423,191)
Issue of shares under share placing 1R & & {7 B2 & 47X {0 493,187 - - - - 493,187
Transaction costs attributable o~ BETEERHZX 5

issue of placing shares %N (19,091) - - - - (19,091)
Issue of shares upon conversion of ~FE & A} & %

convertible bonds mETRH 14,794 - (1,171) - - 13,623
Transactions with owners HEFAZRS 488,890 - (1,171) - - 487,719

As at 31 December 2017 as RZE-+&

previously reported +ZB=+-H
(MBEER) 112,278 146,472 - (15,753) (619,479) 623,518
Impact on initial application of ~ BXEBEETHHRE
HKFRS 9 EHFRMTE - - - 47,846 (1,199,061)  (1,151,215)

As at 31 December 2017 and R=-Z—+tf

1 January 2018 (restated) +=A=+-8HEK
“Z-N\%-F-H
(REF) 1,112,278 146,472 - 32,093 (1,818,540) (527,697)
Loss for the year AEEHE - - - - (360,326)  (360,326)
Other comprehensive income for A% & E 2 E UK
the year
- Exchange differences arising -HMBEELZ
on translation EHER - - - (9,667) - (9,667)
Total comprehensive income for ~ AEE2ENHLE
the year - - - (9,667) (360,326) (369,993)
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\%
+=A=+-H 1,112,278 146,472 - 22,426 (2,178,866) (897,690)
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

HEBE

Year ended 31 December

HET-A=T-HLLEE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
=2 == R R 2 e SR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 HK$'000
AREFLT AREFT AREFT F T FHET

RESULTS ¥
Turnover EEE 345,762 273,301 198,621 150,748 166,025
Profit/(loss) before taxation B AR (B18) 23,256 (5,008) 31,086 (118,911) (839,756)
Taxation BB (2,494) (1,892) (1,889) (4,082) 617
Profit/(loss) for the year AEEER/(BB) 20,762 (6,900) 29,197 (122,993) (839,139)

As at 31 December

R+=ZA=+—A

2014 2015 2016 2017

“ZT-pmF —T-1% “T—+F

RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000

AEBTT ARETFT T

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER

Total assets BERE 560,461 525,547 1,199,383 1,693,080 1,433,005
Total liabilities BELE (343,055) (255,567) (509,687) (394,378) (995,684)
Net assets BEFE 217,406 269,980 689,696 1,298,702 437,321

232

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
THNERZRAERL A



ATVIZA5E




	COVER
	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
	REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	FINANCIAL SUMMARY
	BACK COVER



